
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 8 
City Council Regular Agenda 
August 7, 2014 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
City Council Regular Meeting  

August 7, 2014, 7:00 PM 
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 

 

Notice is hereby given that a City Council Regular Meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Lucas will be held on Thursday, August 7, 2014.  The 
meeting will begin at 7:00 PM at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, 
Lucas, Texas, at which time the following agenda will be discussed. 

Agenda 

Call to Order 
 
Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Determination of Quorum 
Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Citizens’ Input 
At this time citizens who have pre-registered by filling out a “Request to Speak” sheet and have 
submitted the sheet to the City Secretary before the call to order will be allowed to speak on any 
matter other than personnel matters or matters under litigation, for a length of time not to exceed 
three minutes. No Council action or discussion may take place on a matter until such matter has 
been placed on a future agenda and posted in accordance with law. 

1) Citizens’ Input. 

Community Interest 

2) Items of Community Interest. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 8 
City Council Regular Agenda 
August 7, 2014 

a) Discussion and update regarding the drought contingency plan, 
conservation efforts and watering restrictions as it pertains to 
the City of Lucas. [Fisher/Foerster] 

Public Hearing(s) 
The Public Hearing agenda is provided for the purpose of allowing 
citizens to ask specific questions regarding only the subject posted for 
the Public Hearing. Generally the Public Hearing is required by State 
Law and a record of those attending the Public Hearing is maintained as 
part of the official record of the proceedings. 

3) Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the annexation of a 9.474 acre 
tract of land out of the Montgomery Birch Survey, Abstract 115, 
Collin County, Texas, being approximately 9.474 ± acre tract from 
the remainder 39.73 acre tract of land as deeded to Owen George and 
recorded in Volume 550, Page 165 of the Deed Records of Collin 
County, Texas (DRCCT), and located along E. Lucas Road. [This is 
the 1st Public Hearing, the 2nd Public Hearing will be held on 
August 21, 2014.] [Hilbourn] 

4) Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the annexation of a tract of land 
an approximately 10 acre ± tract of land BEGINNING at a roome 
capped 1/2 inch iron rod found in the southeast right-of-way line of 
FM 3286, a northwest line of said 28.9936 acre tract, and also 
marking the northwest corner of a 10.00 acre tract of land owned by 
Faustino Aranda as recorded in Volume 4850, Page 743 DRCCT. 
[This is the 1st Public Hearing, the 2nd Public Hearing will be held 
on August 21, 2014.] [Hilbourn] 

5) Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the annexation of an 
approximately 10 acre ± tract of land commencing for reference at a 
right-of-way monument found marking the northwest corner of said 
28.9936 acre tract, said corner also being the intersection of the 
southeast Right of Way line of FM 3286 with the east right-of-way 
line of County Road 391, THENCE with the southeast right-of-way 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 8 
City Council Regular Agenda 
August 7, 2014 

line of FM 3286 and the northwest line of said 28.9936 acre tract, 
more fully described in the packet.  [This is the 1st Public Hearing, 
the 2nd Public Hearing will be held on August 21, 2014.] 
[Hilbourn] 

6) Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the approval of Ordinance # 
2014-08-00782 of the City of Lucas, Texas, amending the 
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, 
Texas, as heretofore amended, by granting a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) to allow for the operations of a drive-through on 1.478 acre 
tract of land out of the William Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, 
City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, and more commonly known as 
Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart Addition, and being more particularly 
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; providing for approval of 
the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; providing a repealing 
clause; providing a penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense; and providing for an 
effective date. [Starbucks, this is the 2nd Public Hearing, the 1st 
Public Hearing was held by the Planning & Zoning Commission 
on July 10, 2014] [Hilbourn] 

7) Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the approval of Ordinance # 
2014-08-00783 of the City of Lucas, Texas, amending the 
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, 
Texas, as heretofore amended, by granting a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) to allow for the operations of a drive-through on 1.478 acre 
tract of land out of the William Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, 
City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, and more commonly known as 
Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart Addition, and being more particularly 
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; providing for approval of 
the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; providing a repealing 
clause; providing a penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense; and providing for an 
effective date. [Wendy’s, this is the 2nd Public Hearing, the 1st 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 8 
City Council Regular Agenda 
August 7, 2014 

Public Hearing was held by the Planning & Zoning Commission 
on July 10, 2014] [Hilbourn] 

Consent Agenda 
The Consent Agenda is used to increase the efficiency of time. All items listed 
under the Consent Agenda may be considered by a single motion, second and 
passage by a majority vote of the Council present at the time of consideration. Any 
member of Council may remove an item from the Consent Agenda prior to a 
motion to act upon the agenda. 
              

8) Consent and Approve: 

a) The minutes from the July 17, 2014 City Council and the July 
22, 2014 Joint Budget Workshop Meeting of the City Council 
and the Lucas Fire Control Prevention & EMS District 
meetings. [Wingo] 

b) Ordinance # 2014-08-00784 of the City of Lucas, Texas, 
annexing the hereinafter described territory into the City of 
Lucas, Texas, extending the boundary limits of the City so as to 
include said hereinafter described territory within the City’s 
limits, granting to all inhabitants and owners of territory all of 
the rights and privileges of other citizens, and binding the 
inhabitants by all the acts, ordinances and regulations of the 
city; adopting a service plan for the described territory; 
providing a repealing clause; providing a severability clause; 
and providing an effective date. [Willow Springs Middle 
School, 30 acre tract] 

c) Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 of the City of Lucas, Texas, 
annexing the hereinafter described territory into the City of 
Lucas, Texas, extending the boundary limits of the City so as to 
include said hereinafter described territory within the City’s 
limits, granting to all inhabitants and owners of territory all of 
the rights and privileges of other citizens, and binding the 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 5 of 8 
City Council Regular Agenda 
August 7, 2014 

inhabitants by all the acts, ordinances and regulations of the 
city; adopting a service plan for the described territory; 
providing a repealing clause; providing a severability clause; 
and providing an effective date. [Oakbrook Estates, 25.950 
acre tract] 

d) Ordinance # 2014-08-00786 of the City Council of the City of 
Lucas, Collin County, Texas, amending the Lucas Code of 
Ordinances by amending Chapter 14 “Zoning” by amending 
Article 14.04 “Supplementary Regulations” by amending 
Division 2 “Off-Street Parking and Loading” by adding Article 
14.04.039 “Off-Site Parking Requirements” providing 
regulations for off-site parking; providing a repealing clause; 
providing a severability clause; providing a savings clause; 
providing a penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of two 
thousand dollars ($2,000) for each offense; and providing for 
an effective date. [Off-Site Parking Regulations] 

e) An amendment to the contract with Lucas Municipal Judge 
Huffman regarding requirements and compensation and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement. [Meehan] 

f) A Baxter Information Technology Consulting Services 
professional services agreement between the City of Lucas and 
Baxter IT and authorize the City Manager to execute said 
agreement. [Foerster] 

g) The purchase of Opticom activated fire station flashing signs as 
part of the RTR W Lucas Road/Country Club Intersection 
Project; and authorize the Mayor to purchase the signs in the 
amount of $24,427.92 from Consolidated Traffic Controls, Inc. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 6 of 8 
City Council Regular Agenda 
August 7, 2014 

Regular Agenda 

9) Discuss and consider the approval of the Utility Billing 
Administrative Guidelines. [Moody] 

10) Discuss and consider the proposed City of Lucas’ Tax Rate for 
Fiscal Year 2014 – 2015. [Exum] 

11) Discussion only for the proposed City of Lucas’ Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2014 – 2015. [Exum] 

12) Discuss and consider the approval of site plan for Lot 3 of the Lucas 
Wal-Mart Addition a tract of land containing 1.478 acres of land, 
with proposed site containing two commercial buildings; one being 
a 1,752 square feet a Starbucks with a drive through, and a 3,485 
square feet a Wendy’s restaurant with a drive through. [Hilbourn] 

13) Discuss and consider a minor plat application submitted by Sarah 
Colter for Abs A0824 Jas M Snider Survey, Tract 10, 4.098 acres 
and Abs A0824 Jas M Snider Survey, Tract 41, 4.0 acres otherwise 
known as 1125 Country Club Road. [Hilbourn] 

14) Discuss and consider a request by Steve Lenart at staffs request for a 
development agreement for between the city of Lucas and CDAG 
Lewis Park LLC. The agreement is regarding dedication of 5.5 acres 
of land to the city for parks in consideration for number of lots and 
parks fees. [Hilbourn] 

15) Discuss and consider accepting or rejecting the single bid for the 
Estates Parkway construction between Angel Parkway and Lovejoy 
High School. [Foerster] 

16) Discuss and consider entering into an agreement with the 
International City/County Management Association’s Center for 
Public Safety Management to perform a comprehensive assessment 
of Lucas Fire Department, appropriate $27,000 from the general 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 7 of 8 
City Council Regular Agenda 
August 7, 2014 

fund unrestricted reserves and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the agreement. [Clarke] 

17) Discussion and action regarding the method and process used to 
conduct market surveys and the establishment of criteria to be used 
to identify benchmark cities. [Clarke/Meehan] 

18) Discuss and consider the status of the Crown Victoria patrol vehicle 
that was used by the Collin County deputy on assignment with the 
City of Lucas and provide guidance to staff regarding its future use. 
[Clarke] 

19) Discuss and consider the process for upcoming Boards & 
Commission appointments. [Mark] 

20) Adjournment. 

As authorized by Section 551.071 (2) of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice 
from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

Approval 

Approved by: Mayor Rebecca Mark, August 1, 2014. 

Certification 

I hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the 
bulletin board at Lucas City Hall by 5:00 p.m. on or before Friday, 
August 1, 2014, as required in accordance with Government Code 
§551.041. 

 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 8 of 8 
City Council Regular Agenda 
August 7, 2014 

____________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 

This building is wheelchair accessible. Any requests for sign interpretive services or other 
special requests for assistance of the hearing impaired must be made 48 hours in advance 
of the meeting. To make such arrangements, please call 972-727-8999 or email 
secretary@lucastexas.us. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
AUGUST 7, 2014 

LUCAS CITY COUNCIL  

Meeting Date August 7, 2014 

AGENDA ITEM:  
 Call to Order  
 Roll Call      Present  Absent 

Mayor Rebecca Mark              

Seat 1 CM Wayne Millsap           

Seat 2 CM Jim Olk            

Seat 3 CM Steve Duke              

Seat 4 CM Philip Lawrence             

Seat 5 CM Debbie Fisher             

Seat 6 MPT Kathleen Peele           

 

 Determination of Quorum 
 Reminder to silence cell phones 
 Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Informational Purposes 

 

City Manager Joni Clarke     

City Secretary Kathy Wingo      

Public Works Director Stanton Foerster    

Finance Director Liz Exum     

Fire Chief Jim Kitchens        

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City Attorney Joe Gorfida, Jr.      

Administrative Assistant Jennifer Faircloth   

   

    

 



Item No. 01 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Citizen’s Input. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Item No. 02 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Items of Community Interest: 

a) Discussion and update regarding the drought contingency plan, 
conservation efforts and watering restrictions as it pertains to the City 
of Lucas. [Fisher/Foerster] 

 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Item No. 03 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the unilateral annexation of a 9.474 acre tract 
of  land out of the Montgomery Birch Survey, Abstract 115, Collin County, Texas, 
being the remainder of a 39.73 acre tract of land as deeded to Owen George and 
recorded  in Volume 550, Page 165 of  the Deed Records of Collin County, Texas 
(DRCCT), and located along E. Lucas Road. 
 

Background Information:  

This parcel is where the Burch Fireworks stand is located on E. Lucas Road. 

Staff has brought forward this request for annexation to help control concerns about 
the use of fireworks in the city’s ETJ as well as to help control development. These 
parcels were recommended by Staff at the last annexation workshop and were 
approved by Council for consideration. 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Public notice 
2. Legal Description 
3. Depiction 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:    
 
None 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Approve as presented. 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 
Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Item No. 03 

Motion:  
 

No action require, this is the 1st Public Hearing, the 2nd Public Hearing will be held 
on August 21, 2014. 



13-1606                                                                                                                         September, 2013 

Page 1 of  2                                                              P:\CITY SECRETARY\Government\City Council\Agendas\2014\cc-20140807 
rg\03 Owens Tract Annexation Exhibit A.doc 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ANNEXATION LANDS 

OWEN GEORGE TRACT 
 

DESCRIPTION 
 

A 9.474 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE MONTGOMERY BIRCH SURVEY, ABSTRACT 115, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING THE REMAINDER OF A 39.73 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS 
DEEDED TO OWEN GEORGE AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 550, PAGE 165 OF THE DEED 
RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS (DRCCT), AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT “B” 
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
  
The POINT OF BEGINNING is a Corps of Engineers (COE) monument at the southernmost corner of the 
remainder tract herein described, said point being the westernmost corner of Right of Way as deeded to the 
State of Texas (TxDOT) and recorded Volume 945, Page 149, DRCCT, and being the northeast corner of  
tract 4405-1 as deeded to the United States of America (USA) for the Lake Lavon Reservoir and recorded in 
Volume 738, Page 124, DRCCT; 
 
THENCE North 37°42’ West, departing said Right of Way line and crossing said Owen George tract with 
the northeast line of said USA tract, a distance of 909.70 feet to COE monument No. 4405-2, said point 
being on the north line of said Owen George tract; 
 
THENCE South 87°31’ East, with the north line of said Owen George tract, a distance of 1237.14 feet to a 
stake marking the northeast corner of the Owen George remainder tract, and being the northwest corner of 
said TxDOT Right of Way tract; 
 
THENCE South 51°12’ West with the northwest line of the Right of Way for FM 3286, a distance of 168.07 
feet to a stake at the beginning of a tangent curve to the left; 
 
THENCE with said curving Right of Way having a radius of 2924.79, through a central angle of 10°23’, an 
arc distance of 530.04 feet, and having a chord which bears South 46°00’30” West, a distance of 529.32 feet 
to a stake at the point of tangent; 
 
THENCE South 40°49’ West, with said Right of Way line, a distance of 256.88 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING, and containing 9.474 acres of land. 
 
NOTES: 
   
THIS DESCRIPTION IS BASED ON RECORD INFORMATION.  THE BEARINGS, DISTANCES, AND 
MONUMENT STATUS HAS NOT BEEN VERIFIED BY A FIELD SURVEY. 
 
USA DOCUMENT (738/124) AND TxDOT DOCUMENT  (945/149) ARE ON THE SAME BEARING 
BASIS. 
 
ALL BEARINGS FOR THE ORIGINAL OWEN GEORGE DOCUMENT (550/165) ARE ROTATED 
CLOCKWISE 2°29’. 
  



Exhibit B 
Depiction 

Owen George Tract 
 

 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
TO CONSIDER ANNEXATION OF LAND 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas (the 
“City”), will hold two Public Hearings regarding the unilateral annexation of the 
property hereinafter described. The first Public Hearing will begin at 7:00 PM on 
August 7, 2014, and a second Public Hearing will begin at 7:00 PM on August 
21, 2014. Both Public Hearings will be held at the City of Lucas’ City Hall located 
at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The property to be considered for 
annexation is located in Collin County, Texas, known as the Owens Tract and 
further described as follows: 
 

A 9.474 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE MONTGOMERY BIRCH 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT 115, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING THE 
REMAINDER OF A 39.73 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS DEEDED TO OWEN 
GEORGE AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 550, PAGE 165 OF THE DEED 
RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS (DRCCT) AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
  
The POINT OF BEGINNING is a Corps of Engineers (COE) monument at the 
southernmost corner of the remainder tract herein described, said point being the 
westernmost corner of Right of Way as deeded to the State of Texas (TxDOT) 
and recorded Volume 945, Page 149, DRCCT, and being the northeast corner of 
tract 4405-1 as deeded to the United States of America (USA) for the Lake Lavon 
Reservoir and recorded in Volume 738, Page 124, DRCCT; 
 
THENCE North 37°42’ West, departing said Right of Way line and crossing said 
Owen George tract with the northeast line of said USA tract, a distance of 909.70 
feet to COE monument No. 4405-2, said point being on the north line of said 
Owen George tract; 
 
THENCE South 87°31’ East, with the north line of said Owen George tract, a 
distance of 1237.14 feet to a stake marking the northeast corner of the Owen 
George remainder tract, and being the northwest corner of said TxDOT Right of 
Way tract; 



 
THENCE South 51°12’ West with the northwest line of the Right of Way for FM 
3286, a distance of 168.07 feet to a stake at the beginning of a tangent curve to 
the left; 
 
THENCE with said curving Right of Way having a radius of 2924.79, through a 
central angle of 10°23’, an arc distance of 530.04 feet, and having a chord which 
bears South 46°00’30” West, a distance of 529.32 feet to a stake at the point of 
tangent; 
 
THENCE South 40°49’ West, with said Right of Way line, a distance of 256.88 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, and containing 9.474 acres of land. 
 

Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If 
you are unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, 
Attention:  City Secretary, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email 
kwingo@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 and they will be presented at the 
Hearing. 
 
I, Kathy Wingo, City Secretary of the City of Lucas, Texas, do hereby publish this 
notice in accordance with law and have on file in my office the service plan for such 
annexation. 
 
  
       Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 

City Secretary 



Item No. 04 

 
 

 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the annexation of a tract of land an 
approximately 10 acre ± tract of land BEGINNING at a roome capped 1/2 inch iron 
rod found in the southeast right-of-way line of FM 3286, a northwest line of said 
28.9936 acre tract, and also marking the northwest corner of a 10.00 acre tract of 
land owned by Faustino Aranda as recorded in Volume 4850, Page 743 DRCCT. 
 

Background Information:    
 
This parcel was brought forward to council at a previous council meeting to ask for 
direction on moving forward with annexation Council agreed with a 5-2 vote to 
move forward with unilateral annexation. This tract is where the fireworks are 
detonated for the Bullard brother’s fireworks stand.  
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Public Notice. 
2. Legal Description 
3. Depiction 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:    
 
None 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Approve as presented 
 
Motion:  

City of Lucas
City Council Agenda 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 
 



Item No. 04 

 
No action required, this is the 1st Public Hearing, the 2nd Public Hearing will be 
held on August 21, 2014. 
 
 

 



Exhibit A 

Legal Description Pattassery Tract 

 

COMMENCING FOR REFERENCE at a Right of Way monument found marking the northwest 
corner of said 28.9936 acre tract, said corner also being the intersection of the southeast Right of 
Way line of FM 3286 with the east Right of Way line of County Road 391; 

THENCE with the southeast Right of Way line of FM 3286 and the northwest line of said 28.9936 acre 
tract as follows: 

North 40°37'13" East, 341.70 feet to a broken concrete Right of Way monument found 
marking the beginning of a curve to the right; 

Northeasterly along said curve, having a central angle of 00°57'13", with a radius of 
2804.83 feet, for an arc distance of 46.68 feet (chord = North 41°16'16" East, 46.58 feet) 
to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set marking the POINT OF BEGINNING and the 
northwest corner of the premises herein described; 

THENCE northeasterly with the curving southeast Right of Way line of FM 3286 and the northwest 
line of said 28.9936 acre tract, a curve to the right having a central angle of 07°56'01" with a radius 
of 2804.83 feet, for an arc distance of 388.28 feet (chord = North 45°43'53"  East, 388.07 feet) to a 
Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set marking the most northerly northeast corner o said premises: 

THENCE with  an easterly line of said premises as follows: 

South 28°12'00" East, 233.09 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set for corner; 

South 42°02'53" East, 108.66 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set for corner: 

South 48°08'33" East, 417.96 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set for corner; 

South 16°36'29" East, 633.63 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set marking the 
southeast corner of said premises in the north Right of Way line of County Road 391 and 
the south lie of said 28.9936 acre tract; 

THENCE with the north Right of Way line of County Road 391, the South line of said 28.9936 
acre tract and the South line of said premises as follows: 

North 88°25'35" West, 13.05 feet to a bois'd arc fence post for corner; 

North 87°47'44" West, 329.98 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set marking 
the southwest corner of said premises; 



THENCE with the southwesterly line of said premises as follows; 

North 27°10'23" West, 592.80 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set for corner; 

North 43°49'48" West, 500.53 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, and 
containing 10 acres of land, more or less. 

 



Exhibit B Pattassery Parcel 

Depiction Owners Property 

 

 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
TO CONSIDER ANNEXATION OF LAND 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas (the “City”), 
will hold two Public Hearings regarding the unilateral annexation of the property 
hereinafter described. The first Public Hearing will begin at 7:00 PM on August 7, 2014, 
and a second Public Hearing will begin at 7:00 PM on August 21, 2014. Both Public 
Hearings will be held at the City of Lucas’ City Hall located at 665 Country Club Road, 
Lucas, Texas. The property to be considered for annexation is located in Collin County, 
Texas, known as the Pattassery Parcel and further described as follows: 

COMMENCING FOR REFERENCE at a Right of Way monument found marking the 
northwest corner of said 28.9936 acre tract, said corner also being the intersection of the 
southeast Right of Way line of FM 3286 with the east Right of Way line of County Road 
391; 

THENCE with the southeast Right of Way line of FM 3286 and the northwest line of said 
28.9936 acre tract as follows: 

North 40°37'13" East, 341.70 feet to a broken concrete Right of Way monument found 
marking the beginning of a curve to the right; 

Northeasterly along said curve, having a central angle of 00°57'13", with a radius of 
2804.83 feet, for an arc distance of 46.68 feet (chord = North 41°16'16" East, 46.58 
feet) to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set marking the POINT OF BEGINNING 
and the northwest corner of the premises herein described; 

THENCE northeasterly with the curving southeast Right of Way line of FM 3286 and the 
northwest line of said 28.9936 acre tract, a curve to the right having a central angle of 
07°56'01" with a radius of 2804.83 feet, for an arc distance of 388.28 feet (chord = North 
45°43'53" East, 388.07 feet) to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set marking the most 
northerly northeast corner o said premises: 

THENCE with an easterly line of said premises as follows: 



South 28°12'00" East, 233.09 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set for corner; 

South 42°02'53" East, 108.66 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set for corner: 

South 48°08'33" East, 417.96 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set for corner; 

South 16°36'29" East, 633.63 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set marking the 
southeast corner of said premises in the north Right of Way line of County Road 391 and 
the south lie of said 28.9936 acre tract; 

THENCE with the north Right of Way line of County Road 391, the South line of said 
28.9936 acre tract and the South line of said premises as follows: 

North 88°25'35" West, 13.05 feet to a bois'd arc fence post for corner; 

North 87°47'44" West, 329.98 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set marking the 
southwest corner of said premises; 

THENCE with the southwesterly line of said premises as follows; 

North 27°10'23" West, 592.80 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod set for corner; 

North 43°49'48" West, 500.53 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, and containing 10 
acres of land, more or less. 

 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If you 
are unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention:  
City Secretary, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email 
kwingo@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 and they will be presented at the Hearing. 
 
I, Kathy Wingo, City Secretary of the City of Lucas, Texas, do hereby publish this notice 
in accordance with law and have on file in my office the service plan for such annexation. 
 
  
       Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 

City Secretary 
 
 



Item No. 05 
 

 
 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 

Agenda Item:    

 
Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the annexation of an approximately 10 acre ± 
tract of land commencing for reference at a right-of-way monument found marking 
the northwest corner of said 28.9936 acre tract, said corner also being the intersection 
of the southeast Right of Way line of FM 3286 with the east right-of-way line of 
County Road 391, THENCE with the southeast right-of-way line of FM 3286 and 
the northwest line of said 28.9936 acre tract, more fully described in the packet. 
 

Background Information:  

 
This parcel was brought forward to council at a previous council meeting to ask for 
direction on moving forward with annexation Council agreed with a 5-2 vote to 
move forward with unilateral annexation. This tract is where Mr. Biggs fireworks 
are detonated for the Bullard brother’s fireworks stand.  
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Public Notice. 
2. Legal Description 
3. Depiction 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:   
 
None 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Approve as presented. 
 

City of Lucas
City Council Agenda 

Meeting Date:  August 7, 2014 



Item No. 05 
 

Motion:  

 

No action, this is the 1st Public Hearing, the 2nd Public Hearing will be held on 
August 21, 2014. 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
TO CONSIDER ANNEXATION OF LAND 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas (the 
“City”), will hold two Public Hearings regarding the unilateral annexation of the 
property hereinafter described. The first Public Hearing will begin at 7:00 PM on 
August 7, 2014, and a second Public Hearing will begin at 7:00 PM on August 
21, 2014. Both Public Hearings will be held at the City of Lucas’ City Hall located 
at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The property to be considered for 
annexation is located in Collin County, Texas, commonly known as the Bullard 
Brothers tract, and described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod found in the southeast Right of 
Way line of FM 3286, a northwest line of said 28.9936 acre tract, and also 
marking the northwest corner of a 10.00 acre tract of land owned by Faustino 
Aranda as recorded in Volume 4850, Page 743 DRCCT; 

THENCE with the westerly line of said 10.00 acre tract and the easterly line of 
said premises as follows: 

South 43°49'48" East, 500.53 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod found; 
South 26°03'31" East, 575.14 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod found 
marking the southwest corner of said 10.00 acre tract; 

THENCE with the south line of said 10.00 acre tract and a north line of said 
premises, South 87°47'44" East, 340.05 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod 
found marking the most easterly northeast corner of said premises and an interior 
corner of said 10.00 acre tract; 

THENCE with a west line of said 10.00 acre tract and the most easterly east line of 
said premises, South 05°44'16" East, 10.00 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron 
rod found marking the most southerly southwest corner of said 10.00 acre tract, 
the southeast corner of said premises and being in a south line of the 
aforementioned 28.9936 acre tract; 



THENCE with a south line of said 28.9936 acre tract, said premised, and partway 
along the north Right of Way line of County Road 391, North 87°47'44" west, 
1002.57 feet to a point for corner from which a Government Monument found for 
reference bears North 01'00'45" East, 7.23 feet; 

THENCE with a common line of said premises and the northeasterly and easterly 
Right of Way line of County Road 391 (County Road Relocation No. 25) as follows; 

THENCE 01°00'45" East, passing at 7.32 feet said Government Monument and 
continuing for a total distance of 21.79 feet to a Government Monument found; 

North 89°05'11" West, 67.20 feet to a Government monument found marking 
the beginning of a curve to the right; 

Northwesterly along said curve having a central angle of 81°36'43", with a 
radius of 60.00 feet for an arc distance of 85.48 feet(chord = North 48°20'58" 
West, 78.42 feet) to a government 4403-02-4 found marking the end of said 
curve; 

North 07°33'57" West, 53.97 feet to Government Monument 4403-2-5 found, 
North 03°47'23" East, 51.08 feet to Government Monument 4403-2-6 found, 
North 18°50'43" West, 50.99 feet to Government Monument found; 
North 07°41'10" West, 343.25 feet to a Right of Way Monument found marking 
the intersection of east Right of Way lie of Count Road 391 with the 
southeasterly Right of Way line of FM 3286 and being the most westerly 
Northwest corner of  herein described premises; 

THENCE with the northerly line of said premises and the southeasterly Right of 
Way line of FM 3286 as follows; 

North 40°37'13" East, 341.70 feet to a broken concrete Right of Way line 
Monument found marking the beginning of a curve to the right; 
Northeasterly along said curve having a central angle of 00°57'13", with a radius 
of 2804.83 feet, for an arc distance of 46.68 feet (chord = North 41°16'16" East, 
46.68 feet) to the POINT OF BEGINNING, and containing 10.682 acres of land 

 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If 
you are unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, 
Attention:  City Secretary, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email 
kwingo@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 and they will be presented at the 
Hearing. 
 
I, Kathy Wingo, City Secretary of the City of Lucas, Texas, do hereby publish this 
notice in accordance with law and have on file in my office the service plan for such 
annexation. 
        Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 

City Secretary 



Exhibit A 

Legal Description Bullard Brothers Property 

 

BEGINNING at a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod found in the southeast Right of Way line of 
FM 3286, a northwest line of said 28.9936 acre tract, and also marking the northwest corner of a 
10.00 acre tract of land owned by Faustino Aranda as recorded in Volume 4850, Page 743 
DRCCT; 

THENCE with the westerly line of said 10.00 acre tract and the easterly line of said premises 
as follows: 

South 43°49'48" East, 500.53 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod found; South 
26°03'31" East, 575.14 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod found marking the 
southwest corner of said 10.00 acre tract; 

THENCE with the south line of said 10.00 acre tract and a north line of said premises, South 
87°47'44" East, 340.05 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod found marking the most easterly 
northeast corner of said premises and an interior corner of said 10.00 acre tract; 

THENCE with a west line of said 10.00 acre tract and the most easterly east line of said premises, 
South 05°44'16" East, 10.00 feet to a Roome capped 1/2 inch iron rod found marking the most 
southerly southwest corner of said 10.00 acre tract, the southeast corner of said premises and being in 
a south line of the aforementioned 28.9936 acre tract; 

THENCE with a south line of said 28.9936 acre tract, said premised, and partway along the north 
Right of Way line of County Road 391, North 87°47'44" west, 1002.57 feet to a point for corner from 
which a Government Monument found for reference bears North 01'00'45" East, 7.23 feet; 

THENCE with a common line of said premises and the northeasterly and easterly Right of Way line 
of County Road 391 (County Road Relocation No. 25) as follows; 

THENCE 01°00'45" East, passing at 7.32 feet said Government Monument and continuing 
for a total distance of 21.79 feet to a Government Monument found; 

North 89°05'11" West, 67.20 feet to a Government monument found marking the 
beginning of a curve to the right; 

Northwesterly along said curve having a central angle of 81°36'43", with a radius of 60.00 feet 
for an arc distance of 85.48 feet(chord = North 48°20'58" West, 78.42 feet) to a government 
4403-02-4 found marking the end of said curve; 

North 07°33'57" West, 53.97 feet to Government Monument 4403-2-5 found, North 
03°47'23" East, 51.08 feet to Government Monument 4403-2-6 found, North 
18°50'43" West, 50.99 feet to Government Monument found; 



North 07°41'10" West, 343.25 feet to a Right of Way Monument found marking the 
intersection of east Right of Way lie of Count Road 391 with the southeasterly Right of 
Way line of FM 3286 and being the most westerly Northwest corner of  herein described 
premises; 

THENCE with the northerly line of said premises and the southeasterly Right of Way line of FM 
3286 as follows; 

North 40°37'13" East, 341.70 feet to a broken concrete Right of Way line 
Monument found marking the beginning of a curve to the right; 

Northeasterly along said curve having a central angle of 00°57'13", with a radius of 2804.83 feet, for 
an arc distance of 46.68 feet (chord = North 41°16'16" East, 46.68 feet) to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING, and containing 10.682 acres of land 
 



Exhibit B 

Depiction Bullard Brothers Property 

 

 



Item No. 06 
 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director   
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the approval of Ordinance # 2014-08-00782 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, amending the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and 
Map of the City of Lucas, Texas, as heretofore amended, by granting a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) to allow for the operations of a drive-through on 1.478 acre tract of 
land out of the William Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, City of Lucas, Collin 
County, Texas, and more commonly known as Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart 
Addition, and being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; 
providing for approval of the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; providing a 
repealing clause; providing a penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand 
Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense; and providing for an effective date.  
 

Background Information:  
 
The City of Lucas Code of Ordinances requires all businesses with a drive through 
to have an approved Specific Use Permit (SUP). This tract of land is an out parcel 
of Wal-Mart.   
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Ordinance 
2. Site plan 
3. Elevations 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
Increased revenue for the general fund through property taxes and sales tax. 
Increased revenue to the water fund through water use. 
 

Recommendation:  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014
 



Item No. 06 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval at the July 10, 2014 
meeting with the following condition(s):  Monument sign, if any, has a frame in the 
shape of an L with horses and a Texas Star, similar to that of Murphy Express. 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to recommend approval/denial Ordinance # 2014-08-00782 of 
the City of Lucas, Texas, amending the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, as heretofore amended, by granting a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) to allow for the operations of a drive-through on 1.478 acre tract of 
land out of the William Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, City of Lucas, Collin 
County, Texas, and more commonly known as Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart 
Addition. 
 
 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00782 Starbucks SUP 
Approved:  August 7, 2014 

 
 

ORDINANCE # 2014-08-00782 
[Special Use Permit for Starbucks Drive-Through Located 

on Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart Addition] 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND MAP OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY GRANTING A 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR THE OPERATION OF A 
DRIVE-THROUGH ON A 1.478 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE 
WILLIAM SNIDER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 821, CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MORE COMMONLY KNOWN 
AS LOT 3 OF THE LUCAS WAL-MART ADDITION, AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO; 
PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL OF THE SITE PLAN ATTACHED 
HERETO AS EXHIBIT “B”; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE 
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas, and 
the governing body of the City of Lucas in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and 
the ordinances of the City of Lucas, have given requisite notice of publication and otherwise, and 
after holding due hearings and affording a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally 
and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and in 
the exercise of its legislative discretion have concluded that the Comprehensive Zoning 
Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, Texas, as previously amended, should be amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, 
Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended, to grant a Special Use 
Permit to allow for the operation of a drive-through on a 1.478-acre tract of land out of the 
William Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, and more 
commonly known as Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart Addition, and being more particularly 
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 SECTION 2. That the above-described property shall be used only in the manner and 
for the purposes provided for by the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Lucas as 
heretofore amended, subject to the following special conditions: 

 

Annexation 
Disannexation 
Code of Ordinances 
Other 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00782 Starbucks SUP 
Approved:  August 7, 2014 

(1) The Property shall be developed in accordance with the site plan attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B” and made part hereof for all purposes; 

 
(2) The Property shall only be used as a drive-through for Starbucks; 
 
(3) The hours of operation shall be seven days a week from:  5:00 a.m. until 12:00 

midnight. 
 

 SECTION 3. To the extent of any irreconcilable conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance and other ordinances of the City of Lucas governing the use and development of the 
Property and which are not expressly amended by this ordinance, the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be controlling.  
 
 SECTION 4. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 
section of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be 
adjudged or held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended 
hereby, which shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 5. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is 
governed by prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when 
the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
 SECTION 6. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms 
of this Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as 
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the 
sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation 
shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
 SECTION 7. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, 
and it is accordingly so ordained 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 7TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2014. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Rebecca Mark, Mayor  
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00782 Starbucks SUP 
Approved:  August 7, 2014 

 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 
(06-02-14/66451) 

 



 
Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00782 Starbucks SUP 
Approved:  August 7, 2014 

EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
Being a tract of land situated in the William Snider Survey, Abstract No. 821, Collin County, 
Texas and being all of Lot 3, Block A, Wal-Mart Lucas Addition, an addition to the City of 
Lucas, as recorded in Book 2012, Page 457, Plat Records, Collin County, Texas and being a 
portion of those tracts of land described in a deed to Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust 
recorded in Instrument No. 20111111001226530 and Instrument No. 20111111001226540, all in 
Land Records, Collin County, Texas, and being more particularly described by metes and 
bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at an “x” cut in concrete found for the northwest corner of Lot 3, Block A, Wal-
Mart Lucas Addition; 
 
THENCE N 89°13’09” E (record bearing N 89°13’52” E), 249.76 feet to an “x” cut in concrete 
found; 
 
THENCE S 00°46’53” E (record bearing S 00°46’08” E), 257.75 feet to an “x” cut in concrete 
found; 
 
THENCE S 89°32’49” W (record bearing S 89°33’32” W), 251.23 feet to an “x” cut in concrete 
found; 
 
THENCE N 00°27’13” W (record bearing N 00°26’28” W), 256.32 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 64,384 square feet, or 1.478 acres of land, more or less. 

 



 
Exhibit “B” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00782 Starbucks SUP 
Approved:  August 7, 2014 

EXHIBIT “B” 
SITE PLAN 

 





Item No. 07 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director   
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the approval of Ordinance # 2014-08-00783 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, amending the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and 
Map of the City of Lucas, Texas, as heretofore amended, by granting a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) to allow for the operations of a drive-through on 1.478 acre tract of 
land out of the William Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, City of Lucas, Collin 
County, Texas, and more commonly known as Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart 
Addition, and being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; 
providing for approval of the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; providing a 
repealing clause; providing a penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand 
Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense; and providing for an effective date. 
 
 

Background Information:   
 

The City of Lucas Code of Ordinances requires all businesses with a drive through 
to have an approved Specific Use Permit (SUP). This tract of land is an out parcel 
of Wal-Mart. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:    
 

1. Ordinance 
2. Site plan  
3. Elevations 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:   
 
Increased revenue for the general fund through property taxes and sales tax. 
Increased revenue to the water fund through water use.       
 
 

City of Lucas
City Council Agenda 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Item No. 07 

Recommendation:  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of the SUP at their 
July 10, 2014 meeting with the following conditions: 
 

1. Monument sign, if any, has a frame in the shape of an L with horses and a 
Texas Star, similar to that of Murphy Express. 

2. Wanes coat of Austin Stone on the South, and east elevations. 
3. 50% stone on the North and West elevations. 

 

Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to recommend approval/denial Ordinance # 2014-08-00783 of 
the City of Lucas, Texas, amending the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, as heretofore amended, by granting a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) to allow for the operations of a drive-through on 1.478 acre tract of 
land out of the William Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, City of Lucas, Collin 
County, Texas, and more commonly known as Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart 
Addition.  



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00783 Wendy’s SUP 
Approved: August 7, 2014 

 
 

ORDINANCE # 2014-08-00783 
[Special Use Permit for Wendy’s Drive-Through Located 

on Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart Addition] 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND MAP OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY GRANTING A 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR THE OPERATION OF A 
DRIVE-THROUGH ON A 1.478 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE 
WILLIAM SNIDER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 821, CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MORE COMMONLY KNOWN 
AS LOT 3 OF THE LUCAS WAL-MART ADDITION, AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO; 
PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL OF THE SITE PLAN ATTACHED 
HERETO AS EXHIBIT “B”; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE 
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas, and 
the governing body of the City of Lucas in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and 
the ordinances of the City of Lucas, have given requisite notice of publication and otherwise, and 
after holding due hearings and affording a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally 
and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and in 
the exercise of its legislative discretion have concluded that the Comprehensive Zoning 
Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, Texas, as previously amended, should be amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, 
Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended, to grant a Special Use 
Permit to allow for the operation of a drive-through on a 1.478-acre tract of land out of the 
William Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, and more 
commonly known as Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart Addition, and being more particularly 
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 SECTION 2. That the above-described property shall be used only in the manner and 
for the purposes provided for by the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Lucas as 
heretofore amended, subject to the following special conditions: 

 

Annexation 
Disannexation 
Code of Ordinances 
Other 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00783 Wendy’s SUP 
Approved: August 7, 2014 

(1) The Property shall be developed in accordance with the site plan attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B” and made part hereof for all purposes; 

 
(2) The Property shall only be used as a drive-through for Wendy’s; and 
 
(3) The hours of operation shall be seven days a week from: 5:00 a.m. until 1:00 a.m. 

May 1 through September 1; and, from 5:00 a.m. until 12 midnight September 2 
through April 30. 

 
 SECTION 3. To the extent of any irreconcilable conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance and other ordinances of the City of Lucas governing the use and development of the 
Property and which are not expressly amended by this ordinance, the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be controlling.  
 
 SECTION 4. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 
section of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be 
adjudged or held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended 
hereby, which shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 5. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is 
governed by prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when 
the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
 SECTION 6. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms 
of this Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as 
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the 
sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation 
shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
 SECTION 7. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, 
and it is accordingly so ordained 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 7TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2014. 
 
       



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00783 Wendy’s SUP 
Approved: August 7, 2014 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Rebecca Mark, Mayor  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 
(07-08-14/67017) 

 



 
Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00783 Wendy’s SUP 
Approved: August 7, 2014 

EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
Being a tract of land situated in the William Snider Survey, Abstract No. 821, Collin County, 
Texas and being all of Lot 3, Block A, Wal-Mart Lucas Addition, an addition to the City of 
Lucas, as recorded in Book 2012, Page 457, Plat Records, Collin County, Texas and being a 
portion of those tracts of land described in a deed to Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust 
recorded in Instrument No. 20111111001226530 and Instrument No. 20111111001226540, all in 
Land Records, Collin County, Texas, and being more particularly described by metes and 
bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at an “x” cut in concrete found for the northwest corner of Lot 3, Block A, Wal-
Mart Lucas Addition; 
 
THENCE N 89°13’09” E (record bearing N 89°13’52” E), 249.76 feet to an “x” cut in concrete 
found; 
 
THENCE S 00°46’53” E (record bearing S 00°46’08” E), 257.75 feet to an “x” cut in concrete 
found; 
 
THENCE S 89°32’49” W (record bearing S 89°33’32” W), 251.23 feet to an “x” cut in concrete 
found; 
 
THENCE N 00°27’13” W (record bearing N 00°26’28” W), 256.32 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 64,384 square feet, or 1.478 acres of land, more or less. 

 



 
Exhibit “B” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00783 Wendy’s SUP 
Approved: August 7, 2014 

EXHIBIT “B”  
SITE PLAN 

 



MKurbel
Line

MKurbel
Line



MKurbel
Line



Item No. 08a-08d 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Consent and approve: 

a) The minutes from the July 17, 2014 City Council and the July 22, 2014 Joint 
Budget Workshop Meeting of the City Council and the Lucas Fire Control 
Prevention & EMS District meetings. [Wingo] 

b) Ordinance # 2014-08-00784 of the City of Lucas, Texas, annexing the 
hereinafter described territory into the City of Lucas, Texas, extending the 
boundary limits of the City so as to include said hereinafter described 
territory within the City’s limits, granting to all inhabitants and owners of 
territory all of the rights and privileges of other citizens, and binding the 
inhabitants by all the acts, ordinances and regulations of the city; adopting a 
service plan for the described territory; providing a repealing clause; 
providing a severability clause; and providing an effective date. [Willow 
Springs Middle School, 30 acre tract] 

c) Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 of the City of Lucas, Texas, annexing the 
hereinafter described territory into the City of Lucas, Texas, extending the 
boundary limits of the City so as to include said hereinafter described 
territory within the City’s limits, granting to all inhabitants and owners of 
territory all of the rights and privileges of other citizens, and binding the 
inhabitants by all the acts, ordinances and regulations of the city; adopting a 
service plan for the described territory; providing a repealing clause; 
providing a severability clause; and providing an effective date. [Oakbrook 
Estates, 25.950 acre tract] 

d) Ordinance # 2014-08-00786 of the City Council of the City of Lucas, 
Collin County, Texas, amending the Lucas Code of Ordinances by amending 
Chapter 14 “Zoning” by amending Article 14.04 “Supplementary 
Regulations” by amending Division 2 “Off-Street Parking and Loading” by 
adding Article 14.04.039 “Off-Site Parking Requirements” providing 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Item No. 08a-08d 

regulations for off-site parking; providing a repealing clause; providing a 
severability clause; providing a savings clause; providing a penalty of fine 
not to exceed the sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each offense; and 
providing for an effective date. [Off-Site Parking Regulations] 

 

Background Information:  
 
08a administrative approval. 
08b annexation of the Willow Springs Middle School, 30 acre± tract. 
08c annexation of Oakbrook Estates, 25,950 acre± tract, as per the approved 

development agreement. 
08d Code of Ordinance change concerning off-site parking regulations. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. 08a Minutes from the July 17, 2014 City Council meeting. 
2. 08a Minutes from the July 22, 2014 Joint Budget Workshop Meeting of 

the City Council and the Lucas Fire Control Prevention & EMS 
District meeting. 

3. 08b Ordinance # 2014-08-00784 Willow Springs Middle School 
annexation. 

4. 08c Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 Oakbrook Estates annexation. 
5. 08d Ordinance # 2014-08-00786 Code of Ordinance change concerning 

off-site parking regulations. 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
08a N/A 
08b N/A 
08c Oakbrook Estates annexation will bring additional property tax to the city. 
08d N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Recommend approval. 
 

Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to approve/deny the Consent Agenda as presented. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 9 
City Council Minutes 
July 17, 2014 

City Council Meeting  
July 17, 2014, 7:00 PM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 

Call to Order 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present or (Absent): 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark    Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap   Councilmember Jim Olk 
Councilmember Steve Duke (Absent)  Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
 
Staff Present: 
 
City Manager Joni Clarke   City Secretary Kathy Wingo 
Fire Chief Jim Kitchens    HR Manager Cheryl Meehan 
Public Works Director Stanton Foerster Finance Director Liz Exum  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
It was determined that a Quorum was present. 
Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence cell phones. 
Boy Scout Nicholas Flora and Estella led everyone in saying the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

Citizens’ Input 

1) Citizens’ Input. 

Nicholas Flora, 1555 Bartoncreek, came forward to speak.  Mr. Flora 
is attending the meeting tonight to earn his Boy Scout Citizenship 
Badge. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 9 
City Council Minutes 
July 17, 2014 

Cheryl Meehan came forward to thank the Council, City Manager, 
and especially Staff for the support given to her family in their tragic 
loss of their son, Patrick.  Ms. Meehan made the requests that her 
family be allowed to purchase a bench to place in the park next to 
City Hall to honor Patrick. 

Karen Phillips, 555 Estelle Lane, wanted to speak about fireworks in 
the unincorporated Collin County.  Ms. Phillips land is surrounded by 
the Cimarron subdivision.  While the use of fireworks is prohibited in 
the city limits it is allowed in unincorporated Collin County.  Ms. 
Phillips went on to read an email that she had previously sent to the 
members of Council. 

Community Interest 

2) Items of Community Interest. 

a) Discussion and update regarding the drought contingency plan, 
conservation efforts and watering restrictions as it pertains to the 
City of Lucas. [Fisher/Foerster] 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher says there is no official tally yet, but 
the lake has risen 1 ¼”. 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher thanked the volunteer staff that 
helped out on the 4th of July. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark stated that Ms. Joni Clarke has been doing an 
outstanding job in her role as City Manager.  Ms. Clarke provides 
great leadership not only to the staff but to the citizens of Lucas. 

Public Hearing(s) 

3) Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the voluntary annexation of 
Willow Springs Middle School located at 1101 West Lucas Road. 
Situated in the Ann S. Hurt Survey, Abstract No. 428 and the James 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 9 
City Council Minutes 
July 17, 2014 

Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 538 and being all of a tract of land 
conveyed to Lovejoy Independent School District as recorded in 
volume 2002-0137893 of the deed of records Collin County, Texas. 
[This is the 2nd Public Hearing, the 1st Public Hearing was held on 
June 26, 2014] [Hilbourn] 

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:16 p.m. 

There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST 
this item. 

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:16 p.m. 

No action necessary. 

4) Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the annexation of a parcel of 
land being a 483 acre tract of land in the Pryor Holder Survey, 
Abstract No. 445, the W.D. Burnett Survey, Abstract No. 57, the 
Montgomery Birch Survey, Abstract No. 115, and the William 
Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 476, Collin County, Texas, being a part 
of Lake Lavon, otherwise known as part of Lake Lavon and Bratonia 
Park. [This is the 2nd Public Hearing, the 1st Public Hearing was 
held on June 26, 2014] [Hilbourn] 

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:17 p.m. 

There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST 
this item. 

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:18 p.m. 

No action necessary. 

5) Public Hearing/Discuss and consider the annexation of a parcel of 
land being a 25.950 acre tract of land situated in the John Gray 
Survey, Abstract No. 349, Collin County, State of Texas, and being 
part of that certain 87.1115 acre tract of land (tract 3) described in 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 9 
City Council Minutes 
July 17, 2014 

deed to Lucas Real Estate, LLC, as recorded in instrument 
20111014001101190, Deed Records, Collin County, Texas, more 
commonly known as part of Oakbrook Phase II. [This is the 2nd 
Public Hearing, the 1st Public Hearing was held on June 26, 2014] 
[Hilbourn] 

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:19 p.m. 

There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST 
this item. 

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:19 p.m. 

No action necessary. 

6) Public Hearing/Discuss and consider an amendment to the City of 
Lucas’ Code of Ordinances, Chapter 14, Zoning, Subsection 14.04 
“Supplementary Regulations”, Division 2. Off-Street Parking and 
Loading by creating Sec. 14.04.039 concerning off-site parking 
allowing such alternative location of required parking space off-site.  
[This is the 2nd Public Hearing, the 1st Public Hearing was held on 
June 12, 2014 by the Planning & Zoning Commission] [Hilbourn] 

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:20 p.m. 

There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST 
this item. 

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:24 p.m. 

No action necessary. 

Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda was presented for consideration and action. 

MOTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele made a Motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 5 of 9 
City Council Minutes 
July 17, 2014 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher seconded the Motion.  
Motion carried.  Vote:  6-0. 

7) Consent and Approve: 

a) The minutes from the June 19, 2014 City Council and the June 
26, 2014 City Council Special meetings. [Wingo] 

b) Calling for two (2) Public Hearings regarding the Tax Rate and 
Fiscal Year Budget for 2014-2015, 1st Public Hearing to be held 
on August 21, 2014 and the 2nd Public Hearing to be held on 
September 4, 2014. [Exum] 

c) Amendment No. 9 to the Interlocal Agreement for the Jail 
Services between the City of Lucas and Collin County, with all 
terms and conditions of the agreement to remain in full force 
and effect, for a period of one (1) year, ending September 30, 
2015. [Clarke] 

Regular Agenda 

8) Discussion and possible action regarding employee compensation and 
benefits for fiscal year 2014/2015 including the Texas Municipal 
Retirement System Cost of Living Adjustment, participation in social 
security, participation in the Texas Emergency Services Retirement 
System for specified Fire Department staff members, merit raises, 
cost of living adjustment (COLA), sick time accrual, long-term 
disability insurance and conducting a market survey. 
[Clarke/Meehan] 

Council would like to have staff’s feedback on adding Social 
Security, as it will impact them as well.   

This will be brought back for Council’s consideration at a future 
meeting. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 6 of 9 
City Council Minutes 
July 17, 2014 

9) Discuss and consider the approval of an agreement between the City 
of Lucas and Verizon to allow communication equipment to be 
located on the ground license north of the Winningkoff water tower; 
and authorize the City Manager to execute said agreement and 
memorandums. [Foerster] 

MOTION:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion approve 
an agreement between the City of Lucas and Verizon to 
allow communication equipment to be located on the 
ground license north of the Winningkoff water tower; 
and authorize the City Manager to execute said 
agreement and memorandums. Mayor Pro Tem 
Kathleen Peele seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  
Vote:  6-0. 

10) Discuss and consider an update to the Thoroughfare Plan dated July 
17, 2014. [Foerster] 

MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve the 
Thoroughfare Plan dated July 17, 2014.  
Councilmember Debbie Fisher seconded the Motion.  
Motion carried.  Vote:  6-0.  

11) Discussion and give direction to staff regarding extending the city’s 
nuisance ordinance into the ETJ. [Hilbourn] 

MOTION:  Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to direct 
Staff to bring an ordinance extending the city’s nuisance 
into the ETJ.  Councilmember Jim Olk seconded the 
Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  6-0. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark announced that Items 12 and 13 would be 
switched. 

12) Discuss and consider a request by Todd Wintters on behalf of Lucas 
Christian Academy (LCA) for a Development Agreement to pay 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 7 of 9 
City Council Minutes 
July 17, 2014 

required impact fees over a five year period with the first payment of 
$14,840.20 due in January 2015 and the final payment of $14,840.20 
due in January 2019. [Hilbourn] 

MOTION: Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve the 
Development Agreement with Lucas Christian Academy 
(LCA) for a Development Agreement to pay required 
impact fees over a five year period with the first 
payment of $14,840.20 due in January 2015 and the 
final payment of $14,840.20 due in January 2019, with 
the additions to add a definition of roadway 
improvement, an escrow amount of $ $200K to install 
turn lane, completion by August 2015, provide traffic 
control. Councilmember Philip Lawrence seconded the 
Motion.   The Second to the Motion is withdrawn.  
Motion withdrawn. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve the 
Development Agreement with Lucas Christian Academy 
(LCA) for a Development Agreement to pay required 
impact fees over a five year period with the first 
payment of $14,840.20 due in January 2015 and the 
final payment of $14,840.20 due in January 2019, with 
the additions to add a definition of “roadway 
improvement”, to include    an escrow amount of $200K 
on or before January 1, 2015, lanes to be installed by 
August 2015, provide traffic control for beginning and 
end of each school day.  Councilmember Philip 
Lawrence seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  
6-0. 

13) Discuss and consider a request by Mike Phipps on behalf of Lucas 
Christian Academy (LCA) for an extension on the time to allow for 
the installation of turn lanes until summer of 2015. [Hilbourn] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 8 of 9 
City Council Minutes 
July 17, 2014 

Julie Montgomery, 1516 Anchor Drive, Wylie, Texas serves as Head 
of Lucas Christian Academy.  Ms. Montgomery is recommending 
that a uniform police officer be hired to direct traffic until summer 
2015. 

Mike Phipps, 1407 Red Oak, Farmersville, Texas serves as President 
of the LCA School Board.  Mr. Phipps is accompanied by Chris 
Fryer, Project Manager, who wanted to give some background to the 
current situation.  Mr. Fryer stated that TxDOT will be improving the 
road in 2015, LCA will escrow monies with TxDOT by February 
2015 that will be used to construct the turn lanes.  The turn lanes will 
be included in the improvements to the road by TxDOT.  Mr. Phipps 
gave a review of the traffic flow and the number of cars that remain at 
the campus during the day. 

This item will be included in the Motion for Item 12, above. 

14) Discuss and consider a request submitted by Steve Lenart for a 
Development Agreement between the City of Lucas and CDAG 
Lewis Park LLC regarding the dedication of 5.5 acres of land to the 
City for parks in consideration for number of lots and parks fees. 
[Hilbourn] 

No action, this item will be brought back for Council consideration. 

 
15) Discuss and consider the establishment of the Service Tree Program 

to honor those individuals that have provided extraordinary service to 
the community. [Mark] 
 
MOTION:  Mayor Rebecca Mark made a Motion to approve the 

establishment of the Service Tree Program to honor 
those individuals that have provided extraordinary 
service to the community.  Councilmember Wayne 
Millsap seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  
6-0. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 9 of 9 
City Council Minutes 
July 17, 2014 

16) Adjournment. 

MOTION: Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to 
adjourn the meeting at 9:58 p.m.  Councilmember 
Debbie Fisher seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  
Vote:  6-0. 

These minutes were approved by a majority vote of the City Council 
on August 7, 2014. 

 
____________________________ 
Rebecca Mark 
Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 

City Secretary 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 3 
Joint Budget Workshop City Council & Fire Control Prevention & EMS District Minutes 
July 22, 2014 

Joint Budget Workshop Meeting of the City Council & 
Lucas Fire Control Prevention & EMS District 

July 22, 2014, 6:00 PM 
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 

Call to Order 
President Wayne Millsap called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
 
Present (Absent): 
Mayor Rebecca Mark   Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap  Councilmember Jim Olk (Absent) 
Councilmember Steve Duke  Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
 
Lucas Fire Control Prevention & EMS District Board Members Present (Absent): 
President Wayne Millsap   Vice-President Kathleen Peele 
Member Rebecca Mark   Member Steve Duke 
Member Jim Olk (Absent)  Member Philip Lawrence 
Member Debbie Fisher 
 
Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  City Secretary Kathy Wingo 
Finance Director Liz Exum  Human Resource Manager Cheryl Meehan 
Fire Chief Jim Kitchens    Public Works Director Stanton Foerster   
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
It was determined that a Quorum was present. 
Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence cell phones. 

Workshop Agenda 

1) Discussion of the proposed Lucas Fire Control Prevention & EMS District 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2014 – 2015. 

Discussion only no action taken. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 3 
Joint Budget Workshop City Council & Fire Control Prevention & EMS District Minutes 
July 22, 2014 

The proposed budget will be brought back to the members of the Lucas Fire 
Control Prevention & EMS District on August 21, 2014 and September 4, 2014 
at 6:30 p.m. 

2) Discussion of the proposed City of Lucas Budget for Fiscal Year 2014 – 2015. 
City Manager Joni Clarke and Finance Manager Liz Exum reviewed the 
proposed budget for FY 2014-2015. 
 
The proposed budget will be brought back to Council for Public Hearings on 
August 21, 2014 and September 4, 2014 at 7 p.m. 

3) Adjournment. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Steve Duke made a Motion to adjourn the meeting 
at 8:51 p.m.  Councilmember Philip Lawrence seconded the 
Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  6-0. 

These minutes were approved by a majority vote of the members of City 
Council on August 7, 2014, and the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention & EMS 
District members on August 21, 2014. 

 
 

            
Rebecca Mark 
Mayor 

 
 
 

            
Wayne Millsap 
Lucas Fire Control, Prevention & EMS District 
President 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

        
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 3 
Joint Budget Workshop City Council & Fire Control Prevention & EMS District Minutes 
July 22, 2014 

Secretary to the Lucas Fire, Control Prevention & 
EMS District 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00784 Annexation –Willow Springs Middle School 
Approved: August 7, 2014   1 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE # 2014-08-00784 
[ANNEXATION – WILLOW SPRINGS MIDDLE SCHOOL] 

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, ANNEXING THE 

HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED TERRITORY INTO THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS, EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS OF THE CITY 
SO AS TO INCLUDE SAID HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED TERRITORY 
WITHIN THE CITY’S LIMITS, GRANTING TO ALL INHABITANTS 
AND OWNERS OF TERRITORY ALL OF THE RIGHTS AND 
PRIVILEGES OF OTHER CITIZENS, AND BINDING THE 
INHABITANTS BY ALL THE ACTS, ORDINANCES AND 
REGULATIONS OF THE CITY; ADOPTING A SERVICE PLAN FOR 
THE DESCRIBED TERRITORY; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, this ordinance pertains to the hereinafter described territory consisting of a 
30.000-acre tract of land, more or less, being part of the Ann S. Hurt Survey, Abstract No. 428 
and being part of the James Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 528, and, which is more particularly 
described in Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lucas has given the requisite notices and 
conducted the public hearings required by Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted a service plan as required by Section 43.056 
of the Texas Local Government Code for the territory, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the territory to be annexed lies within the exclusive extra territorial 
jurisdiction of Lucas, Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the requirements for annexation of this area are as stated in Chapter 43 of 
the Texas Local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lucas has concluded that said territory 
should be annexed to and made a part of the City of Lucas, Texas; 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. That the territory consisting of a 30.000-acre tract of land, more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, is 

Annexation 
Disannexation 
Code of Ordinances 
Other 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00784 Annexation –Willow Springs Middle School 
Approved: August 7, 2014   2 
 

situated within the exclusive extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City and adjacent and contiguous 
thereto, be and the same is hereby annexed to the City of Lucas, Texas.   

SECTION 2.  The boundary limits of the City of Lucas, Texas, shall be and are hereby 
extended to include said territory within the City limits and the territory described herein shall be 
and is hereby included within the territorial limits of the City, subject to all the acts, ordinances, 
resolutions and regulations of said City.  The inhabitants of the property described herein and 
annexed hereby shall hereafter be entitled to all rights and privileges of other citizens of the City 
of Lucas, and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions, and regulations of the City. 

 
 SECTION 3. That the service plan for the territory is approved by the City Council of 
the City of Lucas, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and made a part hereof for all 
purposes, the same as if fully copied herein, be and the same is hereby adopted by the City of 
Lucas. 
 
 SECTION 4. That all provisions of the ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, in 
conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other 
provisions of the ordinances of the City not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect.    
 
 SECTION 5. That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 
section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same 
shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision thereof other 
than the part so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity 
of the Code of Ordinances as a whole. 
 
 SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and the publication of the caption, as the law in such cases provides. 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 7TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2014. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Rebecca Mark, Mayor  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 
(06-02-14/66451) 

 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00784 Annexation –Willow Springs Middle School 
Approved: August 7, 2014   3 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description  

Willow Springs Middle School/30.000-Acre Tract 
 

 
 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00784 Annexation –Willow Springs Middle School 
Approved: August 7, 2014   4 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
SERVICE PLAN FOR ANNEXED AREA 

 
ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN FOR THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 

 
For the territory consisting of two tracts of land, totaling 30.000 acres, and which is more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
FOR SERVICES EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY AFTER DATE OF ANNEXATION 
 
1. POLICE PROTECTION 
 
The City of Lucas, Texas will provide police protection to the newly annexed tract at the same or 
similar level now being provided to other areas of the City of Lucas, Texas with similar 
topography, land use and population within the newly annexed area. 
 
2. FIRE PROTECTION AND AMBULANCE SERVICE 
 
The City of Lucas, Texas will provide fire protection to the newly annexed tract at the same or 
similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City of Lucas, Texas, with 
similar topography, land use and population with the City.  Ambulance service will be provided 
to the newly annexed tract at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other 
areas of the City of Lucas, Texas, with similar topography, land use and population with the 
City. 
 
3. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
 
The City of Lucas, Texas will provide residential solid waste collection to the newly annexed 
tract at the same or similar level now being provided to other areas of the City of Lucas, Texas 
with similar topography, land use and population within the newly annexed area. 
 
4. WATER FACILITIES 
 
Maintenance of any public water facilities in the area to be annexed that are not in the service 
area of another water utility will begin upon the effective date of the annexation using existing 
personnel and equipment. 
 
5. MAINTENANCE OF ROADS AND STREETS 
 
Any and all roads, streets or alleyways which have been dedicated to the City of Lucas, Texas, 
shall be maintained to the same degree and extent that other roads, streets and alleyways are 
maintained in areas with similar topography, land  use and population density.  Any and all 
lighting of roads, streets and alleyways which may be positioned in a right-of-way, roadway or 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00784 Annexation –Willow Springs Middle School 
Approved: August 7, 2014   5 
 

utility company easement shall be maintained by the applicable utility company servicing the 
City of Lucas, Texas, pursuant to the rules, regulations and fees of such utility. 
 
6. MAINTENANCE OF PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS 
 
The City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any parks, 
playgrounds or swimming pools now located in the area proposed for annexation.  Any existing 
private parks, playgrounds, swimming pools and other recreational and community facilities 
within the annexation area will be unaffected by the annexation. 
 
7. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLICLY OWNED FACILITY, BUILDING OR  MUNICIPAL 
 SERVICE 
 
The City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any publicly 
owned facility, building or other municipal service now located in the area proposed for 
annexation.  In the event any such publicly owned facility, building or municipal service does 
exist and are public facilities, the City of Lucas, Texas, will maintain such areas to the same 
extent and degree that it maintains publicly owned facilities, buildings or municipal services of 
the City now incorporated in the City of Lucas, Texas. 
 
CONSTRUCTION OF ANY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 
1. POLICE PROTECTION, FIRE PROTECTION AND SOLID WASTE 
 COLLECTION 
 
The Council of the City of Lucas, Texas finds and determines it to be unnecessary to acquire or 
construct any capital improvement for the purposes of providing police protection, fire protection 
or solid waste collection.  The City Council finds and determines that it has at the present time 
adequate facilities to provide the same type, kind and level of protection and service which is 
presently being administered to other areas already incorporated in the City of Lucas, Texas, 
with the same or similar topography, land use and population density. 
 
2. WATER AND WASTE WATER FACILITIES 
 
The City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, finds and determines it to be unnecessary to 
construct any additional capital improvements for the purpose of providing water and waste 
water services.  The City Council finds and determines that it has, at the present time, adequate 
facilities to provide the same type, kind and level of service which is presently being 
administered to other parts of Lucas, Texas, with the same topography, land use and population 
density. 
 
3. ROADS AND STREETS 
 
Maintenance of properly dedicated roads and streets will be consistent with the maintenance 
provided by the City to other roads and streets will be consistent with the maintenance provided 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00784 Annexation –Willow Springs Middle School 
Approved: August 7, 2014   6 
 

by the City to other roads and streets in areas of similar topography, land use and sub-
development of the annexed property, the developers will be required pursuant to the ordinances 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, to provide internal and peripheral streets and to construct those 
streets in accordance with the specifications required by the City of Lucas, Texas, for the 
properly dedicated street. 
 
4. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this service plan, a landowner within the newly annexed 
area will not be required to fund capital improvements necessary to provide municipal services in 
a manner inconsistent with Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code, unless otherwise agreed 
to by the landowner. 
 

SPECIFIC FINDINGS 
 
The City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas finds and determines that this proposed Service 
Plan will not provide any fewer services, and it will not provide a lower level of service in the 
area proposed to be annexed than were in existence in the proposed area at the time immediately 
preceding the annexation process. 
 
Because of the differing characteristics of topography, land utilization and population density, 
the service levels which may ultimately be provided in the newly annexed area may differ 
somewhat from services provided in other areas of the City of Lucas, Texas.  These differences 
are specifically dictated because of differing characteristics of the property and the City of 
Lucas, Texas will undertake to perform consistent with this contract so as to provide the newly 
annexed area with the same type, kind and quality of service presently enjoyed by the citizens of 
the City of Lucas, Texas who reside in areas of similar topography, land utilization and 
population.  



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 Annexation – Oak Brook Estates 
Approved: August 7, 2014   1 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE # 2014-08-00785 
[ANNEXATION – OAK BROOK ESTATES] 

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, ANNEXING THE 

HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED TERRITORY INTO THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS, EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS OF THE CITY 
SO AS TO INCLUDE SAID HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED TERRITORY 
WITHIN THE CITY’S LIMITS, GRANTING TO ALL INHABITANTS 
AND OWNERS OF TERRITORY ALL OF THE RIGHTS AND 
PRIVILEGES OF OTHER CITIZENS, AND BINDING THE 
INHABITANTS BY ALL THE ACTS, ORDINANCES AND 
REGULATIONS OF THE CITY; ADOPTING A SERVICE PLAN FOR 
THE DESCRIBED TERRITORY; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, this ordinance pertains to the hereinafter described territory consisting of a 
25.950-acre tract of land, more or less, situated in Collin County, Texas, and being part of the 
John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, and being part of that certain 87.1115-acre tract of land 
(Tract 3) described in deed to Lucas Real Estate, LLC, as recorded in Instrument 
20111014001101190, Deed Records, Collin County, and which is more particularly described 
and identified in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lucas has given the requisite notices and 
conducted the public hearings required by Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted a service plan as required by Section 43.056 
of the Texas Local Government Code for the territory, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “C”; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the territory to be annexed lies within the exclusive extra territorial 
jurisdiction of Lucas, Texas; and 
 
 WHERE, the requirements for annexation of this area are as stated in Chapter 43 of the 
Texas Local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lucas has concluded that said territory 
should be annexed to and made a part of the City of Lucas, Texas. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
TEXAS: 
 

Annexation 
Disannexation 
Code of Ordinances 
Other 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 Annexation – Oak Brook Estates 
Approved: August 7, 2014   2 
 

SECTION 1. That the territory consisting of a 25.950-acre tract of land, more or less, 
situated in Collin County, Texas, and being part of the John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, and 
being part of that certain 87.1115-acre tract of land (Tract 3) described in deed to Lucas Real 
Estate, LLC, as recorded in Instrument 20111014001101190, Deed Records, Collin County, and 
which is more particularly described and identified in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”, attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, is situated within the exclusive extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City and adjacent and contiguous thereto, be and the same is hereby annexed 
to the City of Lucas, Texas.   

 
SECTION 2.  The boundary limits of the City of Lucas, Texas, shall be and are hereby 

extended to include said territory within the City limits and the territory described herein shall be 
and is hereby included within the territorial limits of the City, subject to all the acts, ordinances, 
resolutions and regulations of said City.  The inhabitants of the property described herein and 
annexed hereby shall hereafter be entitled to all rights and privileges of other citizens of the City 
of Lucas, and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions, and regulations of the City. 

 
 SECTION 3. That the service plan for the territory is approved by the City Council of 
the City of Lucas, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and made a part hereof for all 
purposes, the same as if fully copied herein, be and the same is hereby adopted by the City of 
Lucas. 
 
 SECTION 4. That all provisions of the ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, in 
conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other 
provisions of the ordinances of the City not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect.    
 
 SECTION 5. That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 
section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same 
shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision thereof other 
than the part so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity 
of the Code of Ordinances as a whole. 
 
 SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and the publication of the caption, as the law in such cases provides. 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 Annexation – Oak Brook Estates 
Approved: August 7, 2014   3 
 

 DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 7TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2014. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Rebecca Mark, Mayor  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Kathy Wingo, TRMC, CMC, City Secretary 
(06-24-14/66827) 

 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 Annexation – Oak Brook Estates 
Approved: August 7, 2014   4 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description  

Oak Brook Estates/25.950 Acres 
 

DESCRIPTION 
 

BEING a 25.950 acre tract of land situated in the John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, Collin 
County, State of Texas, and being part of that certain 87.1115 acre tract of land (Tract 3) 
described in deed to Lucas Real Estate, LLC, as recorded in Instrument 20111014001101190, 
Deed Records, Collin County, Texas, said 25.950 acre tract being more particularly described by 
metes and bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch iron rod with cap stamped “5439”found for the southwest corner of 
said 87.1115 acre tract and an interior ell corner of a 220.733 acre tract of land described in deed 
to DR Horton – Texas, Ltd, as recorded in Instrument 20110830000915300 of said Deed 
Records; 

THENCE North 01 degrees 12 minutes 35 seconds West, a distance of 862.05 feet to a 1/2-inch 
iron rod with cap stamped “5439” found for corner; 

THENCE North 89 degrees 11 minutes 11 seconds East, a distance of 1318.46 feet to a 1/2‐inch 
iron rod found for an interior ell corner of said 87.1115 acre tract; 

THENCE  South  00  degrees  31 minutes  30  seconds  East, with  the  southerly  east  line  of  said 
87.1115 acre tract, a distance of 645.34 feet to a point for corner; 

THENCE North 88 degrees 57 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 1.52 feet to a 5/8‐inch iron 
rod  with  cap  stamped  “DCA”  found  for  the  northwest  corner  of  a  5.00  acre  tract  of  land 
described in deed to Lucas Real Estate, LLC, as recorded in Instrument 20140107000014490 of 
said Deed Records and the southwest corner of a 5.000 acre tract of land described in deed to 
Lee G. Bauer and Betty A. Bauer, as recorded in Volume 1939, Page 668 of said Deed Records; 

THENCE South 00 degrees 09 minutes 30 seconds East, with the west boundary line of said 5.00 
acre Lucas Real Estate tract, a distance of 213.79 feet to a 1/2‐inch iron pipe found for the most 
southern southeast corner of said 87.1115 acre tract and an exterior ell corner of said 220.733 
acre tract; 

THENCE South 89 degrees 03 minutes 30 seconds West, with a common boundary  line of said 
87.1115  acre  tract  and  said  220.733  acre  tract,  a  distance  of  1308.33  feet  to  the  POINT OF 
BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 1,130,375 square feet or 25.950 acres of land. 

 
 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 Annexation – Oak Brook Estates 
Approved: August 7, 2014   5 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
Depiction 

Oak Brook Estates/25.950 Acres 
 
 

 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 Annexation – Oak Brook Estates 
Approved: August 7, 2014   6 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
SERVICE PLAN FOR ANNEXED AREA 

 
ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN FOR THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 

 
For approximately, 25.950-acre tract of land, more or less, situated in Collin County, Texas, and 
being part of the John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, and being part of that certain 87.1115-acre 
tract of land (Tract 3) described in deed to Lucas Real Estate, LLC, as recorded in Instrument 
20111014001101190, Deed Records, Collin County, and which is more particularly described 
and identified in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” attached hereto. 
 
FOR SERVICES EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY AFTER DATE OF ANNEXATION 
 
1. POLICE PROTECTION 
 
The City of Lucas, Texas will provide police protection to the newly annexed tract at the same or 
similar level now being provided to other areas of the City of Lucas, Texas with similar 
topography, land use and population within the newly annexed area. 
 
2. FIRE PROTECTION AND AMBULANCE SERVICE 
 
The City of Lucas, Texas will provide fire protection to the newly annexed tract at the same or 
similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City of Lucas, Texas, with 
similar topography, land use and population with the City.  Ambulance service will be provided 
to the newly annexed tract at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other 
areas of the City of Lucas, Texas, with similar topography, land use and population with the 
City. 
 
3. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
 
The City of Lucas, Texas will provide residential solid waste collection to the newly annexed 
tract at the same or similar level now being provided to other areas of the City of Lucas, Texas 
with similar topography, land use and population within the newly annexed area. 
 
4. WATER FACILITIES 
 
Maintenance of any public water facilities in the area to be annexed that are not in the service 
area of another water utility will begin upon the effective date of the annexation using existing 
personnel and equipment. 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 Annexation – Oak Brook Estates 
Approved: August 7, 2014   7 
 

5. MAINTENANCE OF ROADS AND STREETS 
 
Any and all roads, streets or alleyways which have been dedicated to the City of Lucas, Texas, 
shall be maintained to the same degree and extent that other roads, streets and alleyways are 
maintained in areas with similar topography, land  use and population density.  Any and all 
lighting of roads, streets and alleyways which may be positioned in a right-of-way, roadway or 
utility company easement shall be maintained by the applicable utility company servicing the 
City of Lucas, Texas, pursuant to the rules, regulations and fees of such utility. 
 
6. MAINTENANCE OF PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS 
 
The City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any parks, 
playgrounds or swimming pools now located in the area proposed for annexation.  Any existing 
private parks, playgrounds, swimming pools and other recreational and community facilities 
within the annexation area will be unaffected by the annexation. 
 
7. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLICLY OWNED FACILITY, BUILDING OR  MUNICIPAL 
 SERVICE 
 
The City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any publicly 
owned facility, building or other municipal service now located in the area proposed for 
annexation.  In the event any such publicly owned facility, building or municipal service does 
exist and are public facilities, the City of Lucas, Texas, will maintain such areas to the same 
extent and degree that it maintains publicly owned facilities, buildings or municipal services of 
the City now incorporated in the City of Lucas, Texas. 
 
CONSTRUCTION OF ANY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 
1. POLICE PROTECTION, FIRE PROTECTION AND SOLID WASTE 
 COLLECTION 
 
The Council of the City of Lucas, Texas finds and determines it to be unnecessary to acquire or 
construct any capital improvement for the purposes of providing police protection, fire protection 
or solid waste collection.  The City Council finds and determines that it has at the present time 
adequate facilities to provide the same type, kind and level of protection and service which is 
presently being administered to other areas already incorporated in the City of Lucas, Texas, 
with the same or similar topography, land use and population density. 
 
2. WATER AND WASTE WATER FACILITIES 
 
The City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, finds and determines it to be unnecessary to 
construct any additional capital improvements for the purpose of providing water and waste 
water services.  The City Council finds and determines that it has, at the present time, adequate 
facilities to provide the same type, kind and level of service which is presently being 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00785 Annexation – Oak Brook Estates 
Approved: August 7, 2014   8 
 

administered to other parts of Lucas, Texas, with the same topography, land use and population 
density. 
 
3. ROADS AND STREETS 
 
Maintenance of properly dedicated roads and streets will be consistent with the maintenance 
provided by the City to other roads and streets will be consistent with the maintenance provided 
by the City to other roads and streets in areas of similar topography, land use and sub-
development of the annexed property, the developers will be required pursuant to the ordinances 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, to provide internal and peripheral streets and to construct those 
streets in accordance with the specifications required by the City of Lucas, Texas, for the 
properly dedicated street. 
 
4. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this service plan, a landowner within the newly annexed 
area will not be required to fund capital improvements necessary to provide municipal services in 
a manner inconsistent with Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code, unless otherwise agreed 
to by the landowner. 
 

SPECIFIC FINDINGS 
 
The City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas finds and determines that this proposed Service 
Plan will not provide any fewer services, and it will not provide a lower level of service in the 
area proposed to be annexed than were in existence in the proposed area at the time immediately 
preceding the annexation process. 
 
Because of the differing characteristics of topography, land utilization and population density, 
the service levels which may ultimately be provided in the newly annexed area may differ 
somewhat from services provided in other areas of the City of Lucas, Texas.  These differences 
are specifically dictated because of differing characteristics of the property and the City of 
Lucas, Texas will undertake to perform consistent with this contract so as to provide the newly 
annexed area with the same type, kind and quality of service presently enjoyed by the citizens of 
the City of Lucas, Texas who reside in areas of similar topography, land utilization and 
population.  



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00786 Amending Chapter 14 Off-Site Parking 
Approved:  August 7, 2014 1 

 
 

ORDINANCE # 2014-08-00786 
[ORDINANCE AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 14 

“ZONING”] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, AMENDING THE LUCAS CODE OF 
ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 14 “ZONING” BY 
AMENDING ARTICLE 14.04 “SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS” BY 
AMENDING DIVISION 2 “OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING” BY 
ADDING ARTICLE 14.04.039 “OFF-SITE PARKING REQUIREMENTS” 
PROVIDING REGULATIONS FOR OFF-SITE PARKING; PROVIDING 
A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas and the City 
Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas with 
reference to the granting of zoning classifications and changes, have given the requisite notices by 
publication and otherwise, and have held due hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all 
property owners generally and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the 
vicinity thereof, and the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas is of the opinion and finds that said 
zoning change should be granted and that the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map should be 
amended;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, is hereby amended by 
amending Chapter 14 “Zoning” by amending Article 14.04 “Supplementary Regulations” by 
amending Division 2 “Off-Street Parking and Loading” by adding section 14.04.039 “Off-site 
parking requirements”, to read as follows: 
 

“CHAPTER 14 
 

ZONING 
 

. . .  
 

ARTICLE 14.04   SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

. . .  

Annexation 
Disannexation 
Code of Ordinances 
Other 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00786 Amending Chapter 14 Off-Site Parking 
Approved:  August 7, 2014 2 

 
Division 2.  Off-Street Parking and Loading 

 
. . .  
 
Section 14.04.039 Off-site parking requirements 
 
Required parking for a development may be located off-site when approved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the City Council.  The Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City 
Council may authorize such alternative location of required parking space, along with any 
conditions determined necessary to promote safety and will adequately serve the public interest, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
(a) Except for the location, all other requirements relating to off-street parking shall be met. 
 
(b) Such space shall be conveniently usable without causing unreasonable: 
 

(1) Hazard to pedestrians; 
 
(2) Hazard to vehicular traffic; 
 
(3) Traffic congestion; or 
 
(4) Detriment to the appropriate use of other properties in the vicinity. 

 
(c) A written agreement shall be drawn to the satisfaction of the city attorney and executed 
by all parties concerned, assuring the continued availability of the off-street parking facility for 
the development it is intended to serve, subject to a minimum of the following conditions: 
 

(1) Shuttling service provided to and from the offsite parking location starting a 
minimum of one hour prior to the start of the event and for a minimum of one 
hour following the event; and 

 
(2) Advertisement posted three (3) business days prior to the event disclosing the site 

of off-site parking and shuttle service. 
 

Secs. 14.04.040-14.04.070 Reserved” 
 
Section 2. That all ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions 
of said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or 
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-08-00786 Amending Chapter 14 Off-Site Parking 
Approved:  August 7, 2014 3 

portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as 
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the 
sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation 
shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 5. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 7TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2014. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Rebecca Mark, Mayor  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 
(03-19-14/65275) 

 
 
       



Item No. 08e 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Cheryl Meehan, HR Manager 
 
Agenda Item:  
 
Consent and approve an amendment to the contract with Lucas Municipal Judge 
Huffman regarding requirements and compensation and authorize the Mayor to 
execute the agreement. 
 

Background Information:   
 
The City of Lucas currently files its new Class C Misdemeanor cases with Collin 
County Justice Court 3-1.  To continue to resolve the City’s outstanding case load 
and to manage code violations, the City of Lucas will occasionally require the 
services of Judge Huffman.  For example, on our existing caseload, we would need 
Judge Huffman to sign off on the cases as staff closes them or recommend new 
warrants be issued.  To help facilitate the reduction in outstanding cases, staff will 
be contacting individuals by mail regarding outstanding warrant to encourage them 
to clear their cases.   
 
This amendment to the contract has been written and approved by the City 
Attorney, Joe Gorfida. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. First Amendment to the Agreement for Municipal Court Judge 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The Municipal Judge will be compensated at a rate of $500 per month when the 
City requests her services because of an active court docket.  Judge Huffman will 
also be compensated at a rate of $125 per hour with a two hour minimum for 
consultation.  The fiscal year 2014/1015 includes $4,000 for these services which 
is a reduction of $2,000 when compared to prior year. 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 7, 2014 



Item No. 08e 

Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends the acceptance and approval of the amendment. 
 
Motion:  
 
Included in the Consent Agenda Motion. 



CITY OF LUCAS/DANA HUFFMAN 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE – PAGE 2 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § FIRST AMENDMENT TO  
    § AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 
 
 This FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL COURT 
JUDGE is made by and between the City of Lucas, Texas, ("City") and Dana Huffman ("Judge") 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "Party" or "Parties"), acting by and through their 
respective representatives. 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into that certain Agreement for Municipal 
Court Judge dated February 7, 2013 (the “Agreement”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement as set forth herein; 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and 
other valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. That Article I, Term, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 “The Term of this First Amendment shall commence effective May 1, 2014, (the 

“Effective Date”) and end on September 30, 2015, for the remainder of a two-year term.” 
 
2. That Article IV, Compensation and Method of Payment, is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 
 4.1 City shall compensate Judge in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per 

month that has an Active Court Docket.  Active Court Docket shall mean one (1) 
scheduled court date per month where the Judge holds court for the purpose of pre-trials 
and/or trials. 

 
 4.2 City shall compensate Judge at the rate of One Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars 

($125.00) per hour for additional court duties with a 2-hour minimum payment. 
 
 4.3 City shall compensate the Judge for services provided pursuant to this Agreement 

and, as set forth in this Article, within thirty (30) days after receiving the Judge’s invoice 
reflecting her time and billing, provided there are no errors or discrepancies.  

 
 4.4 The Parties agree that if the City’s Municipal Court case load increases for any 

reason, the Parties shall review the terms of this Agreement and the Judge’s 
compensation.” 

 
3. The Agreement shall continue in full force and effect except as amended herein.  If any 
terms or conditions contained in the First Amendment are inconsistent with the Agreement, the 
terms and conditions contained in the First Amendment shall be controlling. 



 
CITY OF LUCAS/DANA HUFFMAN 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE – PAGE  
 

 EXECUTED this 7th day of August, 2014. 
 
       City of Lucas, Texas 

 
 

 By: ______________________________ 
 Rebecca Mark, Mayor 

 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
By:   

________________________________ 
 Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 
 (07-18-14/67195) 

 
 
 EXECUTED this _________ day of ________________________, 2014. 
 
 
       By: ______________________________ 
        Dana Huffman, Judge 
 
 
 



Item No. 08f 

 
 

 
Name & Title of Requestor: Stanton Foerster, Public Works Director 
 
Agenda Item:  

Consent and approve a Baxter Information Technology Consulting Services 
professional services agreement between the City of Lucas and Baxter IT and 
authorize the City Manager to execute said agreement. 

Background Information:  
 
The City of Lucas outsources its information technology function which includes 
but is not limited to hardware and software implementation, network 
administration and security, support related services, communication enhancement, 
building surveillance management and audio support services.   
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Baxter Information Technology Consulting Services Agreement  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The annualized cost of information technology related services is $68,850 and this 
is included in the fiscal year 2014/2015 proposed budget.   This agreement is 
effective October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
Motion:  

Included in the Consent Agenda Motion. 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 7, 2014 











Item No. 08g 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor:  Stanton Foerster, Public Works Director 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Consent and approve the purchase of Opticom activated fire station flashing signs 
as part of the RTR W Lucas Road/Country Club Intersection Project; and authorize 
the Mayor to purchase the signs in the amount of $24,427.92 from Consolidated 
Traffic Controls, Inc. 
 

Background Information:  
 
These signs were removed from the original project due to budget constraints.  
There is now funds available to purchase these signs hand have them installed. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Contract No.: PE-05-13 from Consolidated Traffic Controls 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
There are funds available in FY 13-14 line item 21-8210-491-111 for this 
purchase. 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval of Contract No.: PE-05-13 from Consolidated Traffic 
Controls in the amount of $24,427.92 
 
Motion:  
 
Included in the Consent Agenda Motion. 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Contract
No.:

PE-05-13
Date

Prepared:
5/9/2014

Buying
Agency:

Contractor:

Contact
Person:

Prepared
By:

Phone: Phone:

Fax: Fax:

Email: Email:

Quan Unit Pr Total

2 8639.66 17279.32

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1 483.6 483.6

1 20 20

1 205 205

6440

24427.92

Quan Unit Pr Total

0

0

0

0

0

0%

0

24427.92

CONTRACT PRICING WORKSHEET
For Catalog & Price Sheet Type Purchases

800-448-8850

General Description
of Product:

Fire Station Warning System & Opticom Intersection Service  Page 1 of 2 

sfoerster@lucastexas.us

Consolidated Traffic Controls, Inc.

Frank Fisher

800-448-8841

frank@ctc-traffic.com

This Worksheet is prepared by Contractor and given to End User.  If a PO is issued, both documents 
MUST be faxed to H-GAC @ 713-993-4548.  Therefore please type or print legibly.

Model 721 IR Opiticom Detector for intersection Lucas Rd & Country Club Rd.    (78-8095-3853-7)

CTC Model 500B IR Detector Mounting Mounting Bracket     

A. Catalog / Price Sheet Items being purchased - Itemize Below - Attach Additional Sheet If Necessary

City of Lucas, Texas

Stanton Foerster, PE

972-727-8999  Ext. 246

Each RTC Manufacturing System includes the following equipment:   

  Dual Battery Enclosure w/ (2) 58 Ahr Gel Cell Batteries & Opticom Detect/Relay Solar Control Panel 

Delivery Date: 4 to 5 Weeks ARO D. Total Purchase Price (A+B+C): 

B. Unpublished Options, Accessory or Service items - Itemize Below - Attach Additional Sheet If Necessary
(Note: Unpublished Items are any which were not submitted and priced in contractor's bid.)

Subtotal B:

Total From Other Sheets, If Any:

C. Other Allowances, Discounts, Trade-Ins, Freight, Make Ready or Miscellaneous Charges

Description

Model 138 IR Opticom Detector Cable    500' spool.     (78-8009-6556-4)

Subtotal C:

Check: The total cost of Unpublished Options (Subtotal B) cannot exceed 25% of the total 
from Section A.

For this transaction the percentage is: 

Total From Other Sheets, If Any:

Subtotal A:

  20' Spun Aluminum Pole with Square Base, Collar, and Screw-In 8' Pelco Anchor 

  Back-to-Back Dual MUTCD W11-8 Fire Station Warning Signs and 'Fire Trucks' Text Signs 

Catalog / Price Sheet
Name:

Traffic Control, Enforcement & Signal Preemption Equipment

Description

Solar Pwr  Fire Station Warning System w/ IR Opticom Activation & Preempt Signal Relay (600001E)

  (2) 20 Watt Solar Panels with Top-of-Pole Mounting Hardware 

  Back-to-Back Dual 12" Yellow Poly Signal Heads w/ 12" Amber LEDs and mounting hardware 

  Opticom Components:  IR Opticom 721 Detector; 762 Phase Selector on Control Panel; 794H Emitter 



Contract
No.:

PE-05-13
Date

Prepared:
5/9/2014

Buying
Agency:

Contractor:

Contact
Person:

Prepared
By:

Phone: Phone:

Fax: Fax:

Email: Email:

Quan Unit Pr Total

0

28 230 6440

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

6440

Quan Unit Pr Total

0

0

0

0

0

0%

0

6440

Subtotal A:

the fire station warning system.   Pricing includes all required equipment and materials for installation.   

optimize intersection detectors for detection of premption signal and preemption signal relay from    

Catalog / Price Sheet
Name:

Traffic Control, Enforcement & Signal Preemption Equipment   Page 2 of 2 

Description

which includes enclosure, solar panels, back-to back beacons, MUTCD signs, and IR Opticom  

At intersection of Lucas Rd & Country Club Rd install additional 721 Detectort and repositon and 

detector and emitter equipement.    Perform system test and verify proper operation.     

Subtotal C:

Check: The total cost of Unpublished Options (Subtotal B) cannot exceed 25% of the total 
from Section A.

For this transaction the percentage is: 

Total From Other Sheets, If Any:

Delivery Date: 4 to 5 Weeks ARO D. Total Purchase Price (A+B+C): 

B. Unpublished Options, Accessory or Service items - Itemize Below - Attach Additional Sheet If Necessary
(Note: Unpublished Items are any which were not submitted and priced in contractor's bid.)

Subtotal B:

Total From Other Sheets, If Any:

C. Other Allowances, Discounts, Trade-Ins, Freight, Make Ready or Miscellaneous Charges

Description

This Worksheet is prepared by Contractor and given to End User.  If a PO is issued, both documents 
MUST be faxed to H-GAC @ 713-993-4548.  Therefore please type or print legibly.

A. Catalog / Price Sheet Items being purchased - Itemize Below - Attach Additional Sheet If Necessary

City of Lucas, Texas

Stanton Foerster, PE

972-727-8999  Ext. 246

CTC Installation Services. Scope of work includes utility line locates;  installation of screw-in pole 

anchors; assembly of pole, base, collar to anchor;  assembly of fire station warning flasher systerm  

CONTRACT PRICING WORKSHEET
For Catalog & Price Sheet Type Purchases

800-448-8850

General Description
of Product:

sfoerster@lucastexas.us

Consolidated Traffic Controls, Inc.

Frank Fisher

800-448-8841

frank@ctc-traffic.com



Item No. 09 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Delta Moody, Utility Billing 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider the approval of the Utility Billing Administrative Guidelines. 
 

Background Information:  
 
The Utility Billing Division is in the process of establishing administrative 
guidelines to direct our operations and interactions with our utility customers. 
 
The water rates and utility service fees are currently set by ordinance and a Master 
Fee schedule through an adopted resolution.  The proposed fee changes will be 
included in the updated Master Fee Schedule (coming to a future meeting for 
Council consideration). 
 
There have been situations which could have been resolved had there been formal 
procedures in place.  These Administrative Guidelines would serve as an excellent 
communication tool for our community. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Utility Billing Policy and Procedures. 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 
 

Motion:  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Item No. 09 

 
I make a Motion to approve/deny the Utility Billing Administrative Guidelines 
and authorize the City Manager to make revisions as necessary. 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

City of Lucas 
Utility Billing Administrative Guidelines 
 
The City of Lucas strives to deliver exceptional customer service and embraces the 
fair and equitable treatment of all its customers.  By establishing written policies for 
the administration of the City’s utility billing function, it helps to promote an 
understanding of the system and promotes fairness in the manner that invoices are 
processed and the accounting practices associated with utility revenue.  This policy 
applies to all residential and commercial water customers and those customers that 
receive trash disposal and/or recycling services through the City’s provider, Barnes 
Waste Disposal.  Please note that to receive curbside recycling service, you will need 
to contract with Barnes Waste Disposal directly.  The City of Lucas has a utility 
billing representative ready to assist you and answer any questions that may arise.   
 
How does a customer sign up for residential or commercial water and trash 
disposal service? 
To request service, a customer is required to complete a Service Application and 
remit the required deposit and service fee.  Advanced notice is required, please allow 
a minimum of 24 hours for service set-up to be completed.   
 
You may request these services by downloading the Service Application from the 
City’s website (www.lucastexas.us). 
 
Please deliver or mail the following to City Hall: 
 

 A completed Service Application Advanced notice 
 $50.00 new service fee 
 $100.00 service deposit 
 A copy of your valid driver’s license 

 
The address of City Hall is: 
 
City of Lucas 
665 Country Club Road 
Lucas, TX  75002-7651 
Attn:  Utility Billing 
 
Or you may also pick up a copy of the Service Application at City Hall and submit 
it directly to the Utility Billing Representative at the above mentioned address during 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

regular business hours (Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
excluding recognized City holidays).   
 
How much is the deposit for water and trash service? 
The residential or commercial service deposit is $100.00. 
 
How do I sign up for trash disposal service only? 
There are a few customers that receive water from other providers and only receive 
trash disposal service from the City of Lucas.  The process and deposit are the same 
as those customers requesting both water and trash disposal. 
 
Does the City of Lucas have a recycling program? 
The City of Lucas contracts with Barnes Waste Disposal to provide the optional 
curbside recycling services. Residents wanting this service will need to call Barnes 
Waste Disposal directly at (972) 396-1139 or complete the service card to initiate 
service on the Barnes website (www.barneswds.com).  Recycling collection 
intervals are every other week on Wednesday or Friday, contact Barnes Waste 
Disposal to find out the correct day for your address. Items to be recycled must be 
out at the curb by 7:00 a.m. 
 
What is the process to sign up for commercial services? 
The process is the same as residential service, a commercial customer is required to 
complete a Service Application and remit the required deposit and service fee.   
 
When will I receive an invoice for water and trash service? 
The City of Lucas mails utility billing invoices on or before the 25th day of each 
month.  Customers that do not receive invoices by the first business day of the month 
should contact the Utility Billing Representative to obtain the balance due.  A 
duplicate invoice may be mailed to a customer upon your request.  
 
When is my utility bill payment due? 
Payment is due on the 10th day of each month. If the 10th day falls on a Saturday or 
Sunday, payment is due on the following Monday.  In order to avoid the assessment 
of delinquent penalties, payments must be received by close of business on the due 
date.  Please note that payments postmarked by the due date will NOT be considered 
as being received on the due date.  
 
In addition, payments made through alternative sources such as the telephone, drop- 
boxes, or online will be accepted according to the terms established for those 
services. Payments made through a bank generated check must be received on or 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

before the due date. Payments are not posted to your utility billing account until 
received and processed by the utility billing office.   
 
What payment options are available to me? 
The City of Lucas accepts many forms of payment via several convenient payment 
methods.  Payments may be sent by US Postal service to the address below: 
 
City of Lucas 
665 County Club 
Lucas, Texas  75002-7651 
Attn:  Utility Billing 
 
We also offer a convenient drop-box that is available 24 hours per day. The drop-
box is located in the front parking lot of City Hall next to the flags.  Payments placed 
into this drop-box will be processed on the next business day.   
 
The Utility Billing Representative is also available during regular business hours to 
receive your payment and answer any questions that you might have. 
 
You may also set up automatic payments by completing an Automatic Bank Draft 
form, (ACH form), (www.lucastexas.us) along with a voided check and submit the 
completed form to the Utility Billing Representative. This will be drafted on the 10th 
day of each month or the next business day, if that falls on a weekend or holiday. 
 
The City also accepts Visa, MasterCard and Discover with a 3% processing fee 
added to the balance due.  You may contact the Utility Billing Representative at 927-
912-1205 to make credit card payments via the telephone. 
 
What happens if my utility bill is not paid on time? 
If payment is not received by the due date, the account will be assessed a late 
payment charge of $25.00. 
 
Does the City provide a notice if I miss a payment? 
The City of Lucas typically provides telephone calls to delinquent accounts after the 
due date and prior to disconnection of service. However, these calls are to be 
considered a courtesy and not a requirement.  Customers should not rely on the City 
to provide telephone notification as a reminder to render payment. 
 
If the amount due remains unpaid, on the 15th day of the month, a disconnection 
notice will be sent. If the 15th falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the notice will be mailed 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

on the following Monday.  Two business days after the disconnect notification has 
been mailed, without further notice, the account is eligible for disconnection due to 
non-payment. 
 
Delinquent notifications will be displayed on the City’s utility invoice form 
highlighted in red. If a customer receives a delinquent notification, immediate 
payment must be made to avoid disconnection of services. 
 
In addition to the penalties outlined above, delinquent payments may result in the 
account being assessed an additional service deposit in an amount up to two months 
of the location’s average billings. 
 
If you received a disconnect notice on your utility bill, how quickly must you 
pay? 
Customers receiving a disconnect notification on their utility bills must act 
immediately. The account is subject to disconnection two business days after the 
disconnect notice is mailed. 
 
If you have been disconnected for non-payment, you must pay to re-establish 
your service. 
In the event that an account is disconnected for non-payment, the total outstanding 
amount due, a disconnect fee of $15.00, a reconnect fee of $25, and deposit equal  to 
two months of average billings must be paid to re-establish service.  
 
When will your deposit be refunded? 
Deposits will be refunded to customers when the account has been finalized and 
closed.  
 
When a service deposit is refunded, the funds are first applied to the remaining 
balance on the account. If a credit remains after that transaction, a refund check will 
be generated and mailed to the customer’s name and address that is on file with the 
City.  Please make sure we have your forwarding address. 
 
Does the City offer any kind of payment plans and if so, who is qualified to have 
installment payments? 
The City of Lucas acknowledges that sometimes there are events that occur that we 
do not have control over and that it can impact our ability to make timely payments.     
Please contact the Utility Billing Representative to set up a payment plan.  Payment 
plans cannot extend beyond a 90-day repayment period.  A condition of a payment 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

plan is that the customer remains current on all other invoices during the 90-day 
repayment period. 
 
Does the City ever make any kind of adjustments to an amount due for water 
consumption and if so, what situations would warrant an adjustment? 
The only adjustment that is allowed to reduce an outstanding balance for water 
consumption is if extenuating circumstances occur and can be documented.  For 
example, the City can provide for an adjustment when a leak occurs.  In order to 
receive this adjustment, the customer must produce a receipt for repairs to fix the 
leak.  The City of Lucas is responsible for maintenance of waterlines and meters.  
The customer is responsible for maintenance of the waterline between the meter and 
the customer’s property. 
 
For a customer to qualify for this type of adjustment, the customer must have 
received an invoice for water consumption that is in excess of three times the average 
monthly invoice.  The average monthly invoice is calculated using date from the 
most recent twelve month period. 
 
What do I do if I think my water meter is not operating correctly? 
Please notify the Utility Billing Representative and a Public Works Technician will 
test and evaluate the meter.  If the meter is operational, the Customer will be charged 
a $25 meter assessment fee.  If the meter is found to be faulty, it will be replaced 
without any cost to the customer and a corrected invoice will be generated. 
  
What should I do if I believe my water consumption displayed on my invoice is 
incorrect? 
Please notify the Utility Billing Representative and a Public Works Technician will 
be scheduled to reread your meter to verify your water usage. If the usage is correct, 
the Customer will be charged a $25.00 re-read fee.  It the reading is found to be 
incorrect, the customer will not be assessed a fee and a corrected invoice will be 
generated. 
   
Does the City charge a fee for a NSF Check? 
The City will assess a $25.00 fee for all checks that are returned for nonsufficient 
funds.  Any future payment will be limited to cash, money order, cashier check or 
credit card.  



Item No. 10 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor:  Liz Exum – Finance Director 
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss and consider the proposed City of Lucas’ Tax Rate for Fiscal Year 2014-
2015.   
 

Background Information:  
 
The Finance Department has received the effective and rollback calculations for 
the 2014-2015 tax year from the county tax assessor.  Property tax options have 
been reviewed by staff and are being presented to council for vote on a proposed 
tax rate for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. It is important to note the following: 
 
1. The maintenance and operating tax rate is .0209 cents lower than the current 

tax rate.        
2.  The interest and sinking tax rate is .0140 cents lower than the current tax rate. 
3.  The total reduction to the current tax rate is .034955 cents. 
4.  Only two cities in Collin County have the additional sales tax rate adopted for 

Property tax relief. 
5. The tax rate will continue to decrease as additional sales tax dollars are 

collected. 
6. The City should consider acquiring new debt to fund roadway projects and to 

help stabilize the existing tax rate. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Property tax options worksheet for FY 2014-2015. 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The financial impact to the budget is detailed in the property tax option worksheet. 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014



Item No. 10 

 

Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends Option 1 - a proposed tax rate of 32.0661 percent, which is the 
rollback rate for the 2014 tax year. 
 

Motion:  
 
There must be a record vote accepting the tax rate for FY 2014-2015. 
 
I make a Motion to approve/deny Option #1, a proposed tax rate of 32.0661 
percent, which is a rollback rate for the 2014 tax year. 



City of Lucas

Property Tax Options  

2014-2015

Total

Adjusted Total Tax Rate Tax Rate Potential Tax Tax Tax Levy

Tax Value Tax Rate Operating Debt Serv Tax Revenue Operating Debt Serv Incl Freeze Total Tax Levy

2007 Adjusted Tax Value 422,216,071$   0.375000 0.244260 0.130740 1,583,310$     1,031,305$      552,005$    

2008 Adjusted Tax Value 471,411,284$   0.374177 0.250509 0.123668 1,763,913$     1,180,928$      582,985$    

2009 Adjusted Tax Value 494,414,564$   0.374177 0.252040 0.122137 1,849,986$     1,246,122$      603,863$    127,907$     1,977,893$                

2010 Adjusted Tax Value

2010 ARB Freeze Adj 503,068,366$                         506,955,477$   0.374177 0.247231 0.126946 1,896,911$     1,253,347$      643,564$    66,500$       1,963,411$                

2010 Lower Value used Effec Rate 3,887,111$                             

2011 Adjusted Tax Value

2011 ARB Freeze Adj 505,545,402$                         517,875,574$   0.374177 0.257723 0.116454 1,937,771$     1,334,680$      603,089$    50,000$       1,987,769$                

2011 Lower Value used Effec Rate 12,330,172$                           

2012 Adjusted Tax Value

2012 ARB Freeze Adj 524,695,816$                         536,714,544$   0.374177 0.261218 0.112959 2,008,262$     1,401,995$      606,272$    86,000$       2,094,268$                

2012 Lower Value used Effec Rate 12,018,728$                           

2013

2013 ARB Freeze Adj 587,269,256$                         602,991,584$   0.355617 0.254006 0.101611 2,144,333$     1,531,629 612,710$    145,000$     2,289,339$                

2013 Lower Value used Effec Rate 15,722,328$                           

2014

2014 ARB Freeze Adj (Prelim) 678,529,594$                         695,041,710$   0.320661 0.233068 0.087593 2,228,730$     1,619,920$      608,811$    154,000$     2,382,730$                

2014 New Value(Prelim) 16,512,116$                           

Property Tax Options 2014-2015

1. Use Maximum Rollback Rate (adj for sales tax reduction) 695,041,710$   0.320661 0.233068 0.087593 2,228,730$     1,619,916$      608,817$    159,000$     2,387,730$                

2.  Use Existing Tax Rate 695,041,710$   0.355616 0.268023 0.087593 2,471,680$     1,862,865$      608,817$    159,000$     2,630,680$                

3.  Use Effective Rate(adj for sales tax reduction) plus new Debt Rate 695,041,710$   0.307599 0.220006 0.087593 2,137,944$     1,529,129$      608,817$    159,000$     2,296,944$                

1. Additional Dollars collected over effective rate using rollback of 8% 90,786$                   

2. Additional Dollars collected over effective rate using existing tax rate of .355616 333,736$                

3. Additional Dollars collected over rollback using existing tax rate of .355616 242,949$                



Item No. 11 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor:  Liz Exum – Finance Director 
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Discussion only for the proposed City of Lucas’ Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-
2015. 
 

Background Information:  
 
The City Manager and Finance Director have completed the review process with 
the City departments for the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2014-2015.  At the 
workshop held on July 22nd, staff received the following feedback: 
 

 Updated Training Plans – review per diem charges and travel plans for 
accuracy and completeness. 

 Move IT expenditures that are specific to Fire/EMS from non-departmental 
to the Fire Department Budget. 

 Discuss the use of laptops with Baxter IT. 
 Create a staffing analysis to illustrate the number of authorized positions and 

cost of labor by department (staff will provide 5 years of data). 
 Evaluate sick time accrual/short-term disability/long-term disability. 
 Evaluate refinancing debt, paying off debt, impact on tax rate, etc. (staff will 

set up a meeting with the City’s financial advisors). 
 Evaluate in-house training for Leadership Team. 

 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. City Manager Budget Memorandum. 
2. Detailed Proposed Budget for FY 2014-2015. 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014



Item No. 11 

The financial impact for the proposed budget is varied and is outlined in detail to 
be reviewed and discussed.  
 

Recommendation:  
 
Discussion only, no action is required. 
 
 







 

City of Lucas 

Proposed Budget 

Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

 

 

 

 



2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

GENERAL FUND
PROPERTY TAXES 1,560,965.10$          1,694,628.00$        5,000.00$               1,699,628.00$             1,682,391.15$       1,699,628.00$      1,808,516.00$         

OTHER TAXES 760,710.35$             999,950.00$            40,748.00$            1,040,698.00$             761,666.89$           1,040,698.00$      1,065,500.00$         
FINES & FORFEITURES 26,391.58$               20,295.00$              (240.00)$                 20,055.00$                   17,855.07$             20,055.00$            1,872.50$                 
LICENSES & PERMITS 467,718.90$             407,615.00$            32,123.00$            439,738.00$                301,941.60$           439,738.00$         412,425.00$            
FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 157,388.93$             225,002.55$            -$                        225,002.55$                154,537.19$           225,002.55$         304,244.00$            
FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 77,909.06$               79,062.52$              250.00$                  79,312.52$                   32,337.24$             79,312.52$            88,075.00$               
NOTE PROCEEDS -$                            345,000.00$            -$                        345,000.00$                345,000.00$           345,000.00$         -$                           
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 330,498.49$             408,382.57$            29,868.31$            438,250.88$                174,604.64$           438,250.88$         566,202.72$            

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 3,381,582.41$          4,179,935.64$        107,749.31$          4,287,684.95$             3,470,333.78$       4,287,684.95$      4,246,835.22$         
 

WATER UTILITIES FUND
FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 3,377,111.92$          3,188,637.66$        6,000.00$               3,194,637.66$             1,791,002.49$       3,194,637.66$      3,361,782.00$         
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 36,466.19$               54,820.00$              (19,450.00)$           35,370.00$                   2,966.93$               35,370.00$            35,370.00$               

TOTAL WATER UTILITIES FUND REVENUE 3,413,578.11$          3,243,457.66$        (13,450.00)$           3,230,007.66$             1,793,969.42$       3,230,007.66$      3,397,152.00$         

DEBT SERVICE FUND
PROPERTY TAXES 677,916.71$             665,650.00$            2,050.00$               667,700.00$                666,787.98$           667,700.00$         619,210.00$            

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND REVENUE 677,916.71$             665,650.00$            2,050.00$              667,700.00$                666,787.98$          667,700.00$         619,210.00$            

COMBINED REVENUE TOTALS 7,473,077.23$          8,089,043.30$        96,349.31$            8,185,392.61$             5,931,091.18$       8,185,392.61$      8,263,197.22$         

EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND
CITY COUNCIL 51,885.43$               41,429.95$              -$                        41,429.95$                   27,908.42$             41,429.95$            53,174.00$               
CITY SEC 111,299.80$             134,428.15$            -$                        134,428.15$                90,709.93$             134,428.15$         140,460.84$            
ADMIN/FINANCE 366,098.27$             438,483.24$            (6,225.00)$             432,258.24$                274,055.84$           432,258.24$         470,922.52$            
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 272,720.68$             287,186.24$            (20,985.85)$           265,200.39$                167,967.24$           265,200.39$         312,144.27$            
PUBLIC WORKS 414,785.89$             1,036,402.71$        -$                        1,036,402.71$             239,278.75$           1,036,402.71$      1,132,857.29$         
PARKS 133,481.66$             110,008.99$            7,000.00$               117,008.99$                50,065.71$             117,008.99$         129,436.81$            
FIRE 732,271.51$             1,750,196.93$        3,100.00$               1,753,296.93$             1,162,053.62$       1,753,296.93$      1,499,778.19$         
NON-DEPARTMENTAL 306,907.05$             381,477.00$            33,453.00$            414,930.00$                240,626.95$           414,930.00$         507,578.00$            

TOTAL  GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 2,389,450.29$          4,179,613.21$        16,342.15$            4,194,955.36$             2,252,666.46$       4,194,955.36$      4,246,351.92$         

WATER UTILITIES FUND  
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,390,893.75$          2,611,515.39$        10,301.20$            2,621,816.59$             1,489,335.90$       2,621,816.59$      2,865,039.24$         

DEBT SERVICE
 WATER UTILITIES 515,783.00$             533,220.00$            -$                        533,220.00$                444,905.50$           533,220.00$         530,364.00$            
 GENERAL FUND 606,242.25$             612,960.00$            -$                        612,960.00$                499,612.75$           612,960.00$         608,810.50$            

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 1,122,025.25$          1,146,180.00$        -$                        1,146,180.00$             944,518.25$          1,146,180.00$      1,139,174.50$         
 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,902,369.29$          7,937,308.60$        26,643.35$            7,962,951.95$             4,686,520.61$       7,962,951.95$      8,250,565.66$         

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 1,570,707.94$          151,734.70$            69,705.96$            222,440.66$                1,244,570.57$       222,440.66$         12,631.56$              

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

REVENUE SUMMARY

Page 1 07/31/2014



2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

REVENUE SUMMARYSUMMARY BY FUND

  GENERAL FUND
     REVENUE 3,381,582.41$          4,179,935.64$        107,749.31$          4,287,684.95$             3,470,333.78$       4,287,684.95$      4,246,835.22$         
     EXPENDITURES 2,389,450.29$          4,179,613.21$        16,342.15$            4,194,955.36$             2,252,666.46$       4,194,955.36$      4,246,351.92$         

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 992,132.12$             322.43$                   91,407.16$            92,729.59$                  1,217,667.32$       92,729.59$           483.30$                    

WATER UTILITES FUND
     REVENUE 3,413,578.11$          3,243,457.66$        (13,450.00)$           3,230,007.66$             1,793,969.42$       3,230,007.66$      3,397,152.00$         
     EXPENDITURES 2,390,893.75$          2,611,515.39$        10,301.20$            2,621,816.59$             1,489,335.90$       2,621,816.59$      2,865,039.24$         
     DEBT SERVICE 515,783.00$             533,220.00$            -$                        533,220.00$                444,905.50$          533,220.00$         530,364.00$            

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 506,901.36$             98,722.27$              (23,751.20)$           74,971.07$                  (140,271.98)$         74,971.07$           1,748.76$                 

DEBT SERVICE FUND-GENERAL
     REVENUE 677,916.71$             665,650.00$            2,050.00$              667,700.00$                666,787.98$          667,700.00$         619,210.00$            
     EXPENDITURES 606,242.25$             612,960.00$            -$                        612,960.00$                499,612.75$          612,960.00$         608,810.50$            

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 71,674.46$               52,690.00$              2,050.00$              54,740.00$                  167,175.23$          54,740.00$           10,399.50$              

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 1,570,707.94$          151,734.70$            69,705.96$            222,440.66$                1,244,570.57$       222,440.66$         12,631.56$              

Page 2 07/31/2014



CITY OF LUCAS ANNUAL BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015(PROPOSED)

FUND SUMMARIES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINED SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

DEBT CAPITAL BROCKDALE RTR/TXDOT IMPACT TOTAL
GENERAL SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS ROAD IMPROV COUNTY/LISD FEES GOVERNMENTAL 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 5,191,303.79$            434,645.00$               2,077,370.60$            22,000.00$                  1,140,240.00$            652,316.00$                9,517,875.39$              

PROPERTY TAXES 1,808,516.00$            619,210.00$               2,427,726.00$              
OTHER TAXES 1,065,500.00$            1,065,500.00$              
FINES & FORFEITURES 1,872.50$                    1,872.50$                      
LICENSES & PERMITS 412,425.00$               412,425.00$                 
FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 304,244.00$               304,244.00$                 
FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 88,075.00$                  88,075.00$                    
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 566,202.72$               3,000.00$                    66,000.00$                  635,202.72$                 
IMPACT FEES 128,000.00$                128,000.00$                 
RTR FUNDS LEFT TURN LANES -$                                
RTR FUNDS FM 1378 -$                                
LISD FUNDS FOR ESTELLE/CC 80,000.00$                  80,000.00$                    
COUNTY FUNDS 244,000.00$                244,000.00$                 
TRANSFER IN RESERVES 137,985.00$                137,985.00$                 
TRANSFER IN IMPACT FEES -$                                

TOTAL REVENUES 4,246,835.22$            619,210.00$               140,985.00$                66,000.00$                  324,000.00$                128,000.00$                5,525,030.22$              

EXPENDITURES

CITY COUNCIL 53,174.00$                  53,174.00$                    
CITY SEC 140,460.84$               140,460.84$                 
ADMIN/FINANCE 470,922.52$               470,922.52$                 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 312,144.27$               312,144.27$                 
PUBLIC WORKS 1,132,857.29$            1,132,857.29$              
PARKS 129,436.81$               129,436.81$                 
FIRE 1,499,778.19$            1,499,778.19$              
NON-DEPARTMENTAL 507,578.00$               507,578.00$                 
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 390,000.00$               390,000.00$                 
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST/BOND EXP 218,810.50$               218,810.50$                 
CAPITAL PROJECTS ESTELLE/ANGEL PKWY 320,000.00$                320,000.00$                 
CAPITAL PROJECTS ESTELLE/CC INTERSECTION 80,000.00$                  10,000.00$                  90,000.00$                    
CAPITAL PROJECTS (BAIT SHOP INTERSECTION) 300,000.00$                300,000.00$                 
CAPITAL PROJECTS RTR LEFT TURN LANES 20,240.00$                  5,060.00$                    25,300.00$                    
CAPITAL PROJECTS RTR FM 1378 1,364,000.00$            36,000.00$                  1,400,000.00$              
CAPITAL PROJECTS CIVIC CENTER 137,985.00$                137,985.00$                 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FIRE DEPT 2,071,261.00$            2,071,261.00$              

-$                                

TOTAL  EXPENDITURES 4,246,351.92$            608,810.50$               2,209,246.00$            -$                              1,464,240.00$            671,060.00$                9,199,708.42$              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 483.30$                       10,399.50$                 (2,068,261.00)$           66,000.00$                  (1,140,240.00)$           (543,060.00)$              (3,674,678.20)$            

ENDING FUND BALANCE 5,191,787.09$            445,044.50$               9,109.60$                    88,000.00$                  -$                              109,256.00$                5,843,197.19$              
 
MINUS RESTRICTED FOR:

IMPACT FEES (109,256.00)$              (109,256.00)$                

BROCKDALE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS (88,000.00)$                 (88,000.00)$                  

TRSF TO CAPITAL FROM RESERVES (137,985.00)$              (137,985.00)$                
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS (445,044.50)$              (445,044.50)$                
MUNICIPAL COURT (28,427.00)$                (28,427.00)$                  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (9,109.60)$                   (9,109.60)$                     

UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 5,025,375.09$            -$                              -$                              -$                              -$                              -$                              5,025,375.09$              

TOTAL AMOUNT OF RESERVES PRIOR TO GASB 54 REQUIREMENT 5,025,375.09$            -$                              -$                              -$                              5,025,375.09$              

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 432 432
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 14.4 14.4

RESERVES FOR GASB 54 FUND BALANCE POLICY 
(50% OF CURRENT YR EXPENDITURES IN GENERAL FUND) (2,123,175.96)$           (2,123,175.96)$             

TOTAL RESERVES AFTER GASB 54 REQUIREMENTS 2,902,199.13$            2,902,199.13$              

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 249 249
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 8.3 8.3

Page 3 07/31/2014



Page 4 07/31/2014CITY OF LUCAS ANNUAL BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 (PROPOSED)

FUND SUMMARIES - PROPRIETARY 

COMBINED SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

CAPITAL IMPACT /DEVELOP TOTAL
WATER IMPROVEMENTS FEES PROPRIETARY

BEGINNING BALANCE RESTRICTED/UNRESTRICTED 4,598,170.07$           983,874.00$               -$                             5,582,044.07$             

WATER REVENUE 2,911,782.00$            2,911,782.00$              
WASTE WATER REVENUE 32,000.00$                 32,000.00$                   
TRASH REVENUE 418,000.00$               418,000.00$                 
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 35,370.00$                 35,370.00$                   
DEVELOPERS CONTRIBUTIONS -$                               
IMPACT FEES 120,000.00$               120,000.00$                 
TRANSFER IN IMPACT FEES 120,000.00$               120,000.00$                 
TRANSFER IN FUND BALANCE - WATER 716,285.00$               716,285.00$                 
TOTAL REVENUES 3,397,152.00$           836,285.00$               120,000.00$               4,353,437.00$             

EXPENDITURES

WATER 2,468,039.24$            2,468,039.24$              
TRASH 372,000.00$               372,000.00$                 
WASTEWATER 25,000.00$                 25,000.00$                   
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 360,000.00$               360,000.00$                 
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST/BOND EXP 170,364.00$               170,364.00$                 
TRANSFER OUT TO FUND WATER PROJECT -$                             -$                               
TRANSFER OUT TO FUND WATER PROJECT 120,000.00$               120,000.00$                 
CAPITAL PROJECTS WF 1,820,159.00$            1,820,159.00$              

-$                               

TOTAL  EXPENDITURES 3,395,403.24$           1,820,159.00$            120,000.00$               5,335,562.24$             

NET CHANGE IN BALANCE 1,748.76$                   (983,874.00)$              -$                             (982,125.24)$               

ENDING BALANCE 4,599,918.83$           -$                             -$                             4,599,918.83$             
 
MINUS RESTRICTED FOR:

IMPACT FEES -$                             -$                               
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS (365,000.00)$             (365,000.00)$                
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS (205,125.00)$             (205,125.00)$                
TRSF TO CAPITAL FROM RESERVES (716,285.00)$              -$                             (716,285.00)$                
UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 3,313,508.83$            -$                             -$                             3,313,508.83$              

TOTAL AMOUNT OF RESERVES PRIOR TO GASB 54 REQUIREMENT 3,313,508.83$            -$                             -$                             3,313,508.83$              

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 398 398
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 13.3 13.3

RESERVES FOR GASB 54 FUND BALANCE POLICY
(50% OF CURRENT YR EXPENDITURES IN GENERAL FUND) (1,517,701.62)$          (1,517,701.62)$            

TOTAL RESERVES AFTER  GASB 54 REQUIREMENTS 1,795,807.21$           -$                             -$                             1,795,807.21$             

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 216 216
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 7.2 7.2

Page 4 07/31/2014



2014-2015

CAPITAL WATER PROJECTS:

TOTAL WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS- CARRY OVER FY 13/14:
STINSON WATER LINE CARRY OVER 983,874.00$                                              
OSAGE WATER LINE 53,785.00$                                                
ROCK RIDGE WATER LINE 18,300.00$                                                
ROCK RIDGE WATER LINE PHASE 2  -DESIGN 19,500.00$                                                
W ROCK CREEK BRIDGE W LINE ADJ 30,000.00$                                                
TOTAL WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS- CARRY OVER FY 13/14: 1,105,459.00$                                          

CARRY OVER PROJECTS FUNDED BY:
2011 CO (983,874.00)$                                            
RESERVES (121,585.00)$                                            
TOTAL CARRY-OVER FUNDING (1,105,459.00)$                                         

NEW WATER PROJECTS FY 14/15:
ROCK RIDGE WATER LINE PHASE 2 CONSTRUC 600,000.00$                                              
NORTH PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS 44,700.00$                                                
MCGARITY PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS 70,000.00$                                                
TOTAL NEW PROJECTS 714,700.00$                                              

NEW PROJECT FUNDING - WATER:
IMPACT FEES FY 14/15 (120,000.00)$                                            
RESERVES (594,700.00)$                                            
TOTAL NEW PROJECT FUNDING (714,700.00)$                                            

CAPITAL ROADWAY AND GF PROJECTS:

TOTAL GENERAL FUND PROJECT CARRY OVER FY 13/14:
GENERAL FUND CAPITAL FIRE DEPT ADDITION 2,071,261.00$                                          
RTR PROJECT TURN LANES 25,300.00$                                                
RTR PROJECT W LUCAS RD 1,400,000.00$                                          
ESTELLE/ANGEL PKWY (TX DOT) 320,000.00$                                              
TOTAL GENERAL FUND PROJECTS- CARRY OVER FY 13/14 3,816,561.00$                                          

CARRY OVER PROJECTS FUNDED BY:
2011 CO (2,071,261.00)$                                         
RTR FUNDS (1,140,240.00)$                                         
COUNTY FUNDS (244,000.00)$                                            
IMPACT FEES - ROADS (361,060.00)$                                            
TOTAL CARRY-OVER FUNDING (3,816,561.00)$                                         

NEW GENERAL FUND PROJECTS FY 14/15:
ESTELLE/CC INTERSECTION 90,000.00$                                                
CIVIC CENTER 137,985.00$                                              
FM 1378/3286 (BAIT SHOP INTERSEC) 300,000.00$                                              
TOTAL NEW PROJECTS 527,985.00$                                              

NEW PROJECT FUNDING - GENERAL FUND:
IMPACT FEES FY 14/15 - ROADS (310,000.00)$                                            
LISD FUNDING (80,000.00)$                                               
RESERVES (137,985.00)$                                            
TOTAL NEW PROJECT FUNDING (527,985.00)$                                            

PROPOSED BUDGET
CAPITAL FUND SUMMARY

Page 5 07/31/2014



FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 

2012-2013 YTD AS OF 5/14 RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED

GENERAL FUND:

Beginning Balance General Fund (Restricted) 828,315.77$                                      828,315.77$                     828,315.77$                   828,315.77$                          652,315.77$          

Revenue

Roadway Impact Fees 50,850.00$                       64,000.00$                      64,000.00$                            128,000.00$          
Roadway Fees Brockdale(4989) Improv -$                                                    6,600.00$                         -$                                  22,000.00$            22,000.00$                            66,000.00$            
Total Revenues 828,315.77$                                      57,450.00$                       64,000.00$                      22,000.00$            86,000.00$                            194,000.00$          

Expenditures

Capital Projects 76,762.00$                       601,060.00$                   (361,060.00)$         240,000.00$                          671,060.00$          
Brockdale Improv
Total Expenditures -$                                                    76,762.00$                       601,060.00$                   (361,060.00)$         240,000.00$                          671,060.00$          

Revenues less Expenditures

Restricted for Brockdale Improvements 22,000.00$                            66,000.00$            

General Fund Ending Balance (Restricted) 828,315.77$                                      809,003.77$                     291,255.77$                   383,060.00$          652,315.77$                          109,255.77$          

WATER FUND:

Beginning Balance - Water Fund (5,360,204.63)$                                 (5,360,204.63)$                (5,360,204.63)$               (5,360,204.63)$                     (5,914,601.38)$     

Revenue

Water Impact Fees -$                                                    108,181.20$                     120,000.00$                   12,000.00$            132,000.00$                          120,000.00$          
Development Fees -Sewer 437,078.25$                     437,078.25$                   -$                        437,078.25$                          -$                        

Total Revenues -$                                                    545,259.45$                     557,078.25$                   12,000.00$            569,078.25$                          120,000.00$          

Expenditures

Capital Projects - Water 518,350.47$                     2,176,626.00$                (1,123,151.00)$     1,053,475.00$                      1,820,159.00$       
Capital Projects- Sewer 2,161.43$                         70,000.00$                      70,000.00$                            -$                        

Total Expenditures -$                                                    520,511.90$                     2,246,626.00$                (1,123,151.00)$     1,123,475.00$                      1,820,159.00$       

Revenues less Expenditures -$                                                    24,747.55$                       (1,689,547.75)$               1,135,151.00$       (554,396.75)$                        (1,700,159.00)$     

Water Fund Ending Balance (5,360,204.63)$                                 (5,335,457.08)$                (7,049,752.38)$               1,135,151.00$       (5,914,601.38)$                     (7,614,760.38)$     

Impact/Development Fee Summary

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 6 07/31/2014



GENERAL FUND

Page 7



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

REVENUE ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIP

PROPERTY TAXES
4011         PROPERTY TAXES 1,518,246.68   1,671,028.00               1,671,028.00        1,654,886.99   1,671,028.00   1,778,916.00
4012         PROPERTY TAXES-DEL. 19,954.74         19,000.00                    2,100.00                  21,100.00             20,985.04         21,100.00         22,000.00
4015         PROPERTY TAXES-P&I 22,763.68         4,600.00                       2,900.00                  7,500.00                6,519.12           7,500.00           7,600.00

TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES 1,560,965.10   1,694,628.00              5,000.00                 1,699,628.00       1,682,391.15   1,699,628.00   1,808,516.00

OTHER TAXES

4101         SALES TAX 348,451.00       489,060.00                  9,368.00                  498,428.00           337,902.75       498,428.00      514,800.00
4101-100 SALES TAX  STREETS 76,951.48         125,970.00                  2,415.00                  128,385.00           84,729.38         128,385.00      132,600.00
4101-200 SALES TAX PROP TAX REDUC 76,951.48         125,970.00                  2,415.00                  128,385.00           84,729.37         128,385.00      132,600.00
4102         FRANCHISE-ELECTRICAL 193,705.54       197,000.00                  13,000.00               210,000.00           190,262.35       210,000.00      210,000.00
4103         FRANCHISE-TELEPHONE 7,760.22           7,300.00                       7,300.00                5,366.78           7,300.00           7,300.00
4104         FRANCHISE-CABLE 37,153.47         36,000.00                    4,000.00                  40,000.00             32,554.62         40,000.00         40,000.00
4105         FRANCHISE-GAS 17,021.43         16,000.00                    9,000.00                  25,000.00             23,506.29         25,000.00         25,000.00
4106         FRANCHISE-CABLE PEG 2,715.73           2,650.00                       550.00                     3,200.00                2,615.35           3,200.00           3,200.00

TOTAL OTHER TAXES 760,710.35      999,950.00                  40,748.00               1,040,698.00       761,666.89      1,040,698.00   1,065,500.00         

FINES & FORFEITURES

4202         COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND 473.22               400.00                          (140.00)                    260.00                   241.88               260.00              40.00
4203         COURT SECURITY FUND 353.58               250.00                          (30.00)                      220.00                   181.40               220.00              25.00
4204         COURT COST-CITY 2,271.74           1,200.00                       (400.00)                    800.00                   722.85               800.00              120.00
4205         TRAFFIC FINES 14,932.03         13,200.00                    800.00                     14,000.00             12,486.41         14,000.00         1,200.00
4206         COURT COST-STATE 6,736.68           4,000.00                       (300.00)                    3,700.00                3,286.90           3,700.00           400.00
4208         STATE JURY FEE 471.46               300.00                          (20.00)                      280.00                   241.88               280.00              30.00
4212         JUDICIAL FEES-STATE 636.43               500.00                          (120.00)                    380.00                   326.53               380.00              50.00
4213         JUDICIAL FEES-CITY 70.70                 75.00                            (30.00)                      45.00                     36.28                 45.00                 7.50
4215         OMNI STATE FEE 140.00               140.00                          140.00                   140.00               140.00              0.00
4216         OMNI MGMT FEE 42.00                 50.00                            50.00                     42.00                 50.00                 0.00
4217         OMNI LOCAL FEE 28.00                 30.00                            30.00                     28.00                 30.00                 0.00
4218         INDIGENT DEFENSE FEE 235.74               150.00                          150.00                   120.94               150.00              0.00

TOTAL FINES & FORFEITURES 26,391.58         20,295.00                    (240.00)                   20,055.00             17,855.07         20,055.00        1,872.50

LICENSES & PERMITS
-                          

4301         GEN CONTRACTOR REG. 7,085.00           8,775.00                       1,025.00                  9,800.00                9,800.00           9,800.00           10,500.00
4302         ELECTRICIAN REG. 3,300.00           1,000.00                       (550.00)                    450.00                   450.00               450.00              0.00 Include in gen contr registration
4304         IRRIGATION REG. 2,145.00           490.00                          (195.00)                    295.00                   295.00               295.00              0.00 Include in gen contr registration
4305         MECHANICAL REG. 2,510.00           310.00                          (85.00)                      225.00                   225.00               225.00              0.00 Include in gen contr registration
4361         ZONING REQUEST 360.00               500.00                          (150.00)                    350.00                   350.00               350.00              0.00 Include in gen contr registration
4362         SPECIFIC USE PERMITS 1,050.00           403.00                          403.00                   -                     403.00              600.00
4363         VARIANCE REQUEST 2,100.00           300.00                          300.00                   300.00               300.00              300.00
4365         BLDG PERMITS-NEW HOMES 313,142.70       279,812.00                  20,188.00               300,000.00           185,926.50       300,000.00      289,000.00
4367         BLDG PERMITS-ACC. 14,877.20         12,525.00                    2,000.00                  14,525.00             13,417.00         14,525.00         14,525.00
4368         BLDG PERMITS-REMODEL 3,267.75           3,150.00                       900.00                     4,050.00                3,362.65           4,050.00           4,000.00
4369         BLDG PERMITS-COMM. 20,148.50         24,000.00                    24,000.00             21,730.00         24,000.00         8,000.00
4371         ELECTRICAL PERMITS 625.00               800.00                          200.00                     1,000.00                900.00               1,000.00           1,000.00
4372         PLUMBING PERMITS 2,810.00           1,950.00                       1,950.00                1,500.00           1,950.00           1,950.00
4373         HEATING & A/C PERMITS 1,250.00           800.00                          150.00                     950.00                   800.00               950.00              950.00
4374         FENCE PERMITS 3,850.00           2,500.00                       2,500.00                1,500.00           2,500.00           2,500.00
4375         SWIMMING POOL PERMITS 16,325.00         15,000.00                    5,000.00                  20,000.00             13,895.00         20,000.00         20,000.00
4376         WEIGHT LIMIT PERMITS 50,825.00         36,850.00                    3,150.00                  40,000.00             31,875.00         40,000.00         40,000.00
4377         ROOF PERMITS 900.00               800.00                          800.00                   600.00               800.00              800.00
4378         SPRINKLER SYST PERMITS 6,225.00           5,000.00                       5,000.00                3,950.00           5,000.00           5,000.00
4379         DRIVEWAY PERMIT 800.00               900.00                          900.00                   800.00               900.00              900.00
4380         SIGN PERMIT 850.00               1,500.00                       200.00                     1,700.00                1,625.00           1,700.00           1,700.00
4382         STORM WATER MGMT PERMIT 4,925.00           3,500.00                       3,500.00                2,875.00           3,500.00           3,500.00
4390         PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 2,510.00           1,250.00                       1,250.00                1,020.45           1,250.00           1,250.00
4391         BURN PERMITS 2,237.75           2,000.00                       140.00                     2,140.00                1,970.00           2,140.00           2,300.00
4395         HEALTH SERVICE PERMITS 2,800.00           3,000.00                       3,000.00                2,200.00           3,000.00           3,000.00
4398         MISC LICENSES & PERMITS 800.00               500.00                          150.00                     650.00                   575.00               650.00              650.00

TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS 467,718.90      407,615.00                  32,123.00               439,738.00           301,941.60      439,738.00      412,425.00

FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE
4611         FIRE SPRINKLER PERMIT 20,840.00         16,000.00                    16,000.00             14,100.00         16,000.00         17,200.00
4612         COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT 8,102.00           36,938.00                    36,938.00             36,937.99         36,938.00         36,938.00
4613         FIRE DEPT SVC AGREEMENTS 128,446.93       157,064.55                  157,064.55           103,499.20       157,064.55      183,106.00
4614         AMBULANCE SERVICES -                     15,000.00                    15,000.00             -                     15,000.00         67,000.00
4616         DONATIONS -                     -                                 -                          -                     

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 157,388.93      225,002.55                  -                            225,002.55           154,537.19      225,002.55      304,244.00

NOTE PROCEEDS

4800         NOTE PROCEEDS 345,000.00                  345,000.00           345,000.00      345,000.00      0.00

TOTAL NOTE PROCEEDS -                     345,000.00                  -                            345,000.00           345,000.00      345,000.00      -                           

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES

4424         PLAT & REPLAT FEES 15,032.08         12,500.00                    12,500.00             8,906.00           12,500.00         12,500.00

4425         RE-INSPECTION FEES 5,625.00           4,000.00                       4,000.00                2,400.00           4,000.00           4,000.00

4426         FEES-BUILDING PROJECTS 2,000.00           2,400.00                       2,400.00                1,200.00           2,400.00           2,400.00

4427         PUBLIC IMPRV/3% INSPEC 55,150.10         60,000.00                    60,000.00             19,690.12         60,000.00         69,000.00
4497         PUBLIC INFO. REQUESTS 100.55               100.00                          250.00                     350.00                   78.60                 350.00              100.00
4498         MISC. FEES & CHARGES 1.33                   62.52                            62.52                     62.52                 62.52                 75.00

TOTAL FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 77,909.06         79,062.52                    250.00                     79,312.52             32,337.24         79,312.52        88,075.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
4911         INTEREST INCOME 9,454.53           9,000.00                       9,000.00                6,277.83           9,000.00           9,000.00
4913         FUEL TAX REFUND 2,550.32           2,200.00                       199.76                     2,399.76                2,399.76           2,399.76           0.00 Credit applied to fuel billings
4914         INSURANCE CLAIM REIMB 3,516.55           24,500.00                    24,500.00             24,500.00         24,500.00         0.00
4915         CHILD SAFETY INCOME 6,246.81           5,840.00                       5,840.00                4,689.44           5,840.00           6,200.00

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 8



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

REVENUE ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIP
PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

4916         CREDIT CARD REVENUE 2,458.43           2,400.00                       800.00                     3,200.00                2,211.06           3,200.00           3,200.00
4917         CERT APP FEE BEER & WINE -                     750.00                          750.00                   750.00               750.00              0.00
4931         RENTAL INCOME 32,520.00         46,200.00                    46,200.00             20,150.00         46,200.00         46,200.00
4980         PARK DEDICATION FEES 67,000.00         55,000.00                    55,000.00             11,000.00         55,000.00         60,000.00
4985         GRANT REVENUES 1,000.00           3,498.57                       3,498.57                -                     3,498.57           5,500.00
4986         FOUNDERS DAY DONATIONS 506.00               250.00                          250.00                   250.00               250.00              0.00
4990         ROAD IMPROVEMENT CONTRIB -                     75,000.00                    75,000.00             75,000.00         75,000.00         0.00

4991         STREET ASSESSMENTS 789.22               -                                 1,300.00                  1,300.00                1,300.00           1,300.00           0.00
4992         SALE OF ASSETS -                     2,000.00                       501.00                     2,501.00                2,501.00           2,501.00           0.00
4993         POSTAGE -                     -                                 -                          -                     
4994         CASH DRWR OVR/UND -                     -                                 -                          -                     
4995         REIMBURSEMENTS 14,274.88         1,000.00                       1,000.00                887.00               1,000.00           1,000.00
4996         TRANSFER IN -                     -                                 -                          -                     
4997         MISCELLANEOUS 1,911.11           6,200.00                       16,488.55               22,688.55             22,688.55         22,688.55         1,900.00 Pworks sale of equipment
4998         PILOT TRANSER IN 188,270.64       174,544.00                  10,579.00               185,123.00           -                     185,123.00      187,477.00
4999         FIRE DISTRICT TRANSFER IN -                     -                                 -                            -                          -                     -                     245,725.72

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 330,498.49      408,382.57                  29,868.31               438,250.88           174,604.64      438,250.88      566,202.72
***TOTAL REVENUES*** 3,381,582.41   4,179,935.64              107,749.31             4,287,684.95       3,470,333.78   4,287,684.95   4,246,835.22         

Page 9 07/31/2014



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
CITY COUNCIL FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6100-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 97.83                98.43                          98.43                      98.43            98.43                    100.00                    
6100-127     MECICARE -                    132.00                        132.00                    65.26            132.00                 150.00                    

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 97.83                230.43                        -                    230.43                    163.69          230.43                 250.00                    

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6100-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,500.00          1,500.00                     1,500.00                877.73          1,500.00              1,500.00                
6100-202     POSTAGE -                    100.00                        100.00                    -                 100.00                 100.00                    
6100-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 415.51              500.00                        500.00                    112.54          500.00                 1,500.00                Community outreach $1k
6100-222     AUDIO/VISUAL DEVICES -                    -                               -                          2,900.00                $1700 mics/speakers council chambers/$1200 audio recorder
6100-228     MEETING SUPPLIES -                    75.00                          75.00                      -                 75.00                    75.00                      
6100-233     EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE -                    100.00                        100.00                    -                 100.00                 100.00                    

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 1,915.51          2,275.00                     -                    2,275.00                990.27          2,275.00              6,175.00                

PURCHASED SERVICES:
6100-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 1,459.59          2,500.00                     2,500.00                36.29            2,500.00              2,500.00                
6100-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,132.85          3,116.00                     3,116.00                2,516.42       3,116.00              -                          Copier budget in Admin/Water
6100-323     CELL PHONE 1,051.16          1,200.00                     1,200.00                561.56          1,200.00              1,200.00                
6100-331     ELECTRICITY 1,692.57          1,500.00                     1,500.00                635.58          1,500.00              1,500.00                

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 7,336.17          8,316.00                     -                    8,316.00                3,749.85      8,316.00              5,200.00                

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6100-444     FOUNDERS DAY 13,407.13        15,000.00                  15,000.00              11,166.77    15,000.00            20,000.00              add costs due to larger event
6100-440     BOARDS & COMMISSIONS -                    250.00                        250.00                    -                 250.00                 250.00                    
6100-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 1,137.45          2,500.00                     2,500.00                1,373.32       2,500.00              2,500.00                
6100-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS, & CDS 599.95              600.00                        600.00                    456.00          600.00                 600.00                    
6100-442     CONTINGENCY FUND 369.28              3,258.52                     3,258.52                3,258.52       3,258.52              5,500.00                Service Trees $3K
6100-468     CITY COUNCIL FEES 9,000.00          9,000.00                     9,000.00                6,750.00       9,000.00              9,000.00                

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION SERV 24,513.81        30,608.52                  -                    30,608.52              23,004.61    30,608.52           37,850.00              

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8100-420    EQUIPMENT 18,022.11        -                          3,699.00                upgrade to citizens podium

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 18,022.11        -                               -                    -                          -                 -                        3,699.00                

TOTAL CITY COUNCIL 51,885.43        41,429.95                  -                    41,429.95              27,908.42    41,429.95           53,174.00              

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

Page 10 07/31/2014



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
CITY SECRETARY FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTSBUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES  
6110-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 64,715.04       66,833.00           66,833.00          43,774.26       66,833.00        66,833.00           
6110-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 191.00             192.17                 192.17               192.17             192.17             200.00                 
6110-113     LONGEVITY PAY 352.00             402.43                 402.43               402.43             402.43             448.00                 
6110-122     TMRS 4,373.18          5,259.12             5,259.12            3,430.29          5,259.12          6,526.41              Rate incr to 9.79%
6110-123     GROUP INSURANCE 6,505.27          6,960.00             6,960.00            4,543.15          6,960.00          7,392.00              Inc costs 7%
6110-124     AFLAC 281.28             300.00                 300.00               202.51             300.00             300.00                 
6110-127     MEDICARE 941.28             991.43                 991.43               666.70             991.43             991.43                 
6110-129     ST DISABILITY 319.58             330.00                 330.00               229.93             330.00             335.00                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 77,678.63       81,268.15           -                    81,268.15         53,441.44       81,268.15       83,025.84           
 

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6110-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 973.48             1,000.00             1,000.00            643.29             1,000.00          1,100.00              
6110-202     POSTAGE     6,993.22          7,500.00             7,500.00            4,000.00          7,500.00          8,000.00              

6110-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE -                   -                       -                      -                   -                    

6110-238     PRINTING & COPYING 59.99               -                       -                      -                   
6110-239     RECORDS MANAGEMENT 910.00             1,450.00             1,450.00            820.00             1,450.00          1,500.00              

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 8,936.69         9,950.00             -                    9,950.00            5,463.29         9,950.00          10,600.00           

PURCHASED SERVICES
6110-303     TELEPHONE 1,035.16          1,250.00             1,250.00            726.15             1,250.00          1,250.00              
6110-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 2,094.97          1,985.00             1,985.00            367.27             1,985.00          580.00                 
6110-306     ADVERTISING/PUBLIC NOTICES 6,974.60          12,000.00           12,000.00          6,374.18          12,000.00        15,000.00           Addt advertising 
6110-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 10,330.00       9,500.00             9,500.00            9,375.00          9,500.00          14,180.00           Franklin legal/MCCI/Civic plus website
6110-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,331.75          3,710.00             3,710.00            3,503.80          3,710.00          -                       incl with acct 309

6110-349     FILING FEES 508.00             2,000.00             2,000.00            458.00             2,000.00          2,000.00              

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 24,274.48       30,445.00           -                    30,445.00         20,804.40       30,445.00       33,010.00           

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6110-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS -                   -                       -                   
6110-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 285.00             265.00                 265.00               95.00               265.00             325.00                 
6110-445     ELECTIONS 125.00             12,000.00           12,000.00          10,680.80       12,000.00        13,000.00           May election/includes run off election
6110-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S -                   500.00                 500.00               225.00             500.00             500.00                 

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRAVICE SERVICES 410.00             12,765.00           -                    12,765.00         11,000.80       12,765.00       13,825.00           

TOTAL CITY SECRETARY 111,299.80     134,428.15        -                    134,428.15       90,709.93       134,428.15     140,460.84         

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 11 07/31/2014



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES  
6200-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT  136,218.72     129,501.08          129,501.08                 84,120.69     129,501.08        151,205.60       
6200-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 46,710.00       85,837.80            85,837.80                   48,535.08     85,837.80           106,454.40       
6200-103     SALARIES - PART - TIME 35,966.63       17,680.00            17,680.00                   14,635.93     17,680.00           3,413.80            
6200-111     OVERTIME 47.81               100.00                  100.00                         -                100.00                550.00               
6200-112     WORKERS' COMP  507.77             510.89                  510.89                         510.89          510.89                540.00               
6200-113     LONGEVITY PAY  899.20             1,016.11              1,016.11                      1,016.11       1,016.11             1,322.00            
6200-122     TMRS   12,676.11       15,289.64            15,289.64                   8,694.34       15,289.64           25,224.91         Rate incr to 9.79%
6200-123     GROUP INSURANCE   20,650.40       27,960.00            27,960.00                   15,097.16     27,960.00           36,960.00         Inc costs 7%
6200-124     AFLAC 1,044.39          1,140.00              1,140.00                      633.96          1,140.00             1,440.00            
6200-127     MEDICARE  3,205.16          3,810.00              3,810.00                      2,205.36       3,810.00             3,793.57            
6200-129     ST DISABILITY 926.34             1,225.00              1,225.00                      594.29          1,225.00             1,235.24            
6200-131     UNEMPLOYMENT -                   8,172.00              8,172.00                      8,172.00       8,172.00             -                     
6200-133     TELEPHONE ALLOWANCE 900.00             375.00                  225.00             600.00                         375.00          600.00                900.00               
6200-141     CAR ALLOWANCE  2,400.00          2,400.00              2,400.00                      2,201.26       2,400.00             2,400.00            

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 262,152.53     295,017.52          225.00             295,242.52                 186,792.07  295,242.52        335,439.52       

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6200-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,768.07          5,500.00              1,200.00          6,700.00                      3,402.60       6,700.00             7,470.00            $1,200 HR Boards/F Cabinet, supplies/$5,000 annual/$400 chair

$570 Purchasing F Cabinet/Desk components/$300 HR posters
6200-202     POSTAGE 1,440.94          1,000.00              1,000.00                      387.04          1,000.00             1,000.00            

6200-203     SUBSCRIPTIONS -                   100.00                  100.00                         -                100.00                400.00               HR-FLSA
6200-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 2,214.27          2,500.00              2,500.00                      717.84          2,500.00             4,170.00            $1500 annual/$1000 Christmas lunch city wide

-                               $1000 qtrly meetings/$670 spring picnic
6200-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 64.84               300.00                  300.00                         42.00            300.00                300.00               
6200-211     MEDICAL & SURGICAL SUPPLIES -                   -                        -                               -                
6200-238     PRINTING & COPING 102.90             250.00                  250.00                         200.00          250.00                250.00               

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 7,591.02         9,650.00              1,200.00          10,850.00                   4,749.48       10,850.00          13,590.00         

PURCHASED SERVICES:
6200-302     AUDITING & ACCOUNTING 9,620.00          11,500.00            11,500.00                   6,720.00       11,500.00           12,500.00         
6200-303     TELEPHONE 2,411.01          3,400.00              3,400.00                      1,740.04       3,400.00             3,400.00            
6200-305     SOFTWARE SUPPORT/MAINT 9,847.02          18,200.00            18,200.00                   10,192.43     18,200.00           12,700.00         Maint incode modules:AP/PR/GL/Purch/FA/PA/Court
6200-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 7,841.02          10,165.00            10,165.00                   2,892.33       10,165.00           8,319.00            $500 city wide training/$4087 CM/$411 Admin

$1175 HR/$1526 Finance/$620 SGR training LT
6200-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,938.00          8,700.00              8,700.00                      7,143.00       8,700.00             7,100.00            Teladoc($3 per mo per employee)/$5.8K Compensation Study
6200-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,142.89          3,884.00              3,884.00                      1,855.65       3,884.00             6,400.00            Konica Lease
6200-318     TAX COLLECTION 1,776.75          1,924.50              1,924.50                      1,924.50       1,924.50             2,120.00            
6200-319     CENTRAL APPRAISAL FEE 14,283.64       15,065.00            15,065.00                   11,294.06     15,065.00           17,144.00         Increase in FY 15 fee
6200-321     STATE COMPTROLLER (CT FEES) 7,653.75          13,000.00            (7,000.00)         6,000.00                      2,179.45       6,000.00             4,000.00            Court cases handled in Plano
6200-321.1 OMNI COURT FEES 30.00               6.00                      6.00                             6.00              6.00                    -                     
6200-322     CONTRACTS 5,500.00          6,000.00              (1,000.00)         5,000.00                      2,500.00       5,000.00             2,000.00            Costs for court judge quarterly
6200-323     CELL PHONE -                   560.00                  560.00                         81.05            560.00                -                     Recl to phone allow
6200-324     INMATE BOARDING 907.27             400.00                  300.00             700.00                         418.74          700.00                500.00               
6200-325     LIABILITY INSURANCE 18,146.84       20,861.22            20,861.22                   20,861.22     20,861.22           24,000.00         
6200-331     ELECTRICITY 2,284.85          3,700.00              3,700.00                      1,502.93       3,700.00             3,700.00            
6200-333     UTILITIES, WATER 232.04             500.00                  500.00                         284.07          500.00                500.00               

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 88,615.08       117,865.72          (7,700.00)        110,165.72                 71,595.47    110,165.72        104,383.00       

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6200-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 1,186.35          1,500.00              1,500.00                      638.80          1,500.00             2,500.00            $1500 annual/$1000 city promo items
6200-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 3,895.80          4,200.00              4,200.00                      3,596.00       4,200.00             4,710.00            HR/FIN/CITY MGR/SECR/CITY FEES
6200-444     EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 200.00             200.00                  200.00                         105.00          200.00                2,000.00            CITY WIDE
6200-445     CHILD SAFETY EXPENSE 581.31             1,000.00              1,000.00                      418.68          1,000.00             1,000.00            
6200-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS -                   150.00                  (150.00)            -                               -                -                      -                     
6200-497     CREDIT CARD FEES 1,596.18          1,600.00              200.00             1,800.00                      1,083.44       1,800.00             1,800.00            
6200-498     MISCELLANEOUS 280.00             5,300.00              5,300.00                      5,076.90       5,300.00             500.00               

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES 7,739.64         13,950.00            50.00               14,000.00                   10,918.82    14,000.00          12,510.00         

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8200-411     FURNITURE & FIXTURES -                   2,000.00              2,000.00                      -                2,000.00             5,000.00            City mgr furniture

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -                   2,000.00              -                   2,000.00                     -                2,000.00             5,000.00           
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 366,098.27     438,483.24          (6,225.00)        432,258.24                 274,055.84  432,258.24        470,922.52       

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

Page 12 07/31/2014



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
PUBLIC WORKS FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6210-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 35,408.97        36,883.20                36,883.20             21,767.66      36,883.20        58,855.68               Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 123,918.60     129,272.00              129,272.00           78,599.37      129,272.00      59,186.40               Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-103     SALARIES - TEMPORARY -                         14,400.00               Intern for public works
6210-111     OVERTIME -                    1,000.00                   1,000.00               -                  1,000.00           500.00                    Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 4,942.60          4,972.93                   4,972.93               4,972.93        4,972.93           3,600.00                 Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-113     LONGEVITY 980.80             627.62                      627.62                   627.62           627.62              670.80                    Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-122     TMRS 10,764.41        13,298.20                13,298.20             7,580.55        13,298.20        11,556.32               Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-123     GROUP INSURANCE 26,276.97        30,624.00                30,624.00             17,117.95      30,624.00        19,219.20               Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-124     AFLAC 1,149.49          1,320.00                   1,320.00               602.50           1,320.00           750.00                    Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-127     MEDICARE 2,311.21          2,456.36                   2,456.36               1,456.47        2,456.36           1,802.09                 Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-129     ST DISABILITY 695.42             1,005.00                   1,005.00               398.89           1,005.00           588.80                    Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF
6210-141     CAR ALLOWANCE 1,100.00          1,200.00                   1,200.00               -                  1,200.00           1,200.00                 Alloc change 70-WF/30-GF

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 207,548.47     222,659.31              -                  222,659.31           133,123.94   222,659.31      172,329.29            

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6210-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 400.00             400.00                      400.00                   355.21           400.00              500.00                    
6210-202     POSTAGE (8.60)                60.00                        60.00                     46.08             60.00                100.00                    
6210-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 636.46             700.00                      700.00                   91.19             700.00              800.00                    
6210-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 2,399.36          2,400.00                   2,400.00               930.02           2,400.00           2,500.00                 
6210-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 10,999.32        12,000.00                12,000.00             4,036.14        12,000.00        10,000.00               
6210-208     MINOR APPARATUS 692.62             3,000.00                   3,000.00               206.95           3,000.00           3,500.00                 
6210-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 1,372.80          1,400.00                   1,400.00               1,398.36        1,400.00           1,400.00                 
6210-211     MEDICAL SUPPLIES -                    100.00                      100.00                   37.68             100.00              100.00                    
6210-214     CLEANING SUPPLIES 202.31             2,000.00                   2,000.00               57.80             2,000.00           2,000.00                 
6210-223     SAND/DIRT (46.24)              500.00                      500.00                   216.00           500.00              1,000.00                 
6210-224     ASPHALT/BASE/CONC/CULVERT 11,899.65        25,000.00                25,000.00             1,079.58        25,000.00        30,000.00               

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 28,547.68       47,560.00                -                  47,560.00             8,455.01        47,560.00        51,900.00               

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR
6210-231     FACILITY MAINTENANCE 2,948.48          3,000.00                   3,000.00               2,743.27        3,000.00           4,000.00                 
6210-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 3,808.44          4,800.00                   4,800.00               3,341.95        4,800.00           5,100.00                 
6210-233     EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 3,980.43          7,000.00                   7,000.00               2,328.81        7,000.00           7,500.00                 
6210-234     WASTE DISPOSAL 875.00             2,000.00                   2,000.00               -                  2,000.00           2,000.00                 
6210-298     MAINTENANCE & PARTS - MISC 1,800.40          2,000.00                   2,000.00               592.26           2,000.00           2,000.00                 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 13,412.75       18,800.00                -                  18,800.00             9,006.29        18,800.00        20,600.00               

PURCHASED SERVICES
6210-303     TELEPHONE 2,488.23          3,200.00                   3,200.00               1,805.67        3,200.00           3,200.00                 
6210-307     TRAVEL/TRAINING 403.52             1,500.00                   1,500.00               1,025.68        1,500.00           6,500.00                 
6210-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 6,000.00          36,000.00                (1,500.00)       34,500.00             5,906.31        34,500.00        80,000.00               $10k Engineering/$57K 

street assessments
$13k traffic/speed studies

6210-311     ENGINEERING FEES -                    3,000.00                   3,000.00               400.00           3,000.00           included in acct 309
6210-322     CONTRACTS, OTHER 1,509.35          1,800.00                   1,800.00               456.99           1,800.00           4,000.00                 $2.5k Opticom
6210-323     CELL PHONE 2,143.68          3,500.00                   3,500.00               1,108.18        3,500.00           3,000.00                 
6210-325     AUCTION FEES -                    1,000.00                   1,500.00        2,500.00               350.00           2,500.00           2,000.00                 Line item trsf 309
6210-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 4,621.19          6,500.00                   6,500.00               3,250.06        6,500.00           7,000.00                 
6210-332     DRAINAGE 36.25                -                            -                         -                  33,000.00               
6210-334     STREET LIGHTING 16,091.33        16,600.00                16,600.00             9,479.58        16,600.00        14,000.00               
6210-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL -                    500.00                      500.00                   (53.50)            500.00              10,000.00               

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 33,293.55       73,600.00                -                  73,600.00             23,728.97     73,600.00        162,700.00            

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6210-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 199.86             200.00                      10.00              210.00                   109.63           210.00              300.00                    
6210-443     DUES/MEMBERSHIPS -                    -                            -                         -                  -                     910.00                    
6210-444     EMPLOYEE SCREENING 45.00                175.00                      (10.00)            165.00                   35.00             165.00              -                           Budget in Admin
6210-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 235.00             235.00                      235.00                   100.00           235.00              

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES 479.86             610.00                      -                  610.00                   244.63           610.00              1,210.00                 

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8210-301        IMPROVENTS ROADS -                      624,500.00              624,500.00           25,581.90      624,500.00      696,118.00             
8210-411     FURNITURE -                    -                            -                         -                  3,000.00                 
8210-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS 1,752.13          -                            -                         -                  5,000.00                 Bobcat trailer
8210-420     EQUIPMENT -                    -                            -                         -                  
8210-421     VEHICHLES -                    30,673.40                30,673.40             30,673.40      30,673.40        -                           
8210-433     SIGNS & MARKINGS 14,877.88        18,000.00                18,000.00             8,464.61        18,000.00        20,000.00               
8210-452     COMPUTERS 1,148.00          -                            -                         -                  

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 131,503.58     673,173.40              -                  673,173.40           64,719.91     673,173.40      724,118.00            
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 414,785.89     1,036,402.71          -                  1,036,402.71       239,278.75   1,036,402.71   1,132,857.29         

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 13 07/31/2014



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
PARKS DEPARTMENT FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6211-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 33,280.00       36,945.00               36,945.00                   23,942.18    36,945.00        25,858.56               Alloc change 70-GF/30-WF
6211-103     SALARIES - TEMP PART - TIME 14,777.26       17,595.00               7,000.00          24,595.00                   3,380.00       24,595.00        18,720.00               Alloc funds from vacancy
6211-111     OVERTIME -                   500.00                    500.00                         -                 500.00             500.00                     Alloc change 70-GF/30-WF
6211-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 1,080.76         1,087.39                 1,087.39                     1,087.39       1,087.39          1,100.00                 Alloc change 70-GF/30-WF
6211-113     LONGEVITY 128.00             177.90                    177.90                         177.90          177.90             156.80                     Alloc change 70-GF/30-WF
6211-122     TMRS 2,249.24         2,703.92                 2,703.92                     1,804.69       2,703.92          2,531.55                 Alloc change 70-GF/30-WF
6211-123     GROUP INSURANCE 6,274.10         6,960.00                 6,960.00                     4,204.35       6,960.00          5,174.40                 Alloc change 70-GF/30-WF
6211-124     AFLAC 271.22             300.00                    300.00                         180.35          300.00             210.00                     Alloc change 70-GF/30-WF
6211-127     MEDICARE 671.42             829.78                    829.78                         380.31          829.78             646.39                     Alloc change 70-GF/30-WF
6211-129     ST DISABILITY 150.85             160.00                    160.00                         104.37          160.00             129.11                     Alloc change 70-GF/30-WF

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 58,882.85       67,258.99              7,000.00          74,258.99                   35,261.54    74,258.99       55,026.81               

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6211-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 799.09             635.00                    635.00                         -                 635.00             700.00                     
6211-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 4,952.04         6,000.00                 6,000.00                     2,170.16       6,000.00          6,000.00                 
6211-208     MINOR APPARATUS 928.79             1,000.00                 1,000.00                     169.43          1,000.00          3,000.00                 
6211-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 300.21             515.00                    515.00                         513.00          515.00             700.00                     
6211-212     CHEMICALS 3,426.99         8,500.00                 8,500.00                     2,987.95       8,500.00          9,000.00                 
6211-223     SOIL PREP 1,195.51         6,500.00                 6,500.00                     124.60          6,500.00          7,000.00                 

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 11,602.63       23,150.00              -                    23,150.00                   5,965.14      23,150.00       26,400.00               

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR
6211-229     MAINT & PARTS 3,499.68         3,500.00                 3,500.00                     2,263.51       3,500.00          4,500.00                 
6211-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 547.08             800.00                    800.00                         246.88          800.00             850.00                     
6211-233     EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,348.82         2,500.00                 2,500.00                     1,727.30       2,500.00          3,000.00                 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 6,395.58         6,800.00                 -                    6,800.00                     4,237.69      6,800.00          8,350.00                 

PURCHASED SERVICES
6211-307     TRAVEL/TRAINING 250.19             1,000.00                 1,000.00                     1,000.00       1,000.00          3,000.00                 
6211-322     CONTRACTS OTHER (SEPTIC) -                   500.00                    500.00                         -                 500.00             1,000.00                 White Eagle Septic
6211-323     CELL PHONE 331.72             1,000.00                 1,000.00                     542.11          1,000.00          1,000.00                 
6211-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 1,401.04         1,500.00                 600.00             2,100.00                     1,280.42       2,100.00          2,000.00                 
6211-333     UTILITIES, WATER 10,634.26       8,000.00                 (600.00)            7,400.00                     2,165.85       7,400.00          10,000.00               
6211-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL 130.00             500.00                    500.00                         163.17          500.00             1,000.00                 

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 12,747.21       12,500.00              -                    12,500.00                   5,151.55      12,500.00       18,000.00               

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6211-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 100.00             100.00                    100.00                         25.54            100.00             100.00                     
6211-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIP -                               -                 1,060.00                 
6211-444     EMPLOYEE SCREENING 80.00               100.00                    100.00                         -                 100.00             -                           Budget in Admin
6211-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 25.04               100.00                    100.00                         -                 100.00             

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 205.04             300.00                    -                    300.00                         25.54            300.00             1,160.00                 

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8211-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS 1,959.39         -                           -                               -                 
8211-420      EQUIPMENT 31,371.80       -                           -                               -                 20,500.00               $15.5k- Kaboda tractor

$5k 20 ft. trailer
8211-421     VEHICLES -                   -                           -                               -                 
8211-498     MISC - LANDSCAPING 10,317.16       -                           -                               (575.75)         

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 43,648.35       -                           -                    -                               (575.75)        -                    20,500.00               
TOTAL PARKS DEPARTMENT 133,481.66     110,008.99            7,000.00          117,008.99                 50,065.71    117,008.99     129,436.81             

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 14 07/31/2014



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6212-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 114,296.00        90,074.00               (14,000.00)              76,074.00              65,034.26     76,074.00          38,178.40            ALLOC 50-WF/50-GF
6212-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 69,888.04          91,867.00               91,867.00              53,627.95     91,867.00          114,408.32          
6212-106     CERTIFICATION FEES 600.00                600.00                     (600.00)                    -                           -                  -                      
6212-111     OVERTIME -                       625.00                     600.00                     1,225.00                 392.10           1,225.00            625.00                  
6212-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 1,145.97             1,153.01                  1,153.01                 1,153.01        1,153.01            1,200.00               
6212-113     LONGEVITY PAY 592.00                705.79                     705.79                    705.79           705.79               454.00                  ALLOC 50-WF/50-GF
6212-122     TMRS 12,487.13          14,966.86               14,966.86              8,807.77        14,966.86          14,938.24            ALLOC 50-WF/50-GF
6212-123     GROUP INSURANCE 26,469.05          27,840.00               (600.00)                    27,240.00              15,782.18     27,240.00          25,872.00            ALLOC 50-WF/50-GF
6212-124     AFLAC 1,117.91             1,200.00                  1,200.00                 490.84           1,200.00            1,050.00               ALLOC 50-WF/50-GF
6212-127     MEDICARE 2,573.18             2,764.58                  2,764.58                 1,609.43        2,764.58            2,212.51               ALLOC 50-WF/50-GF
6212-129     ST DISABILITY 895.15                935.00                     935.00                    557.80           935.00               715.80                  ALLOC 50-WF/50-GF
6212-131     UNEMPLOYMENT -                       -                           -                  

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 230,064.43        232,731.24             (14,600.00)              218,131.24            148,161.13   218,131.24       199,654.27          

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6212-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,466.21             5,000.00                  5,000.00                 2,642.18        5,000.00            5,000.00               
6212-202     POSTAGE 255.15                500.00                     350.00                     850.00                    418.27           850.00               500.00                  
6212-203     SUBSCRIPTIONS 24.00                  350.00                     350.00                    -                  350.00               350.00                  
6212-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 499.70                750.00                     750.00                    97.59             750.00               750.00                  
6212-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 855.58                1,200.00                  1,200.00                 234.50           1,200.00            1,500.00               
6212-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 6,086.69             5,000.00                  5,000.00                 2,084.47        5,000.00            5,000.00               
6212-213     SIGNS,FLAGS,LOGOS -                       -                            -                           -                  
6212-228     MEETING SUPPLIES -                       -                            -                           -                  

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 11,187.33          12,800.00               350.00                     13,150.00              5,477.01        13,150.00          13,100.00            

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6212-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,711.80             2,700.00                  2,700.00                 841.62           2,700.00            4,200.00               

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,711.80            2,700.00                 -                            2,700.00                841.62           2,700.00            4,200.00              

PURCHASED SERVICES:

6212-238     PRINTING & COPYING 92.91                  -                            -                           -                  
6212-303     TELEPHONE 2,788.40             3,600.00                  3,600.00                 2,075.81        3,600.00            3,650.00               
6212-305     SOFTWARE SUPPORT/MAINTENANCE 1,277.26             1,500.00                  1,500.00                 1,341.11        1,500.00            1,500.00               
6212-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 5,955.61             8,000.00                  (350.00)                    7,650.00                 2,431.13        7,650.00            9,245.00               
6212-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,500.00             15,000.00               (5,000.00)                9,000.00                 3,220.00        9,000.00            70,000.00            $2k backup inspec

Comp plan $54k
$9k health inspect.
$5k surveying

6212-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS -                       100.00                     100.00                    -                  100.00               100.00                  
6212-323     CELL PHONE 1,385.23             2,320.00                  2,320.00                 1,202.25        2,320.00            2,320.00               
6212-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC -                       -                            -                           -                  
6212-349     FILING FEES 410.50                500.00                     500.00                    51.00             500.00               500.00                  

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 16,409.91          31,020.00               (5,350.00)                24,670.00              10,321.30     24,670.00         87,315.00            

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

6212-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 291.40                400.00                     400.00                    266.23           400.00               400.00                  
6212-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 1,375.50             2,465.00                  2,465.00                 837.16           2,465.00            2,525.00               
6212-444     EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 100.00                120.00                     120.00                    -                  120.00               Budget with Admin
6212-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 195.31                1,200.00                  1,200.00                 263.64           1,200.00            1,200.00               
6212-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 693.68                750.00                     750.00                    185.00           750.00               750.00                  Code update
6212-452     STORM WATER MGMT EXPENSE 2,921.32             3,000.00                  (1,385.85)                1,614.15                 1,614.15        1,614.15            3,000.00               

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 5,577.21            7,935.00                 (1,385.85)                6,549.15                3,166.18       6,549.15            7,875.00              

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8212-420     EQUIPMENT 7,770.00             -                            -                           
8212-452     COMPUTERS -                       -                            
8212-421     VEHICLES -                       -                            -                           

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 7,770.00            -                            -                            -                          -                  -                      -                        
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 272,720.68        287,186.24             (20,985.85)              265,200.39            167,967.24   265,200.39       312,144.27          

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 15 07/31/2014



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
FIRE DEPARTMENT FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTSBUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6300-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 112,714.84             111,069.28                 3,100.00         114,169.28      72,440.33             114,169.28      84,864.00          ALLOC CHANGE 10% TO WF
6300-102     SALARIES - NON EXEMPT FF/EMS 6,923.20                 321,500.00                 321,500.00      206,907.11          321,500.00      549,311.00       One add't FF/Para/2 reclassifications
6300-111     SALARIES - OVERTIME 259.62                     46,600.00                   46,600.00        19,029.93             46,600.00        59,315.40          
6300-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 15,415.20               24,357.05                   24,357.05        24,293.30             24,357.05        30,292.27          
6300-113     LONGEVITY PAY 426.00                     552.46                         552.46              552.46                  552.46              996.00               
6300-122     TMRS 7,797.47                 38,628.00                   38,628.00        21,892.82             38,628.00        63,019.66          Rate incr to 9.79%
6300-123     GROUP INSURANCE 9,639.71                 58,146.00                   58,146.00        36,806.21             58,146.00        93,386.60          Inc costs 7%
6300-124     AFLAC 371.45                     2,490.00                     2,490.00           1,338.01               2,490.00           3,600.00            
6300-125     AD&D INSURANCE 4,946.00                 4,946.00                     4,946.00           4,946.00               4,946.00           5,000.00            
6300-126     WATER 2,796.48                 2,950.00                     2,950.00           1,721.83               2,950.00           3,000.00            
6300-127     MEDICARE 1,629.50                 7,585.00                     7,585.00           5,021.75               7,585.00           10,058.79          
6300-128     OTHER RETIREMENT 28,630.00               36,000.00                   36,000.00        11,160.00             36,000.00        36,000.00          
6300-129     ST DISABILITY 536.06                     2,193.00                     2,193.00           1,261.66               2,193.00           3,273.00            

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 192,085.53             657,016.79                 3,100.00         660,116.79      407,371.41          660,116.79      942,116.72       

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6300-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,549.75                 3,500.00                     (300.00)           3,200.00           473.91                  3,200.00           4,000.00            
6300-202     POSTAGE 844.75                     200.00                         300.00            500.00              413.17                  500.00              400.00               
6300-203     SUBSCRIPTIONS 53.95                       150.00                         150.00              39.00                    150.00              150.00               
6300-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 5,350.31                 6,000.00                     (1,200.00)        4,800.00           3,843.46               4,800.00           4,800.00            
6300-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 7,220.01                 12,800.00                   12,800.00        976.56                  12,800.00        9,000.00            
6300-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 11,785.67               16,000.00                   16,000.00        7,206.67               16,000.00        15,000.00          
6300-207     FUEL - PROPANE 628.35                     2,836.22                     2,836.22           2,836.22               2,836.22           2,500.00            
6300-208     MINOR APPARATUS 12,847.69               40,635.00                   40,635.00        18,654.83             40,635.00        25,010.00          SCBA Parts/Maint R Fire Hoses

Damaged Headsets/Fire Exinguishers
6300-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 20,016.24               30,000.00                   30,000.00        2,087.80               30,000.00        20,000.00          
6300-211     MEDICAL & SURGICAL SUPPL 29,842.63               48,210.00                   48,210.00        32,384.02             48,210.00        23,750.00          
6300-214     SUPPLIES - FD 1,200.00         1,200.00           1,200.00           1,200.00            Paper supplies/bathroom, kitchen, etc
6300-227     PREVENTION ACTIVITES 2,550.00                 3,800.00                     3,800.00           85.00                    3,800.00           3,200.00            

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 93,689.35               164,131.22                 -                   164,131.22      69,000.64            164,131.22      109,010.00       

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR
6300-231     FACILITY MAINTENANCE 11,104.05               12,000.00                   12,000.00        7,578.15               12,000.00        13,000.00          
6300-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 23,686.60               29,650.00                   29,650.00        20,467.00             29,650.00        32,223.00          
6300-233     EQUIPMENT MAINT 2,999.18                 3,000.00                     3,000.00           472.75                  3,000.00           3,000.00            

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 37,789.83               44,650.00                   -                   44,650.00        28,517.90            44,650.00        48,223.00         

PURCHASED SERVICES
6300-302     FIRE DEPT RUN REIMBURS. 124,973.85             125,000.00                 125,000.00      59,005.85             125,000.00      100,000.00       
6300-303     TELEPHONE 1,553.84                 1,700.00                     1,700.00           1,238.19               1,700.00           1,700.00            
6300-304     INTERNET 5,995.00                 6,600.00                     6,600.00           4,360.27               6,600.00           6,600.00            
6300-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 24,938.99               29,253.57                   29,253.57        7,472.74               29,253.57        23,320.00          

6300-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 43,600.00               113,650.00                 113,650.00      35,053.19             113,650.00      84,335.00          $24K Medic oversight/$10K Bunker g

$11k eqp tests/$18k immunizations

$12.3K radio/service/$3.5 medical b

$2.5k class renew/$3k AED batteries 
6300-312     PARAMEDIC SCHOOL 5,700.00                 7,600.00                     7,600.00           -                         7,600.00           10,400.00          

6300-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,508.99                 4,100.00                     4,100.00           3,254.00               4,100.00           4,890.00            $3045 Fireshouse/$1295 Fire Mgr

$400 Hazmat/$150 Weather tap

6300-316     911 DISPATCH 27,795.00               29,900.00                   29,900.00        29,900.00             29,900.00        30,000.00          
6300-317     AMBULANCE (EMS) SERVICE 49,157.65               26,000.00                   26,000.00        22,823.16             26,000.00        -                      
6300-323     CELL PHONE 2,646.26                 4,000.00                     4,000.00           2,491.14               4,000.00           6,000.00            

6300-325     LIABILITY INSURANCE 5,511.99                 6,398.09                     6,398.09           6,398.09               6,398.09           7,200.00            

6300-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 13,845.75               17,000.00                   17,000.00        10,667.06             17,000.00        17,000.00          

6300-333     UTILITIES, WATER 2,051.06                 2,050.00                     2,050.00           1,484.89               2,050.00           3,000.00            
6300-337     PAGER SERVICE -                           600.00                         600.00              -                         600.00              600.00               

6300-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL 592.92                     300.00                         300.00              -                         300.00              300.00               

6300-350     EMS EQUIP FINANCING -                           62,688.47                   62,688.47        62,688.47             62,688.47        62,688.47          

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 311,871.30             436,840.13                 -                   436,840.13      246,837.05          436,840.13      358,033.47       

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6300-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 3,543.90                 4,500.00                     4,500.00           2,339.50               4,500.00           2,200.00            Service Awards/Plaques
6300-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 3,210.00                 7,870.00                     7,870.00           3,538.20               7,870.00           6,495.00            TCFP/FIANT/CLIA/SFFMA/DSHA/NR
6300-444     MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS 963.00                     1,600.00                     1,600.00           188.00                  1,600.00           Budget in Admin
6300-447     EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERV 5,999.47                 7,500.00                     7,500.00           2,336.04               7,500.00           8,500.00            
6300-448     CERT TRAINING & EQUIPMENT 6,099.91                 12,700.00                   12,700.00        4,835.00               12,700.00        7,200.00            
6300-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 2,500.00                 2,500.00                     2,500.00           -                         2,500.00           -                      
6300-498     MISCELLANEOUS 1,474.86                 1,500.00                     1,500.00           230.49                  1,500.00           1,500.00            

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 23,791.14               38,170.00                   -                   38,170.00        13,467.23            38,170.00        25,895.00         

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8300-200     BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS -                           -                               -                     -                         
8300-411     FURNITURE & FIXTURES -                           -                               -                     -                         
8300-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS -                           -                               -                     -                         
8300-420     EQUIPMENT 99,277.20                   99,277.20        97,401.80             99,277.20        
8300-421     VEHICLES 49,999.79               253,807.00                 253,807.00      253,807.00          253,807.00      
8300-450      COMPUTER HARDWARE 14,588.53               30,197.81                   30,197.81        19,543.81             30,197.81        4,500.00            2 Replacement computers/laptop EMS
8300-452      HARDWARE AND TELECOMMUN 8,456.04                 26,106.78                   26,106.78        26,106.78             26,106.78        12,000.00          Two Portable radios

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 73,044.36               409,388.79                 -                   409,388.79      396,859.39          409,388.79      16,500.00         

TOTAL FIRE 732,271.51             1,750,196.93             3,100.00         1,753,296.93  1,162,053.62       1,753,296.93  1,499,778.19    

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 16 07/31/2014



11 -GENERAL FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION - NON-DEPARTMENTAL FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 ADJ DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6999-109     TMRS - COLA -                 -                       45,157.00 70% REPEATING(BEG JAN 15)
6999-110     PERFORMANCE/INCENTIVE PAY 63,469.00 $37,470/3 % ADJ/$25,999 2 % COLA
6999-130     LT DISABILITY -                 -                       6,182.00 STANDARD LTD PLAN

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES -                 -                          -                     -                     -                       -                  114,808.00

MAINT & SUPPLIES
6999-214     CLEANINING SUPPLIES 993.20           1,000.00 1,000.00            516.17                 1,000.00         1,000.00
6999-231   FACILITY MAINT 14,675.20     14,000.00 14,000.00         11,605.14           14,000.00       16,200.00 $15.5k maint/$400 security camera/$300 FD camera monitoring

TOTAL MAINT & SUPPLIES 15,668.40     15,000.00              -                     15,000.00         12,121.31           15,000.00      17,200.00

PURCHASED SERVICES
6999-305     IT SUPPORT/MAINT 34,067.60     54,450.00 54,450.00         36,300.00           54,450.00       68,850.00 Includes Fire dept. support
6999-306     SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE -                 19,900.00 19,900.00         11,036.05           19,900.00       17,249.00 IPS/Cloud/Desktop/archive/Spam
6999-308     CLEANING & PEST CONTROL 10,840.00     13,700.00 13,700.00         6,965.97              13,700.00       13,700.00
6999-309      PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 27,500.00     0.00 -                     -                       
6999-310     LEGAL SERVICES 52,952.02     70,000.00 70,000.00         40,286.94           70,000.00       74,290.00 Rate change to $170 per hr
6999-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS -                 1,000.00 (1,000.00)          -                     -                       -                  0.00
6999-326     LAW ENFORCEMENT 82,250.00     84,827.00 84,827.00         84,827.00       94,827.00 Includes 220  extra patrol hours
6999-327     CITIZENS ON PATROL 1,557.13        1,500.00 (500.00)             1,000.00            169.33                 1,000.00         1,000.00
6999-336     ANIMAL CONTROL 33,600.00     34,000.00 34,000.00         25,500.00           34,000.00       34,000.00

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 242,766.75   279,377.00            (1,500.00)          277,877.00       183,878.54         277,877.00    303,916.00

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8999-200     BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 21,455.00     0.00 5,000.00           5,000.00            -                       5,000.00         59,109.00 Recl from 309 dept 6212 FY 13-14/cubicles 

Balance air system city hall $9,342
stain pavillion/cedar on city hall $9,547
Server room/condition storage/one office $40,220

8999-420      EQUIPMENT 9,565.31        19,000.00 19,000.00         -                       19,000.00       
8999-421      VEHICLE -                 45,300.00 45,300.00         33,975.00           45,300.00       0.00
8999-451     SOFTWARE, SUBSCR, BOOKS       9,586.59        12,400.00 12,400.00         5,374.08              12,400.00       4,245.00 $1980 Antivirus/$2265 laserfische relay agent 

8999-452      HARDWARE, TELECOM 7,865.00        10,400.00 29,953.00         40,353.00         5,278.02              40,353.00       8,300.00 Upgrade to new server FY 13/14
 $1.5k Wi-fi unit replacement
$3K desktop replacements
$3k main city router replac/$800 main city network switch

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 48,471.90     87,100.00              34,953.00         122,053.00       44,627.10           122,053.00    71,654.00
TOTAL NON-DEPARTMENTAL 306,907.05   381,477.00            33,453.00         414,930.00       240,626.95         414,930.00    507,578.00     

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 17 07/31/2014



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Page 18



21 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
REVENUES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14  DESCRIPTION

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES

4404 INTERGOVERNT REVENUE 280,000.00         1,244,000.00       (244,000.00)       1,000,000.00         1,000,000.00   1,244,000.00           324,000.00               $244k funding from county/$80k from school district

TOTAL FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 280,000.00         1,244,000.00      (244,000.00)       1,000,000.00         1,000,000.00   1,244,000.00           324,000.00               

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

4800  BOND PROCEEDS -                        -                           -                     -                             

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL -                        -                       -                           -                     -                             -                              

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
4911  INTEREST INCOME 5,726.09              6,634.60               6,634.60                 4,288.75           6,634.60                   6,650.00                    

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REV 5,726.09 6,634.60 -                       6,634.60 4,288.75 6,634.60 6,650.00

***TOTAL REVENUES*** 285,726.09         1,250,634.60      (244,000.00)       1,006,634.60         1,004,288.75   1,250,634.60           330,650.00

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL PROPOSED BUDGET 

Page 19 07/31/2014



21 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
PUBLIC WORKS FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIP

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8210-490-105 FM 2551 WASTE WATER GRAVITY SEWER 717,254.17     70,000.00           70,000.00        2,161.43      70,000.00$           
8210-490-107 MCGARITY G STORAGE TANK 143,205.55     -                       -                    -                
8210-490-108  STINSON WATER LINE PROJECT 57,672.28       1,195,371.00     (995,371.00)$       200,000.00      11,497.00    200,000.00$         983,874.00         Rollover from FY 13/14
8210-490-111  OSAGE WATER LINE PROJECT 17,165.00       129,980.00         (59,980.00)$         70,000.00        6,195.00      70,000.00$           53,785.00           Rollover from FY 13/14
8210-490-112  ROCK RIDGE WATER LINE PROJECT -                   518,300.00         (18,300.00)$         500,000.00      489,580.47 500,000.00$         18,300.00           Rollover from FY 13/14
8210-490-113  SHEPHERDS CREEK WATER LN. -                   15,500.00           15,500.00        9,600.00      15,500.00$           
8210-490-114 LOST CREEK VALLEY PROJ -                   12,975.00           12,975.00        12,975.00    12,975.00$           
8210-490-115 ROCK RIDGE WATER LINE PHASE 2 -                   49,500.00           (19,500.00)$         30,000.00        -                30,000.00$           619,500.00         $19.5k Rollover from FY 13/14 Design

$600k Construction
8210-490-116 WHITE ROCK CREEK BRIDGE W LINE A -                   230,000.00         (30,000.00)$         200,000.00      -                200,000.00$         30,000.00           Rollover from FY 13/14
8210-490-117  ABANDONED 8" AC FM WATER LINE -                   25,000.00           25,000.00        25,000.00$           
8210-490-118  NORTH STATION PUMP IMPROVEMENTS 44,700.00           Funded from reserves
8210-490-119  MCGARITY PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS 70,000.00           Funded from reserves
8210-491-106  DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT -                   -                       -                    -                
8210-491-107  STINSON ROAD BRIDGE  AT MUDDY CREEK 2,646.00         -                       -                    -                
8210-491-108  FY 11-12 CAP ROAWAY PROJ -                   -                       -                    -                
8210-491-109  WHITE ROCK TRAIL 25,000.00       -                       -                    -                
8210-491-110  FIRE DEPT EXPANSION PROJ 62,253.17       686,486.00         686,486.00      189,915.33 686,486.00$         2,071,261.00      Funded from 2011 CO
8210-491-111  FY 12-13 CAP ROADWAY PROJ 440,940.00     -                       -                    -                
8210-491-112  W LUCAS CC INTERSECTION PROJ RTR 182,214.21     125,300.00         (25,300.00)$         100,000.00      13,708.82    100,000.00$         25,300.00           
8210-491-113  W LUCAS RD FM 2551/FM 1378 -                   1,500,000.00     (1,400,000.00)$   100,000.00      18,600.00    10,000.00$           1,400,000.00      Rollover FY 13/14
8210-491-114  ESTATES/ANGEL PKWY INTERSEC -                   520,000.00         (320,000.00)$       200,000.00      64,420.21    200,000.00$         320,000.00         Rollover FY 13/14
8210-491-115  WHITE EOCK RIDGE ROW -                   13,000.00           13,000.00        -                13,000.00$           
8210-491-116  FM 1378/3286 INTERSECTION/BAIT SHOP 300,000.00         Funding Impact Fees
8210-491-117  ESTELLE/CC INTERSEC 90,000.00           $80K Funding from school/$10K R Impact Fees
8210-491-118  CIVIC CENTER -                   -                    -                137,985.00         New community room/conference room/designed for public use

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,648,350.38 5,091,412.00 (2,868,451.00)$   2,222,961.00 818,653.26 2,132,961.00$     6,164,705.00

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 1,648,350.38 5,091,412.00 (2,868,451.00)$   2,222,961.00 818,653.26 2,132,961.00$     6,164,705.00

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 20 07/31/2014



WATER FUND

Page 21



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
 REVENUES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14  DESCRIPTION

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES

4461         WATER REVENUE 2,683,670.51    2,554,000.00        2,554,000.00                1,369,856.24    2,554,000.00    2,754,782.00             new w rates
4462         WATER TAPS & BORES 3,500.00            500.00                   500.00                           500.00               500.00               500.00                        
4463         PENALTY & INTEREST 19,780.00          18,000.00              18,000.00                     13,995.00         18,000.00         20,000.00                   
4467         WATER METER 230,400.00       165,000.00            165,000.00                   102,000.00       165,000.00       125,500.00                 
4468         WATER METER REPAIRS 1,034.80            2,637.66                4,500.00            7,137.66                        6,237.66           7,137.66           7,000.00                     
4469         WASTEWATER FEES 29,605.43          30,000.00              2,000.00            32,000.00                     20,419.44         32,000.00         32,000.00                   
4473         DISCONNECT  CHGS 16.88                 -                          -                                 -                     
4478         TRASH SERVICE 402,654.30       414,000.00            414,000.00                   274,994.15       414,000.00       418,000.00                 
4497         FH METER RENTAL INC 5,950.00            4,500.00                (500.00)              4,000.00                        3,000.00           4,000.00           4,000.00                     
4498         MISC. FEE AND CHARGES 500.00               -                          -                                 -                     

TOTAL FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 3,377,111.92    3,188,637.66        6,000.00            3,194,637.66               1,791,002.49   3,194,637.66   3,361,782.00             

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

4911         INTEREST INCOME 6,299.59            4,420.00                (300.00)              4,120.00                        2,766.93           4,120.00           4,120.00                     
4912         RETURN CHECK CHARGE 425.00               400.00                   (150.00)              250.00                           200.00               250.00               250.00                        
4913         NTMWD REFUND 29,741.60          50,000.00              (19,000.00)         31,000.00                     -                     31,000.00         31,000.00                   
4914         INSURANCE CLAIM REIMB -                      -                          -                                 -                     
4995         REIMBURSEMENTS -                      -                          -                                 -                     
4996         TRANSFER IN -                      -                          -                                 -                     

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 36,466.19         54,820.00              (19,450.00)        35,370.00                     2,966.93           35,370.00         35,370.00                   

*** TOTAL REVENUES *** 3,413,578.11    3,243,457.66        (13,450.00)        3,230,007.66               1,793,969.42   3,230,007.66   3,397,152.00             

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL PROPOSED BUDGET 

Page 22 07/31/2014



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14 DESCRIP

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6400-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT  200,815.08      180,655.40              16,143.00      196,798.40             115,832.63      196,798.40          215,704.32             ALLOC CHANGE DS- WF-50/GF-50
6400-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 105,546.81      109,054.40              (9,345.00)       99,709.40               61,958.74         99,709.40            187,539.04             ALLOC CHANGE PW- WF-70/GF-30
6400-103     SALARIES - TEMPORARY 3,258.78           4,000.00                   4,000.00                 3,967.88           4,000.00              -                           
6400-106     CERTIFICATION FEES       5,550.00           6,000.00                   (1,600.00)       4,400.00                 2,978.74           4,400.00              6,000.00                 
6400-109     TMRS-COLA -                     -                             -                           -                     -                        13,488.00               70 % REPEATING(BEG JAN 15)
6400-110     PERFORMANCE/INCENTIVE PAY -                     -                             -                           -                     -                        22,427.00               $13,456 3 % ADJ/$8,971 2 % COLA
6400-111     OVERTIME 15,873.24         20,000.00                 (670.00)           19,330.00               11,673.68         19,330.00            20,000.00               
6400-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION  4,807.50           4,837.01                   4,837.01                 4,837.01           4,837.01              8,400.00                 ALLOC CHANGE PW- WF-70/GF-30
6400-113     LONGEVITY PAY  1,698.00           1,639.48                   1,639.48                 1,639.48           1,639.48              2,314.40                 ALLOC CHANGE PW- WF-70/GF-30
6400-122     TMRS   20,629.63         23,631.49                 23,631.49               13,438.75         23,631.49            39,477.52               ALLOC CHANGE PW- WF-70/GF-30
6400-123     GROUP INSURANCE  39,515.30         40,170.00                 (4,800.00)       35,370.00               22,711.86         35,370.00            60,614.40               ALLOC CHANGE PW- WF-70/GF-30
6400-124     AFLAC 1,676.88           1,650.00                   1,650.00                 951.13              1,650.00              2,460.00                 ALLOC CHANGE PW- WF-70/GF-30
6400-127     MEDICARE   4,776.11           4,884.11                   4,884.11                 2,834.26           4,884.11              5,847.03                 ALLOC CHANGE PW- WF-70/GF-30
6400-129     ST DISABILITY 1,427.42           1,375.00                   1,375.00                 845.70              1,375.00              1,926.53                 ALLOC CHANGE PW- WF-70/GF-30
6400-130     LT DISABILITY -                     -                             -                           -                     -                        1,846.00                 STANDARD LTD PLAN
6400-141     CAR ALLOWANCE 3,600.00           3,600.00                   3,600.00                 2,601.34           3,600.00              3,600.00                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 409,174.75      401,496.89              (272.00)           401,224.89            246,271.20      401,224.89          591,644.24            

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6400-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 817.07              750.00                      750.00                     750.00              750.00                  800.00                     
6400-202     POSTAGE 594.14              1,000.00                   1,200.00         2,200.00                 1,162.40           2,200.00              2,000.00                 Includes postage for annual report
6400-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 454.23              500.00                      500.00                     57.29                500.00                  600.00                     
6400-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,199.77           1,200.00                   1,200.00                 55.13                1,200.00              1,500.00                 
6400-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 11,071.28         18,000.00                 (1,000.00)       17,000.00               4,998.94           17,000.00            17,000.00               
6400-207     FUEL - PROPANE 347.02              2,000.00                   2,000.00                 803.60              2,000.00              2,000.00                 
6400-208     MINOR APPARATUS 319.98              1,995.88                   1,995.88                 -                     1,995.88              3,000.00                 
6400-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 899.52              1,000.00                   1,000.00                 999.92              1,000.00              2,000.00                 
6400-211     MEDICAL SUPPLIES -                     100.00                      100.00                     -                     100.00                  100.00                     
6400-212     CHEMICALS -                     300.00                      300.00                     -                     300.00                  300.00                     
6400-222     MISCELLANEOUS 486.65              500.00                      (200.00)           300.00                     -                     300.00                  500.00                     
6400-223     SAND/DIRT -                     500.00                      500.00                     -                     500.00                  1,000.00                 
6400-224     ASPHALT/FLEXBASE/CONCRETE -                     1,500.00                   1,500.00                 -                     1,500.00              2,500.00                 

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 16,189.66        29,345.88                 -                   29,345.88               8,827.28           29,345.88            33,300.00               

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6400-231     FACILITY MAINTENANCE 857.28              1,000.00                   1,000.00                 175.47              1,000.00              1,100.00                 
6400-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2,073.73           4,500.00                   4,500.00                 2,003.55           4,500.00              4,700.00                 
6400-233     REPAIR & MAINT WTR FACILITIES 36,263.60         57,000.00                 57,000.00               29,362.90         57,000.00            60,000.00               
6400-234      REPAIR & MAINT SEWER FACILITIES 149.79              5,000.00                   5,000.00                 179.23              5,000.00              5,000.00                 

 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 39,344.40        67,500.00                 -                   67,500.00               31,721.15        67,500.00            70,800.00               

PURCHASED SERVICES:

6400-237     TRASH SERVICES/RECYCLE 370,515.58      369,300.00              369,300.00             243,082.97      369,300.00          372,000.00             
6400-302     AUDITING & ACCOUNTING 9,250.00           11,500.00                 11,500.00               6,350.00           11,500.00            12,500.00               
6400-303     TELEPHONE 3,691.21           5,400.00                   5,400.00                 2,679.24           5,400.00              5,400.00                 
6400-304     UB PROCESSING 19,161.87         20,000.00                 20,000.00               12,589.75         20,000.00            21,000.00               
6400-305     SOFTWARE SUPPORT/MAINT 7,746.85           9,450.00                   9,450.00                 8,463.95           9,450.00              10,525.00               
6400-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 3,559.37           5,500.00                   300.00            5,800.00                 5,429.84           5,800.00              8,073.00                 $388 training DM/$7,685 training Water dept
6400-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 53,632.48         88,032.00                 (600.00)           87,432.00               39,130.78         87,432.00            63,700.00               
6400-311     ENGINEERING FEES -                     2,000.00                   2,000.00                 750.00              2,000.00              -                           Incl in acct 309
6400-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 4,332.84           5,750.00                   5,750.00                 2,550.60           5,750.00              6,400.00                 Konica Lease $6.4k
6400-315     WATER - NTMWD 1,100,032.50   1,206,892.80           1,206,892.80         704,020.80      1,206,892.80      1,326,325.00         Est NTMWD rate $2.11 per 1,000 gallons w $1.92
6400-316     WASTEWATER   NTMWD 20,042.07         24,000.00                 24,000.00               16,593.36         24,000.00            25,000.00               
6400-323     CELL PHONE 2,175.90           3,405.00                   300.00            3,705.00                 3,746.12           3,705.00              5,000.00                 
6400-325     LIABILITY INSURANCE 11,714.24         13,384.70                 13,384.70               13,384.70         13,384.70            15,000.00               
6400-331     ELECTRICITY 56,643.47         65,000.00                 65,000.00               36,607.33         65,000.00            65,000.00               
6400-333     UTILITIES, WATER 223.73              250.00                      250.00                     136.86              250.00                  300.00                     
6400-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL 201.24              1,000.00                   1,000.00                 -                     1,000.00              5,000.00                 

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 1,662,923.35   1,830,864.50           -                   1,830,864.50         1,095,516.30   1,830,864.50      1,941,223.00         

GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES/TRANSFERS

6400-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 499.58              500.00                      500.00                     349.88              500.00                  500.00                     
6400-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS -                           1,750.00                 
6400-444     EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 101.19              300.00                      300.00                     -                     300.00                  -                           Budget in Admin
6400-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 380.00              500.00                      500.00                     248.00              500.00                  
6400-999     PILOT TRANSFER OUT 188,270.64      174,544.00              10,579.00      185,123.00             -                     185,123.00          187,477.00             

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES/TRANSFERS 189,251.41      175,844.00              10,579.00      186,423.00            597.88              186,423.00          189,727.00            

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8400-411     FURNITURE -                     -                   1,345.00                 Incl chair for DM $345
8400-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS -                     1,004.12                   1,004.12                 1,004.12           1,004.12              5,000.00                 
8400-417     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS - SEWER 21,945.64         1,000.00                 
8400-420     EQUIPMENT - WATER 4,079.08           -                             -                           -                     7,000.00                 $5K 20 FT TRAILER/$2K 12 INCH TRENCH BUCKET
8400-422     EQUIPMENT- SEWER -                     -                             -                           
8400-421     VEHICLE  -                     33,860.00                 (5.80)               33,854.20               33,854.20         33,854.20            -                           
8400-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 3,298.99           -                             -                           -                     
8400-452     HARDWARE & TELECOMM 4,742.97           -                             -                           -                     
8400-490     METER READ SYSTEM 39,943.50         71,600.00                 71,600.00               71,543.77         71,600.00            24,000.00               40 meters/60 meters on hand

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 74,010.18        106,464.12              (5.80)               106,458.32            106,402.09      106,458.32          38,345.00               

TOTAL WATER UTILITIES 2,390,893.75   2,611,515.39           10,301.20      2,621,816.59         1,489,335.90   2,621,816.59      2,865,039.24         

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 23 07/31/2014



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

DEBT SERVICE
7900-209    2002 WATER BOND-PRINCIPAL 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00
7900-210    2002 WATER BOND-INTEREST 7,000.00 2,350.00 2,350.00 2,350.00 2,350.00 0.00
7900-214    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 80,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
7900-215    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 72,250.00 68,425.00 68,425.00 35,275.00 68,425.00 64,175.00
7900-216    2007 GO REFUNDING- PRINCIPAL 65,000.00 70,000.00 70,000.00 70,000.00 70,000.00 175,000.00
7900-217    2007 GO REFUNDING- INTEREST 42,958.00 40,420.00 40,420.00 20,868.00 40,420.00 35,814.00
7900-218    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 75,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 85,000.00
7900-219    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 73,375.00 71,825.00 71,825.00 36,312.50 71,825.00 70,175.00
7900-298    BOND SALE EXPENSES 200.00 200.00 200.00 100.00 200.00 200.00

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 515,783.00        533,220.00          -                                  533,220.00          444,905.50          533,220.00          530,364.00

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 515,783.00        533,220.00           -                                   533,220.00           444,905.50          533,220.00          530,364.00               

Page 24 07/31/2014



DEBT SERVICE FUND

Page 25



59 - DEBT SERVICES FUND 2012-2013 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2013-2014 2014-2015
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/14

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

REVENUES

PROPERTY TAXES
4011      PROPERTY TAXES 656,535.46     654,710.00                            150.00                  654,860.00                 654,245.28   654,860.00     608,810.00               
4012      PROPERTY TAXES-DELINQUENT 9,710.44         8,500.00                                900.00                  9,400.00                     9,285.74       9,400.00          8,000.00                    
4015      PROPERTY TAXES-P&I 11,169.84       2,200.00                                400.00                  2,600.00                     2,487.65       2,600.00          1,900.00                    
4911      INTEREST INCOME 500.97             240.00                                    600.00                  840.00                         769.31           840.00             500.00                       

TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES 677,916.71     665,650.00                            2,050.00               667,700.00                 666,787.98  667,700.00     619,210.00               

TOTAL REVENUES 677,916.71     665,650.00                            2,050.00               667,700.00                 666,787.98  667,700.00     619,210.00               

  
EXPENDITURES

DEBT SERVICE

7900-209    2002 WATER BOND-PRINCIPAL 155,000.00     165,000.00                            165,000.00                 165,000.00   165,000.00     -                              
7900-210    2002 WATER BOND-INTEREST 11,320.00       3,877.50                                3,877.50                     3,877.50       3,877.50          -                              
7900-214    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 75,000.00       80,000.00                              80,000.00                   80,000.00     80,000.00        80,000.00                 
7900-215    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 56,206.25       52,912.50                              52,912.50                   27,306.25     52,912.50        49,512.50                 
7900-216    2007 GO REFUNDING- PRINCIPAL 10,000.00       10,000.00                              10,000.00                   10,000.00     10,000.00        180,000.00               
7900-217    2007 GO REFUNDING- INTEREST 64,296.00       63,920.00                              63,920.00                   32,054.00     63,920.00        60,348.00                 
7900-218    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 120,000.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 130,000.00
7900-219    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 113,750.00 111,300.00 111,300.00 56,275.00 111,300.00 108,750.00
7900-298    BOND SALE EXPENSES 670.00             950.00                                    950.00                         100.00           950.00             200.00                       

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 606,242.25     612,960.00                            -                         612,960.00                 499,612.75  612,960.00     608,810.50               

Page 26 07/31/2014



Item No. 12 
 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director   
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss and consider the approval of site plan for Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart 
Addition a tract of land containing 1.478 acres of land, with proposed site containing 
two commercial buildings; one being a 1,752 square feet a Starbucks with a drive 
through, and a 3,485 square feet a Wendy’s restaurant with a drive through.  
 
Background Information:  
 

Tract 1.478 acres, minimum lot size permitted Commercial zone 30,000 square feet. 
Two buildings total square footage 5237 square feet. 
Lot coverage maximum 75% (platting was approved for this site prior to the change 
of maximum 65% coverage). 
Required Parking 1 space for every three seats, way over the minimum requirement. 
Stormwater run-off is through the Wal-Mart retention pond. 
Minimum interior landscape/green space is 8%. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Site plan 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:   
 
Increased revenue for the general fund through property taxes and sales tax. Increase 
to the water fund through water use.    
 

Recommendation:  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval at the July 10, 2014 
meeting.  
 

City of Lucas
City Council 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Item No. 12 
 

Motion:     
 
I make a Motion to approve/deny the site plan for Lot 3 of the Lucas Wal-Mart 
Addition a tract of land containing 1.478 acres of land, with proposed site containing 
two commercial buildings; one being a 1,752 square feet a Starbucks with a drive 
through, and a 3,485 square feet a Wendy’s restaurant with a drive through. 
 
 
 



644

643

642

642

64
2

641

643

643

643

644

6
4
4

643
642

643

644

644

6
4
2

SHIELD ENGINEERING GROUP. PLLC

SHEET:

Electrical Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Plumbing Engineer

Structural Engineer

Civil Engineer

Architect

                                       

                                       

                                       

                                       

                                       

                                       1

2

3

4

5

6

0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

30 60 90

THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY                , PE.      , ON   /  /  .  ALTERATION OF A SEALED DOCUMENT WITHOUT PROPER NOTIFICATION TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENGINEER IS AN OFFENSE UNDER THE TEXAS ENGINEERING PRACTICE ACT.

817.810.0696

Fort Worth, Texas 76147

P.O. Box 470636

SURVEYING SERVICES

CIVIL ENGINEERING &

E
S

G
S

TBPLS 10193890

TBPE F-11039

COPYRIGHT   2014 by SHIELD ENGINEERING GROUP PLLC. TBPE F-11039 & TBPLS 10193890c

GROUP, PLLC

SHIELD ENGINEERING 

LINEAR! ARCHITECTURE

C . 

NO.  DATE       DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS / SUBMISSIONS:

DATE: 6/17/14

SHIELD PROJECT #: 2014018.04

Type or Print Name   PE #     Date

Jon M. Kroehler    94247   6/24/14

by, or under supervision of:

Purposes. They were prepared

Construction, Bidding or Permit

Review and not Intended for

These documents are for Design

   FOR REVIEW ONLY

     PRELIMINARY

L
U

C
A

S
  

W
E

N
D

Y
’S
 -
 S
IT

E
P

L
A

N

L
U

C
A

S
 S

T
A

R
B

U
C

K
S
/

L
O

T
 
3
, 

B
L

O
C

K
 

A
, 

W
A

L
-

M
A

R
T
 

L
U

C
A

S
 

A
D

D
N

WM WM

CO

CO

WMWM

CO

CO

CO

CO

CO

3

5

12

7

8

7

3

E
S

C
A

P
E
 

L
A

N
E

D
R
IV

E
 

T
H

R
O

U
G

H

AUTO PARKING DETAIL

   

AUTO PARKING DETAIL

4" SOLID WHITE STRIPE

FACE OF CURB
TYP

3’R

1
9
’
*

OF STRIPING

REFERENCE ARCH DRAWINGS FOR DETAILS 

PER ARCHITECT, ADA AND MUTCD STANDARDS

INSTALL HANDICAP SIGN, POST, & STRIPING

NTS

9’
9’

9’

SPACES.

PLAN FOR LOCATION & SIZE OF NON TYPICAL 

* TYPICAL PARKING SPACE IS 9’x 19’. SEE 

VICINITY MAP

NTS

LUCAS ROAD
WEST 

SITE

A
L

L
IS

O
N

F
.M
. 

2
5
5
1

BETHANY

M
A

L
O

N
E

McGARITY

D
IL

L
E

H
A

Y

F.M. 2170

N

   

SIGN
MENU

3
0
’ 

UTILITY EASEMENT

FIRE LANE, ACCESS &

U
T
IL
IT

Y
 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

F
IR

E
 

L
A

N
E
, 

A
C

C
E

S
S
 

&

36’

LEGEND

SS

DW

FIRE HYDRANT

COMMERCIAL ZONING

VACANT COMMERCIAL LOT

LOT 4, BLOCK A

COMMERCIAL ZONING

WALMART
LOT 1

D
R
IV

E
 

T
H

R
O

U
G

H
ENCLOSURE DETAILS)

DUMPSTER (SEE AS1.1 FOR 

ENCLOSURE DETAILS)

DUMPSTER (SEE SP1 FOR DUMPSTER

FFE: 645–

COMMERCIAL ZONING

BANK OF AMERICA

LOT 2, BLOCK A

E
S

C
A

P
E
 

L
A

N
E

COPYRIGHT   2014 by SHIELD ENGINEERING GROUP PLLC. TBPE F-11039 & TBPLS 10193890c
C . 

G
A

S
G

A
S

G
A

S

IR
R

U
G

E

4
" 

SS

4
" S

S

4
"
 
S

S

2
"
 

D
W

1
�

"
 

D
W

1 �
"
 

D
WU

G
E

SCREEN & CANOPY

DIGITAL ORDER 

4 7

8

7

PERMEABLE CONCRETE

BOARD
PRE-MENU 

SIGN
MONUMENT 

WENDY’S

SIGN
MONUMENT 

STARBUCKS

o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e o/e

6
4
4

6
4
4

644

6
4
4

643

643

6
4
3

643

643

643

6
4
3

64
3

642

6
4
2

6
4
2

642

641

6
4
1

641

640

640 640

639 639

639

6386
3
8

638

637

637

EXIST 8" SS

EXIST 21" RCP
EXIST 36" RCP

E
X
IS

T
 
2
1"
 
R
C
P

E
X
IS

T
 

2
4
"
 

R
C

P

EXIST 42" RCP

IR
R

D
O

M

EXIST 8" WATER

15’ LANDSCAPE SETBACK

100’ BUILDING SETBACK

FFE=644.5
PROP

N
0
°

4
6
’0

8
"

W
 
 

2
5
7
.8

’

S89°33’32"W  251.2’

N
0
°

2
6
’2

8
"

W
 
 

2
5
6
.2

’

S89°13’52"W  249.7’

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

100’ BUILDING SETBACK

RAMP
BARRIER FREE

RAMP
BARRIER FREE

FFE=643.5
PROP

PATIO
260 SF 

WEST LUCAS ROAD

30.4’

7
0
’

9
8
.7

’

47.1’9’
9’

25’
25’

F
.M
. 
2
5
5
1

20’R

15’R

9’R

20’R

10’R

SITE DATA SUMMARY TABLE

  HAZARD AREA

  THIS PROPERTY DOES NOT LIE WIHTIN A 100 YEAR FLOOD

  PANEL NUMBER 48085C0405J EFFECTIVE JUNE 2, 2009 

  ADMINISTRATION FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP COMMUNITY 

  AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT FEDERAL INSURANCE 

ACCORDING TO THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 

 (2 HANDICAP SPACES)

33 PARKING SPACES ARE PROVIDED FOR WENDY’S

 (2 HANDICAP SPACES)

38 PARKING SPACES ARE PROVIDED FOR STARBUCKS 

71 PARKING SPACES ARE PROVIDED FOR THE LOT 

  OF LOT BRING THE IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE TO 74.0%

LOT 3 IS CURRENTLY 0% IMPERVIOUS.  IMPROVEMENTS 

PROP BUILDING: 1752 SF 

PROP BUILDING WILL BE USED AS A COFFEEHOUSE FACILITY

   FORT WORTH, TX 76102

   505 PECAN STREET, SUITE 101

   NOBLE RE

STARBUCKS PROPERTY OWNERS

PROP BUILDING IS ONE STORY (16’ TO TOP OF ROOF)

PROP BUILDING: 3405 SF

PROP BUILDING WILL BE USED AS A RESTAURANT FACILITY 

  SAN ANTONIO, TX 78232

  17890 BLANCO RD., SUITE 444

  MUY HAMBURGERS PARTNERS, LLC

WENDY’S PROPERTY OWNERS

PROP BUILDING COVERAGE: 8% LOT COVERAGE: 92%

TOTAL LOT SIZE: 64,385 SQ.FT., 1.478 ACRES

LOT 3 IS ZONED COMMERCIAL

GREEN SPACE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

PROPOSED WATER LINE

PAVEMENT WIDTH VARIES

25’25’

11’

263’

8
0
’

 1.1

18’

18’

18’

1
8
’

1
8
’

1
8
’

1
8
’

18’

24’ 24’

2
4
’

2
4
’

20’

2
4
’

2
4
’

10’

1
0
0
’

28.6’

1
0
0
.6
’

56.7’

60’

POLE FINISH: BRONZE

POLE DIAMETER: 5"

POLE HEIGHT: 30’

AREA LUMINAIRE WITH DARK BRONZE FINISH

PROPOSED LIGHTING TO INCLUDE LITHONIA, LED 

ALL LIGHTS SHALL INCLUDE A FULL CUT OFF TYPE FIXTURE.

20’R

20’

19’

9
5
’



Item No. 13 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 

Agenda Item:  

 
Discuss and consider a minor plat application submitted by Sarah Colter for Abs 
A0824 Jas M Snider Survey, Tract 10, 4.098 acres and Abs A0824 Jas M Snider 
Survey, Tract 41, 4.0 acres otherwise known as 1125 Country Club Road. 
 
 

Background Information:  
 
Mrs. Colter is taking two existing lots of record that are each 4 acres +/- and 
reconfiguring them so that both lots have road frontage, each lot will still be 4+/- 
acres. This would have been a staff approval except there is right-of-way dedication.   
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Copy of Plat 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval at the July 10, 2014 
meeting. 
 

Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to approve/deny the minor plat application submitted by Sarah 
Colter for Abs A0824 Jas M Snider Survey, Tract 10, 4.098 acres and Abs A0824 

City of Lucas 
City Council 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 
 



Item No. 13 

Jas M Snider Survey, Tract 41, 4.0 acres otherwise known as 1125 Country Club 
Road. 
 





Item No. 14 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn Development Services Director 
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss and consider a request by Steve Lenart at staffs request for a development 
agreement for between the city of Lucas and CDAG Lewis Park LLC. The 
agreement is regarding dedication of 5.5 acres of land to the city for parks in 
consideration for number of lots and parks fees. 
 

Background Information:  
 
Staff and Steve Lenart have been in negotiations for parkland near the city’s existing 
park on Country Club Road. Staff feels there is a need for park land on the southern 
half of the city. The project without parkland dedication shows 35 lots on a concept 
plan with R-1.5 zoning consistent with the approved comprehensive plan for the city. 
Staff is asking for consideration of lot sizes to allow for dedication of parkland at no 
cost to the city except park fees still allowing the developer to maintain 35 lots. Staff 
has brought back a new design with R-1.5 on the perimeter of the sub-division with 
R-1 lots in the center. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Development Agreement. 
2. Concept plan 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:    
 
None 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Approve as presented 
 

City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Item No. 14 

Motion:  
 

I make a Motion to approve/deny a development agreement for between the city 
of Lucas and CDAG Lewis Park LLC. The agreement is regarding dedication of 
5.5 acres of land to the city for parks in consideration for number of lots and parks 
fees. 



STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 
 
 
 This Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Lucas, 
Texas (“City”) and CADG Lewis Park, L.L.C. (“Developer”), (collectively referred to as 
“Parties” and individually as a “Party” acting by and through their respective representatives. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer is under contract to purchase certain real property described by 
metes and bounds in attached Exhibit “A” (the “Property #1”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer has purchased certain real property described by metes and 
bounds in attached Exhibit “B” (the “Property #2”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop Property #1 and Property #2 collectively into 
one overall development as indicated in attached Exhibit “C” (the “Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop the Property in general conformance with the 
concept plan attached as Exhibit “C” and the City’s comprehensive zoning ordinance, provided 
the Developer is granted an amendment by the governing body to the comprehensive zoning 
ordinance to develop in accordance with Residential R 1 Acre and Residential 1.5 Acre 
development standards (the “Concept Plan”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer intends to dedicate to the City, for use as a public park, as shown 
on the plan attached as Exhibit “D” (the “Park Land Dedication”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to obtain the benefits of certainty and predictability that 
can be provided by a development agreement. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and conditions contained in this 
Agreement, the City and Developer agree as follows: 

 
Article I 

Term 
 

 This Agreement shall commence on the last date the Parties have executed the 
Agreement (“Effective Date”) and shall terminate on the date (“Expiration Date”) that is the 
earlier date of (1) the expiration of ten (10) years after City’s acceptance of the Property; or (2) 
the date the Developer and City have fully satisfied all of the terms and condition herein; or (3) 
January 1, 2025; or (4) unless sooner terminated herein. 
 

Article II 
Definitions 

 



 
 For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following terms shall have the meaning set 
forth herein unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 
 
 “Approved Plans” shall mean the plans and specifications for the Property as approved 
by the City. 
 

“City” shall mean the City of Lucas, Texas. 
 
 “Developer” shall mean CADG Lewis Park, L.L.C. and or its assigns. 
 
 “Effective Date” shall mean the last date of execution hereof. 
 
 “Force Majeure” shall mean any contingency or cause beyond the reasonable control of 
Developer, as applicable, including, without limitation, acts of God or the public enemy, war, 
riot, civil commotion, insurrection, adverse weather, governmental action or inaction (unless 
caused by negligence or omissions of Developer), fire, explosions or floods, strikes, slowdowns 
or work stoppages, shortage of materials and labor, or delays by the City. 
 
 “Park Fees” shall mean any payments required by City ordinance to be paid by the 
Developer or homebuilder for satisfaction of park land purchases or improvements. 

 
“Property” shall mean the real property described by meets and bounds in the attached 

Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” and as depicted on Exhibit “C”. 
  

Article III 
Park Dedication 

 
3.01 Dedication of Park Land.  Developer agrees to dedicate to the City approximately 

5.5 acres of land as depicted on Exhibit “D” (the “Park Land Dedication”). Such dedication shall 
occur at the time of final plat approval and recordation of the Property. The exact acreage of the 
Park Land Dedication will be agreed upon by both City and Developer during the development 
process. 

 
3.02 Use of Park Land Dedication Property.  It is agreed upon by both Developer and 

City that the Park Land Dedication property will be used solely for park purposes such as ball 
fields, walking trails, playgrounds, picnic pavilions, parking lots, etc. and no other public or 
private uses will be allowed. Furthermore, no improvements on the Park Land Dedication 
property will be lighted for use after sunset and no public address systems and/or loudspeakers 
will be permitted.  

 
3.03 Open Space/Park Fees.  The Park Land Dedication shall satisfy all City 

requirements regarding open space dedication, park land dedication, and Park Fee payments for 
the Property. No additional dedications or Park Fee payments shall be required. 

 
 

 



Article IV 
Subdivision Layout 

 
4.01 Subdivision Layout.  Developer intends to plat the Property in basic conformance 

with Exhibit “C”, which contains 35 (thirty-five) residential lots. Developer reserves the right to 
adjust the street and lot layout on Exhibit “C” as long as the Park Land Dedication remains in the 
same approximate location and remains the same approximate size. Developer agrees that the 
Property will contain no more than 35 (thirty-five) residential lots in any instance. 

 
 

Article V 
Notice 

 
 Any notice to be given or to be served upon a Party hereto in connection with this 
Agreement must be in writing and may be given by certified or registered mail and shall be 
deemed to have been given and received when a certified or registered letter containing such 
notice, properly addressed with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail, and if 
given otherwise than by certified or registered mail, it shall be deemed to have been given and 
delivered to and received by the Party (or such Party’s agent or representative) to whom it is 
addressed when actually received by the intended recipient.  Such notice shall be given to the 
Parties hereto at the address set forth below.  Any Party hereto may, at any time by giving two 
(2) days written notice to the other Party, designate any other address in substitution of the 
foregoing address to which such notice shall be given. 
 
 If Notice to Developer: 
 
 CADG Lewis Park, L.L.C. 
 1221 I-35 E. Suite 200 
 Carrollton, TX 75006 
 
 With a copy to: 
 
 Lenart Development Company, LLC 
 520 Central Parkway E. Suite 104 
 Plano, TX 75074 
 
 If Notice to Lucas: 
 

 City Manager 
 City of Lucas 
 665 Country Club Road 
 Lucas, Texas 75002 
 With a Copy to: 
 
 Joe Gorfida, Jr. 
 Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith 
 500 N. Akard 

 



 Suite 1800 
 Dallas, Texas 75201 
 

Article VI 
Termination 

 
6.01  This Agreement may be terminated by: (a) the mutual written agreement of the Parties; 
(b) either Party providing written notice of such termination to the other Party if the other Party 
breaches any of the material terms and conditions of this Agreement, and such breach is not 
cured by such Party within sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice thereof (or, if cure 
cannot be completed within said time period, if cure of such breach is not commenced within 
such time period and/or not thereafter diligently and continuously pursued to completion within 
sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice thereof); (c) by City providing written notice to 
Developer if Developer suffers an event of bankruptcy or insolvency; (d) by either Party 
providing written notice to the other Party if any subsequent federal or state legislation or any 
decision of a court of competent jurisdiction declares or renders this Agreement invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable. 

 
 
 

Article VII 
Miscellaneous 

 
7.01 Assignment of Agreement.  This Agreement may be assigned by Developer with 

the prior written consent of the City which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned, or delayed.  This Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or in part, by the City. 
 

7.02 Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Texas and is specifically performable in Collin County, Texas.  Exclusive venue 
shall be in state district court in Collin County, Texas. 
 

7.03 Legal Construction.  In case any one or more provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall be for any reason held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and it is the 
intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid, and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable. 

 
7.04 Savings / Severability.  In case any one or more provisions contained in this 

Agreement shall be for any reason held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and it is the 
intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid, and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable. 

 



 
7.05 Authority.  Each of the Parties represents and warrants to the other that it has the 

full power and authority to enter into and fulfill the obligations of this Agreement. 
 

7.06 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties 
with respect to the matters contained herein and may not be modified or terminated except upon 
the provisions hereof or by the mutual written agreement of the Parties to this Agreement. 
 

7.07 Consideration.  This Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto without coercion 
or duress and for substantial consideration, the sufficiency of which is forever confessed. 
 

7.08 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in a number of identical 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original for all purposes. 
 

7.09 Representations.  Each signatory represents this Agreement has been read by the 
Party for which this Agreement is executed, and that such Party has had an opportunity to confer 
with it legal counsel. 

 
7.10 Miscellaneous Drafting Provisions.  This Agreement shall be deemed drafted 

equally by all Parties hereto.  The language of all parts of this Agreement shall be construed as a 
whole according to its fair meaning, and any presumption or principle that the language herein is 
to be construed against any Party shall not apply.  Headings in this Agreement are for the 
convenience of the Parties and are not intended to be used in construing this document. 
 

7.11 Binding Effect.  This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
the Parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 
successors, and authorized assigns.  This Agreement only inures to the benefit of, and may only 
be enforced by, the Parties, assignees, lender, successors, and the City.  No other person or entity 
is a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement. 
 

7.12 Authority.  The City represents and warrants that this Agreement has been 
approved by the City Council of the City in accordance with all applicable public meeting and 
public notice requirements (including, but not limited to, notices required by the Texas Open 
Meetings Act) and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City has been 
authorized to do so.  Developer represents and warrants that this Agreement has been approved 
on behalf of Developer and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Developer 
has been authorized to do so.  Each assignee, lender, or successor who becomes a party to this 
Agreement represents and warrants that this Agreement has been approved by appropriate action 
of such assignee, lender, or successor and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf 
of such assignee, lender, or successor has been authorized to do so. 
 

7.13 Governmental Powers; Waiver of Immunity.  By its execution of this Agreement, 
City does not waive or surrender any of its governmental powers, immunities, or rights except as 
to the enforcement of this Agreement. 

 

 



7.14 No Joint Venture.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the terms 
hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture among 
the Parties, nor to cause City to be deemed to be a constituent partner of the Developer.  

 
7.15 Legal Construction.  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this 

Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality or enforceability shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.  

 
7.16 Multiple Counterparts and Duplicate Originals.  This Agreement may be executed 

in any number of multiple counterparts and/or duplicate originals, each of which shall be deemed 
an original and all of which considered together shall be deemed one and the same Agreement. 
 

(signature page to follow) 

 



 EXECUTED on this ______ day of _________, 2013. 
 

City of Lucas, Texas 
 
 
 

 By: ______________________________ 
 Rebecca Mark, Mayor 

 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
 Joe Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 
 (JJG/07-18-13/60754) 

 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY OF COLLIN  § 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of _________, 
2014, by Rebecca Mark, Mayor of the City of Lucas, a municipal corporation existing under the 
laws if the State of Texas, in such capacity on behalf of such municipal corporation. 

 
 
 

 ____________________________________ 
 Kathy Wingo 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

 



 EXECUTED on this ______ day of _________, 2014 . 
 

 
      Developer 

CADG Lewis Park, LLC,  
a Texas limited liability company 

 
By: CADG Holdings, LLC,  
a Texas limited liability company 
Its Sole Member 

 
By: MMM Ventures, LLC,  

a Texas limited liability 
company 

 Its Manager 
 
By: 2M Ventures, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company  
Its Manager 

 
 
       By:_________________________ 

Name: Mehrdad Moayedi 
Its:  Manager 

 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 

   § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 

 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of 

________________, 20______, by Mehrdad Moayedi, Manager of 2M Ventures, LLC, as 
Manager of MMM Ventures, LLC, as Manager of CADG Holdings, LLC, as Sole Member of 
CADG Lewis Park, LLC, a Texas limited liability company on behalf of said company.  

 
 
___________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Texas 

 



 

 



BEING a tract of land situated in the James Anderson Survey, Abstract No. 17, in the City of
Lucas, Collin County, Texas, and being all of that same tract of land as described in deed to Lisa
Griffin, Trustee, recorded under Clerk’s File No. 20090518000600700 in the Deed Records of
Collin County, Texas (DRCCT), and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch iron rod found in the south line of F.M. Highway No. 1378 (Southview
Drive) (90 foot right-of-way), at the northeast corner of a Tract 2 as described in deed to Guardian
Mortgage Company, Inc. recorded under Clerk’s File No. 93-0046259 DRCCT;

THENCE South 81 degrees 10 minutes 58 seconds East, along the south line of said F.M.
Highway No. 1378, 297.31 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod found at the point of curvature of a circular
curve to the right at TXDOT station 209+41.9 having a radius of 273.31 feet;

THENCE southeasterly, along said curve to the right and along the south line of said F.M.
Highway No. 1378, through a central angle of 69 degrees 53 minutes 42 seconds, an arc distance
of 333.41 feet and having a chord which bears South 46 degrees 14 minutes 07 seconds East,
313.12 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod found at the point of tangency at TXDOT station 205+53.7;

THENCE South 11 degrees 17 minutes 16 seconds East, along the west line of said F.M.
Highway No. 1378, 722.71 feet to a cross tie fence post found at the northeast corner of a tract of
land as described in deed to Roger L. Davis recorded under Clerk’s File No. 20070308000318040
DRCCT;

THENCE along the north, west and south line’s of said Davis tract as established by Boundary
Line Agreement recorded under Clerk’s File No. 20120607000678440 DRCCT the following:

South 56 degrees 27 minutes 51 seconds West, departing the west line of said F.M.
Highway No. 1378, 223.94 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod found on the north side of a wooden
post;

South 13 degrees 20 minutes 07 seconds East, 364.11 feet to a cross tie fence post
found;

North 82 degrees 21 minutes 13 seconds East, 209.02 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod set with
plastic cap stamped ‘Sparr Surveys’ in the west line of said F.M. Highway No. 1378, and
lying in a non-tangent circular curve to the left having a radius of 2909.79 feet;

THENCE southeasterly, along said curve to the left and along the west line of said F.M. Highway
No. 1378, through a central angle of 00 degrees 38 minutes 41 seconds, an arc distance of 32.74
feet and having a chord which bears South 17 degrees 17 minutes 56 seconds East, 32.74 feet to
a 5/8-inch iron rod set with plastic cap stamped ‘Sparr Surveys’ at the point of tangency at TXDOT
station 196+55;

THENCE South 17 degrees 37 minutes 16 seconds East, continuing along the west line of said
F.M. Highway No. 1378, 189.96 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod set with plastic cap stamped ‘Sparr
Surveys’ at the northeast corner of a tract of land as described in deed to the North Texas
Municipal Water District recorded in Volume 848, Page 774 DRCCT;

THENCE South 72 degrees 38 minutes 49 seconds West, departing the west line of said F.M.
Highway No. 1378, along the north line of said North Texas Municipal Water District tract, 149.69
feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod set with plastic cap stamped ‘Sparr Surveys’;

THENCE South 17 degrees 37 minutes 16 seconds East, along the west line of said North Texas
Municipal Water District tract, at 2.1 feet passing a chain link fence post, continuing generally
along a chain link fence, in all a distance of 156.60 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod set with plastic cap
stamped ‘Sparr Surveys’ in the north line of a tract of land as described in deed to the Wylie
Independent School District recorded under Clerk’s File No. 20090625000794570 DRCCT;

THENCE South 88 degrees 47 minutes 41 seconds West, along the north line of said Wylie
Independent School District tract, 726.47 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod found at the southeast corner
of Tract 1 as described in deed to Guardian Mortgage Company, Inc. recorded under Clerk’s File
No. 93-0046259 DRCCT;

THENCE North 00 degrees 21 minutes 07 seconds West, departing the north line of said Wylie
Independent School District tract, along the east line of said Tract 1, at a calculated distance of
536.44 feet passing the northeast corner of said Tract 1, said point also being the southeast
corner of said Tract 2, continuing along the east line of said Tract 2, in all a distance of 1842.60
feet to the POINT of BEGINNING and containing 24.435 acres of land.

To: Lisa Griffin, exclusively;

I, Brad Sparr, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor for Sparr Surveys, do hereby certify that
this survey was made on the ground, that this drawing correctly represents the facts found at
the time of survey and that this professional service conforms to the current Texas Society of
Professional Land Surveyors Standards and Specifications for a Category 1B, Condition II
Survey.

Brad Sparr
Registered Professional
Land Surveyor No. 3701

Steve
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

Steve
Typewritten Text



Steve
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B

Steve
Typewritten Text

Steve
Typewritten Text



Zoned: R2

Davis, Roger L

1112 Southview (FM

1378)

Zoned: AO

North Texas Municipal

Water District

1378 Southview Dr

Zoned: C

Wylie ISD

Block 2, Tract 61

Zoned: C

CTMGT Lucas 238 LLC

Sheet 2, Tract 31

Zoned: R1

CTMGT Lucas 238 LLC

Tract 17

Zoned: R2

17 Brookhaven Drive

Sweet, Douglas P

Lot 17

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Zoned: R2

15 Brookhaven Drive

Ford, Dan E & Kimberly

Lot 15

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Zoned: R2

13 Brookhaven Drive

Thomas, James III

Lot 13

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Zoned: R2

11 Brookhaven Drive

Crownover, Alicia & Rod

Lot 11

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Zoned: R2

9 Brookhaven Drive

Carrasco, Jesus

Lot 9

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Zoned: AO

820 Southview Drive

City of Lucas

Block 1, Tract 50

Zoned: AO

820 Southview Drive

City of Lucas

Block 1, Tract 17

Zoned: R2

The Commons of Camden

Lot 298

Lot 284

Lot 264

Lot 246

Lot 222

Lot 214

Lot 206

Zoned: R2

Seis Lagos Utility

District

Block 1, Tract 48

919 Southview

Drive

Lot 6

Lot 5

Lot 705

Lot 703

Lot 1

Lot 26

Lot 18

Lot 409

Lot 407

Lot 405

Lot 403

Lot 401

Lot 307

Lot 305

Lot 303

Lot 301

Zoned: R2

Seis Lagos #1

Zoned: R2

Seis Lagos #1

Zoned: R2

Seis Lagos #1

PARK LAND
DEDICATION
± 5.5 ACRES

14026

111 Hillside Drive • Lewisville, TX 75057 • P: 972.436.9712 • F: 972.436.9715

610 Byron Nelson Blvd, Ste 114 • Roanoke, TX 76262 • P: 682.831.9712 • F: 817.890.4043
 No. 10047700

 No. 1798

TBPE Firm

TBPLS Firm



Zoned: R2

Davis, Roger L

1112 Southview (FM

1378)

Zoned: AO

North Texas Municipal

Water District

1378 Southview Dr

Zoned: C

Wylie ISD

Block 2, Tract 61

Lot 18

Lot 409

Lot 407

Lot 405

Lot 403

Lot 401

Lot 307

Lot 305

Lot 303

Lot 301

Zoned: R2

Seis Lagos #1

PARK LAND
DEDICATION
± 5.5 ACRES

14026

111 Hillside Drive • Lewisville, TX 75057 • P: 972.436.9712 • F: 972.436.9715

610 Byron Nelson Blvd, Ste 114 • Roanoke, TX 76262 • P: 682.831.9712 • F: 817.890.4043
 No. 10047700

 No. 1798

TBPE Firm

TBPLS Firm



Lot 246

Lot 222

Zoned: R2

Seis Lagos #1

Zoned: R2

Seis Lagos #1

Zoned: R2

Davis, Roger L

1112 Southview (FM

1378)

Zoned: C

CTMGT Lucas 238 LLC

Sheet 2, Tract 31

Zoned: C

Wylie ISD

Block 2, Tract 61

Zoned: AO

North Texas Municipal

Water District

1378 Southview Dr

Zoned: R1

CTMGT Lucas 238 LLC

Tract 17

Zoned: R2

13 Brookhaven Drive

Thomas, James III

Lot 13

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Zoned: R2

17 Brookhaven Drive

Sweet, Douglas P

Lot 17

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Lot 298

Zoned: R2

9 Brookhaven Drive

Carrasco, Jesus

Lot 9

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Zoned: R2

11 Brookhaven Drive

Crownover, Alicia & Rod

Lot 11

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Zoned: R2

15 Brookhaven Drive

Ford, Dan E & Kimberly

Lot 15

Brookhaven Ranch Estates

Zoned: AO

820 Southview Drive

City of Lucas

Block 1, Tract 50

Lot 284

Zoned: AO

820 Southview Drive

City of Lucas

Block 1, Tract 17

Zoned: R2

The Commons of Camden

Lot 264

Lot 214

Lot 206

Lot 409

Lot 705

Zoned: R2

Seis Lagos Utility

District

Block 1, Tract 48

919 Southview

Drive

Lot 5

Lot 6

Lot 1

Lot 26

Lot 703

Lot 18

Lot 405

Lot 407

Zoned: R2

Seis Lagos #1

Lot 401

Lot 403

Lot 303

Lot 301

Lot 305

Lot 307

PARK LAND
DEDICATION
± 5.5 ACRES

14026

111 Hillside Drive • Lewisville, TX 75057 • P: 972.436.9712 • F: 972.436.9715

610 Byron Nelson Blvd, Ste 114 • Roanoke, TX 76262 • P: 682.831.9712 • F: 817.890.4043
 No. 10047700

 No. 1798

TBPE Firm

TBPLS Firm



Item No. 15 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Stanton Foerster, Public Works Director 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider accepting or rejecting the single bid for the Estates Parkway 
construction between Angel Parkway and Lovejoy High School. 
 

Background Information:  
 
In January of this year, the City Council approved a professional services 
agreement with Metropolitan Infrastructure for the design of the above project.  
TxDOT required a June letting for this locally-let project.  In May of this year, 
$450,000 was added to the FY 13-14 line 21-8210-491-114 using Roadway Impact 
Fees to fund the construction based on the engineer’s estimate.  On June 23, 2014, 
one bid from Quality Excavation, Ltd. was received and opened. The bid was in 
the amount of $451,449.90.  This bid is $76,111.73 more than the revised 
engineer’s estimate using TxDOT supplied prices of $375,338.17.  Staff has been 
working with Collin County to move $122,000.00 in County bond funds from the 
Lucas Road project to the Estates Parkway project.  The new breakdown in 
funding would be as follows:  City of Lucas pays $329,449.90 and Collin County 
pays $122,000.00 for a total of $451,449.90. 
 
The City of Parker staff has responded positively to using $122,000 of the Parker 
Collin County bond funds on the Lucas Road project.  No Parker city council 
actions has been taken, and the Lucas Road agreement between Collin County and 
the City of Lucas has not been amended.  A new agreement between Collin County 
and City of Lucas will be needed to move the funds to the Estates Parkway project. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:   
 
None 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date:  August 7, 2014 



Item No. 15 

No impact at this time. 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends rejecting all bids and rebidding the project when the City of 
Parker and Collin County agreements can be finalized. 
 

 Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to accept/reject the single bid for the Estates Parkway 
construction between Angel Parkway and Lovejoy High School. 



Item No. 16 

 
 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joni Clarke, City Manager 
     Jim Kitchen, Fire Chief 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider entering into an agreement with the International 
City/County Management Association’s Center for Public Safety Management to 
perform a comprehensive assessment of Lucas Fire Department, appropriate 
$27,000 from the general fund unrestricted reserves and authorize the City 
Manager to execute the agreement. 
  

Background Information:  
 

The City of Lucas Fire Department has operated as a volunteer department until 
recently.  With the City becoming the provider of emergency medical services, the 
Fire Department was transformed into a hybrid organization consisting of staff that 
are classified as full-time and volunteer.   

Combination departments use both volunteer and paid full-time firefighters to 
respond to fires, medical emergencies, rescue and other calls.  The mix of paid and 
volunteer firefighters depends on the size, type and risk of the community 
protected, the number of calls for service, the availability of volunteers and amount 
of time volunteers can contribute to emergency calls and training. 

In general, as communities grow larger and the number of emergency calls 
increase, larger numbers of full-time firefighters are added.  

The volunteer firefighter system today is far different than it was just 10 years ago. 
In the past, volunteers lived and worked in the communities they served and they 
often served as a volunteer until they retired. Due to many changes in society and 
the economy in general, this traditional respond-from-home volunteer has declined. 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 7, 2014 



Item No. 16 

Today the majority of our volunteers can only devote specific periods of time to 
on-duty coverage and many do not live in Lucas. Many of our volunteers today 
view their volunteer service as a stepping stone to a paid position in the future. 
This is typical of volunteer fire service in the rest of the country and here in the 
City of Lucas. 

In addition to full-time paid firefighters and volunteers a new category of paid part-
time firefighter is emerging. Some of our comparison fire departments already use 
these types of firefighters in addition to their full-time staff and volunteers.  

We need transform our current methodologies into a system that would embrace 
best practices and provide effective and efficient public safety services.  It is 
essential to bring in experts to help us assess what is the best approach for Lucas 
when it comes to Fire and EMS.   
 
The acquisition of public safety consulting services would give us an opportunity 
to take an unbiased look at how we should be providing these services based on 
best practices, facilitate the development of a plan and then the City would have 
the framework in place to move forward with implementation.  The public safety 
consulting services would provide the following services: 
 

 Examine the department’s organizational structure and culture 
 Perform gap analysis, comparing the “as is” state of the department to the 

best practices of industry standards 
 Recommend a management framework to ensure accountability, increased 

efficient and improved performance 
 Conduct a data-driven forensic analysis to identify actual workload 
 Identify and recommend appropriate staffing and deployment levels for 

every discrete operational and support function in the department 
 
Doing the assessment now is in the best interest of the City and will create a 
structure for future success.  It will take approximately 105 to 135 days to 
complete the assessment. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Proposal from the International City County Management Association’s 
Center for Public Safety Management Proposal for a Comprehensive 
Analysis of Fire/EMS 



Item No. 16 

2. Article publish in PM magazine entitled No Cause for Alarm 
Sustainability In Fire Service Depends on Change written by Tom 
Wieczorek, Director, Center for Public Safety Management, LLC 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The cost of the analysis is $22,000 plus travel in the amount of $5,000 for a total of 
$27,000.  The cost of this proposal has been reduced by $8,000 from the initial 
proposal.  I have spoken with Finance Director Liz Exum and we do have the 
funds available in the current budget due to our revenues exceeding projections.  
 

Recommendation:  
 
Authorize an agreement with the International City/County Management 
Association (ICMA) Center for Public Safety Management to perform a 
comprehensive assessment of Lucas Fire Department, appropriate $27,000 from 
the general fund unrestricted reserves, and authorize the City Manager to execute 
the agreement. 
 

Motion:  
 
I move to approve/deny to enter into an agreement with the International 
City/County Management Association (ICMA) Center for Public Safety 
Management to perform a comprehensive assessment of Lucas Fire Department, 
authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement and appropriate $27,000 from 
the general fund unrestricted reserves. 



















































Item No. 17 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Joni Clarke, City Manager 
     Cheryl Meehan, HR Manager 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discussion and action regarding the method and process used to conduct market 
surveys and the establishment of criteria to be used to identify benchmark cities.   
 

Background Information:   
 
The City of Lucas has not conducted an annual market salary survey to ensure that 
the City’s employee pay rates are competitive in the market.  This proposed survey 
to be conducted is designed to ensure that the City is recruiting the best applicants 
for available positions and is able to pay at a competitive rate to retain employees 
once hired.  The scope of work for the market survey would include: 
 

 Salary Survey 
 Benefits Survey 
 Compensation Plan based on Market 
 Pay Scale Based on Market 
 One trip to Lucas 

 
The first step in this process is already underway which is ensuring that job 
descriptions are accurate and up-to-date.  The anticipated completion date for 
revising all of the City’s job descriptions is August 15th.  One of the most 
important next steps is working on the criteria to be used to identify appropriate 
benchmark cities.  Some of the criteria that can be used to find appropriate 
comparable cities may include: 
 

 Population 
 Geographical Area 
 Household Income 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 7, 2014 



Item No. 17 

 Home Values 
 Bond Ratings 
 Size of Budget 
 Number of Employees 
 Educational Level of Community 
 Comparable Services 

 
Staff has decided to bring this to the agenda forward so that we can get direction 
from the City Council on how staff should move forward with creating the criteria 
to formulate a list of possible benchmark cities.  When establishing the criteria, it 
is valuable to look both the characteristics of Lucas today and also the vision we 
have for the future.  Are there cities that could service as good examples for where 
we want to be in the future?  We would like to identify eight cities that could serve 
as our benchmark cities in our survey of salary and benefits. 
 
In a perfect world, we could survey eight other cities that are just like the City of 
Lucas for comparison.  Unfortunately this is not a case.  We are a unique 
community and the services provided by city staff are not comparable to most 
small communities in Texas.  The City of Lucas has a combination fire department, 
outsourced law enforcement, a full-service water system, development of high-end 
housing and a rural setting in a metropolitan region which makes Lucas relatively 
unique when being compared to other small communities.  When establishing 
criteria, it is necessary not to be too narrow in scope because sometimes you may 
need to recommend communities that may be much larger in size but offer 
comparable services.  We want to ensure that we capture enough possible 
benchmark cities to be able to further evaluate our choices.    
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The cost of conducting the comprehensive market study based on 22 positions and 
8 benchmark cities is $5,800. 
 

Recommendation:  
 



Item No. 17 

Once the City Council provides guidance on what criteria should be used, staff will 
put together a spreadsheet for the City Council to review and make some 
recommendations. 
 Further, some staff recommendations would include: 
 A salary survey be conducted periodically and submitted as part of the 

budget preparation materials to the City Council. 
 The highest and lowest salary information received should be discarded 

from the survey on each position individually. 
 One hundred percent of the average to be considered for position pay rate 

adjustments. 
 Survey to include only actual pay rates received by the position from other 

cities. 
 The cities surveyed should be cities the City Council considered role models 

for the City of Lucas. 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to…. 



Item No. 18 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Joni Clarke, City Manager 
      

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider the status of the Crown Victoria patrol vehicle that was used 
by the Collin County deputy on assignment with the City of Lucas and provide 
guidance to staff regarding its future use. 
 

Background Information:  
 
The interlocal Cooperative Agreement for Law Enforcement Services that covers 
the period from October 1, 2009 through September 30, 2013 indicated that the 
City of Lucas paid $27,228 for the Crown Victoria vehicle in fiscal year 09/10.  On 
page 3 of the agreement it states: 
 
“Accordingly, at the agreement end term, the City, having reimbursed/paid the 
county the full cost of the vehicle, then the City may claim possession of the paid 
vehicle and shall cover any associated costs for administrative and transfer fees.  
This agreement complies with Government Code 791 and Local Government Code 
263.152.” 
 
The first vehicle that was purchased by the City was donated by the previous 
mayor to the Citizens on Patrol program.  However, the City Council did not take 
any action to make an additional donation to the program and the agreement 
clearly states that the vehicle belongs to the City.  Therefore, the City Manager has 
made a request to the Collin County Sheriff’s Office for the vehicle to be returned 
to the City. 
 
Apparently, there was an email communication between the Interim City Manager 
and the Major at Collin County Sherriff’s Office discussing the use of this vehicle 
by the Citizens on Patrol Program.  Staff is seeking clarification from the City 
Council regarding the future use of the patrol vehicle. 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

August 7, 2014 
 



Item No. 18 

 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Law Enforcement Services between 
the City of Lucas and Collin County. 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
Should the City Council affirm that the vehicle be returned to the City for use, the 
City would be required to fund preventative maintenance and insurance. 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 
 

Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to…. 































Item No. 19 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Rebecca Mark - Mayor 
 

Agenda Item:  
 

Discuss and consider the process for upcoming Boards & Commission 
appointments. 
 

Background Information: 
 

Planning & Zoning Commission: Mayor Rebecca Mark, Liaison  
Current Members/Term: 
Peggy Rusterholtz  10/31/2015 
David Keer   10/31/2015 
Brian Blythe   10/31/2014 
Andre Guillemaud  10/31/2014 
Joe Williams   10/31/2014 
Scott Sperling   10/31/2015(Alternate) 
Vacant      (Alternate) 
Four (4) individuals: 3 full voting members and 1 alternate member; to 
serve a two (2) year term. 
 
Board of Adjustments: Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele, Liaison 
Current Members/Term: 
Stuart Fink    10/31/2014 
Randy Barnes   10/31/2014 
Craig Williams   10/31/2015 
Chris Bierman   10/31/2015 
Janean McLaughlin  10/31/2014(Alternate) 
Vacant      (Alternate) 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 



Item No. 19 

Four (4) individuals: 3 full voting members and 1 alternate member; to 
serve a two (2) year term. 
 
Parks & Open Space Board: Councilmember Steve Duke, Liaison 
Current Members/Term: 
Lacey Bradshaw   10/31/2015 
Christopher Vanhorn  10/31/2015 
Brenda Rizos   10/31/2014 
Lisa O’Leary   10/31/2015 
David Rhoads   10/31/2015 
Jerry Straka   10/31/2015(Alternate) 
Kenneth Patterson  10/31/2015(Alternate) 
One (1) individual: 1 full voting member 
 
In 2013, there were members of the Parks & Open Space Board who 
terms were ending and several members moved out of Lucas.  When 
new members and members to fill the vacancies were appointed for a 
two year term this caused the terms to become off-balanced. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation: 
 

1. Planning & Zoning Commission, Code of Ordinance 
2. Parks & Open Space Board, Code of Ordinance 
3. Board of Adjustments, Code of Ordinance 

 
Budget/Financial Impact: 
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation: 
 
N/A 
 

Motion:   
 



Item No. 19 

I make a Motion to… 
 



ARTICLE 14.02 ADMINISTRATION 

Division 1. Generally 

Sec. 14.02.001     Enforcement and penalties 

Any person, firm, corporation, or political subdivision who violates any of the 
provisions of these regulations shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction 
in the municipal court, shall be subject to a fine of not more than two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00) for each offense. Each day that a violation is permitted to exist shall 
constitute a separate offense and such violation is hereby declared to be a common 
nuisance which may be abated by the city in any manner authorized by law, including 
injunction and an action for damages. (1995 Code, sec. 9-6) 

Secs. 14.02.002–14.02.030     Reserved 

Division 2. Board of Adjustment* 

Sec. 14.02.031     Definition 

The word “board” when used in this chapter shall be construed to mean the board of 
adjustment. (1995 Code, sec. 9-190) 

Sec. 14.02.032     Organization and procedure 

(a)     Membership. The board shall consist of five (5) citizens as full-time members of the board 
and four (4) citizens as alternate members of the board who shall serve in the absence of one or 
more regular members when requested to do so by the mayor. Each board member and alternate 
board member are to be appointed or reappointed by the mayor and confirmed by the city council 
for staggered terms of two (2) years, respectively. Each member of the board shall be removable 
for just cause by the city council upon written charges and after public hearing. Vacancies shall be 
filled by an alternate board member selected by the city council. The selected alternate board 
member’s term then becomes vacant. The board shall elect its own chairman, who shall serve for 
a period of one (1) year or until his successor is elected. The board shall elect a vice-chairman who 
shall preside over meetings of the board in the absence of the chairman. (Ordinance 2005-09-
00535, sec. 1, adopted 9/6/05) 

(b)     Meetings. Meetings of the board shall be held at the call of the chairman or, in his absence, 
the vice-chairman, and at such times as the board may determine. 

(c)     Hearings. The hearings of the board of adjustment shall be open to the public. however. [sic] 
The chairman, or, when appropriate, the vice-chairman, may administer oaths and compel the 
attendance of witnesses. 



(d)     Rules and regulations. The board shall keep minutes of its proceedings, showing the vote of 
each member and upon the fact that a member is absent or fails to vote. The board shall keep 
records of its examinations and other official actions. The minutes and records shall be filed 
immediately in the board’s office and are public records. 

Sec. 14.02.033     Appeals 

(a)     Procedure. A decision made by an administrative official of the city may be appealed to the 
board of adjustment by a person aggrieved by the decision or by any officer, department, board or 
bureau of the city affected by the decision. Such appeal shall be made by filing a notice of appeal 
with the office of the board and with official from whom the appeal is taken specifying the grounds 
thereof. The office, official or department from which the appeal is taken shall forthwith transmit 
to the board of adjustment all of the papers constituting the records upon which the action appealed 
from was taken. The appeal must be filed within twenty (20) days after the date of the decision of 
the administrative official from which the appeal is taken. 

(b)     Stay of proceedings. An appeal shall stay all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed 
from unless the official from whom the appeal is taken certifies in writing to the board facts 
supporting the official’s opinion that a stay would cause imminent peril to life or property. In such 
case, the proceedings may be [stayed] only by a restraining order granted by the board or by a 
court of record on application, after notice to the official, if due cause is shown. 

(c)     Notice of hearing on appeal. The board shall set a reasonable time for the hearing on the 
appeal or other matter referred to it, and shall mail notices of such hearing to the petitioner and to 
the owners of property lying within two hundred feet (200') or less of street frontage of any point 
of the lot or portion thereof on which a variation is desired. The city shall give public notice of the 
hearing and due notice to the parties in interest. A party may appear at the appeal hearing in person 
or by agent or attorney. The board shall hear and decide the appeal within a reasonable time. Notice 
of such hearings may be sent by the board in writing, properly addressed to the last known 
addresses of the proper parties, and such notices shall be deemed complete when deposited in the 
mail. 

Sec. 14.02.034     Powers and duties of board 

(a)     Subpoena witnesses, etc. The board of adjustment shall have the power to subpoena 
witnesses, administer oaths, and punish for contempt, and may require the production of 
documents, under such regulations as it may establish. The board may: 

(1)     Hear and decide an appeal that alleges error in an order, requirement, decision or 
determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement of this chapter; 

(2)     Hear and decide special exceptions to the requirements when necessary or 
appropriate to: 



(A)     Permit the erection and use of a building or the use of premises for railroads 
if such uses are in general conformance with any master plan and present no 
conflict or nuisance to adjacent properties. 

(B)     Permit a public utility or public service structure or building in any district 
with a ground area or of a height at variance with those provided for in the district 
in which such public utility or public service building is permitted to be located, 
when found reasonably necessary for the public health, convenience, safety, or 
general welfare. 

(C)     Grant a permit for the extension of a height or area regulation into an 
adjoining district which divides a lot into a single ownership on the effective date 
of this chapter. 

(D)     Permit the reconstruction of a nonconforming building which has been 
damaged by explosion, fire, act of God, or the public enemy, to the extent of more 
than fifty percent (50%) of its fair market value, where the board finds some 
compelling necessity requiring a continuance of the nonconforming use and the 
primary purpose of continuing the nonconforming use is not to continue a 
monopoly. 

(E)     Waive or reduce the parking and loading requirements in any of the districts. 
whenever the character or use of the building is such as to make unnecessary the 
full provision or parking or loading facilities, or where such regulations would 
impose an unreasonable hardship upon the use of the lot, as contrasted with 
merely granting an advantage or a convenience. 

(F)     Determine, in cases of uncertainty, the classification of any use not 
specifically named in this chapter. 

(3)     Authorize in specific cases a variance from the terms of this chapter if the variance 
is not contrary to the public interest and, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement 
of this chapter would result in unnecessary hardship, and so that the spirit of this chapter 
is observed and substantial justice is done. 

(b)     Procedure. In exercising its authority under this section, the board may reverse or affirm, in 
whole or in part, or modify the administrative official’s order, requirement, decision, or 
determination from which an appeal is taken and make the correct order, requirement, decision, or 
determination, and for that purpose the board has the same authority as the administrative official. 

(c)     Voting. The concurring vote of four (4) of the members of the board is necessary to reverse 
an order, requirement, decision, or determination of an administrative official, or grant a variance 
authorized herein. 



(d)     Changes. The board shall have no authority or jurisdiction to change or modify the provisions 
and requirements of this chapter, and its jurisdiction is limited to hardship and borderline cases 
which may arise from time to time and the authority specifically granted in this division. 

(Ordinance 2002-04-00461, sec. 1, adopted 4/1/02) 

Secs. 14.02.035–14.02.059     Reserved 
 



ARTICLE 1.09 PARKS AND RECREATION* 

Division 1. Generally 

Secs. 1.09.001–1.09.030     Reserved 

Division 2. Park and Open Space Board† 

Sec. 1.09.031     Established; composition; qualifications of members 

The city council shall provide for the appointment of a park and open space board 
consisting of five (5) regular members and two (2) alternate members. Board 
members shall reside in the city for at least 6 months preceding appointment day. 
(Ordinance 2005-03-00522, sec. 1, adopted 3/21/05) 

Sec. 1.09.032     Reserved 

Editor’s note–Former section 1.09.032 pertaining to the terms of members and 
deriving from Ordinance 2005-03-00522, sec. 1, adopted March 21, 2005 and 
Ordinance 2007-08-00599, sec. 3, adopted August 2, 2007, was repealed and deleted 
in its entirety by Ordinance 2011-06-00682, sec. 2, adopted by the city on June 2, 
2011. 

Sec. 1.09.033     Removal of members; filling of vacancies 

The members of the park and open space board shall be subject to removal from 
office by the city council for any cause deemed sufficient by a majority vote of city 
council members at a regularly scheduled council meeting. Any vacancy in the board 
shall be filled by the city council for the unexpired term of the member whose place 
has become vacant. 

Sec. 1.09.034     Meetings; liaison with planning and zoning commission 

(a)     The park and open space board shall hold at least one (1) quarterly meeting. Such meeting 
shall be held on a day of the month approved by the board. Special meetings may be called by the 
chairman, by the city administrator, or if requested by at least four (4) board members. Such 
meetings shall comply with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

(b)     A liaison shall be appointed by the board to attend regularly scheduled meetings of the 
planning and zoning commission. 

State law reference–Open meetings, V.T.C.A., Government Code, ch. 551. 

Sec. 1.09.035     Officers 



(a)     Election. A chairman and vice-chairman shall be selected each year at the regular meeting 
in January. 

(b)     Duties. 

(1)     Chairman. It shall be the duty of the chairman to preside at all meetings of the 
board and to call special meetings. 

(2)     Vice-chairman. It shall be the duty of the vice-chairman to perform the duties of 
the chairman during any absence. 

Sec. 1.09.036     Duties 

(a)     The board shall serve in an advisory capacity to the city council in all matters relating to the 
parks and open space of the city. 

(b)     The board shall acquaint itself with and make a continuous study and inspection of the 
complete parks and open space programs and shall advise the city council from time to time as to 
the present and future planning, acquisition, development, enlargement and use policy of the parks 
system and open space. 

(c)     The board shall develop and maintain a master planning guide of park facilities and open 
space. Such master plan shall be considered, revised and maintained with technical assistance and 
recommendations of the city administrator. The master plan shall be reviewed at least annually 
and should include a five-year capital improvement program. 

(d)     The board shall review, study and make recommendations to the city administrator for 
priorities of projects or activities to be included in future parks and open space programs. 

(e)     The board shall study fees and policies on an annual basis, making recommendations to the 
director for report to the city council. 

(f)     The board shall study budget proposals on an annual basis and recommend inclusion or 
exclusion of budget items to the city administrator. 

(g)     The board may establish additional policies and guidelines upon approval by the city council. 

(h)     The board shall study and make recommendations to the city council on any other matters 
as requested by the city council. 

(i)     The board shall make recommendations with regard to park land dedications. 

(Ordinance 2005-03-00522, sec. 1, adopted 3/21/05) 

Secs. 1.09.037–1.09.060     Reserved 
 



ARTICLE 1.05 BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES† 

Division 1. Generally 

Sec. 1.05.001     Qualifications of members 

A person is eligible for appointment to a board or commission of the city if the 
person: 

(1)     Has been a citizen of the city for six (6) continuous months prior to the date of 
appointment; 

(2)     Has obtained the age of eighteen (18) years prior to the date of appointment; 

(3)     Has never been convicted of and is not currently charged with a felony or a crime 
involving moral turpitude; 

(4)     Is not delinquent on any ad valorem tax due the city. 

(1995 Code, sec. 2-70) 

Sec. 1.05.002     Disqualification; residency requirement 

After appointment to a board or commission, a person may become disqualified if any 
of the qualifications listed insection 1.05.001 are found to be untrue at the time of 
appointment. In addition, if any board or commission member subsequently moves his 
or her primary residence from the city, then a vacancy shall exist on the subject board 
or commission and a new member shall be appointed in the manner provided herein. 
(1995 Code, sec. 2-71) 

Sec. 1.05.003     Appointment of members 

(a)     All members of any board, commission or corporation of the city shall be appointed by a 
majority of the city council. The members of any board, commission or corporation shall be 
appointed for staggered terms of two (2) years. The initial appointment of the members of boards, 
commissions or corporations by the council shall be in November of 2011. At the time of initial 
appointment, the council shall designate which members shall serve a two-year term and which 
members shall serve a one-year term; and, in November of each succeeding year thereafter, the 
council shall select replacements for those members whose terms have expired. Vacancies and 
unexpired terms shall be appointed by the council for the remainder of the term. No person related 
to the mayor or any member of the city council within the first degree by consanguinity or affinity 
shall be eligible to serve on any city board, commission, corporation or committee. 

(b)     Except as otherwise required by state law, a person appointed by the city council to any 
board, commission or corporation is not subject to term limits. 



(Ordinance 2011-06-00682, sec. 1, adopted 6/2/11) 

Secs. 1.05.004–1.05.030     Reserved 

Division 2. Planning and Zoning Commission* 

Sec. 1.05.031     Established; jurisdiction 

There is hereby created and established the city planning and zoning commission for 
the territorial jurisdiction of the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction. (1995 Code, 
sec. 2-40) 

Sec. 1.05.032     Composition; appointment and term of members 

The planning and zoning commission shall be composed of five (5) regular members 
and two (2) alternate members, each of whom shall be appointed in accordance 
with section 1.05.003 of this code. Alternate members shall serve in the absence of 
one or more regular members when requested to do so by the presiding officer of the 
planning and zoning commission. Each member of the planning and zoning 
commission shall continue in office until such time as a successor is appointed and 
duly qualified. (Ordinance 2011-06-00682, sec. 1, adopted 6/2/11) 

Sec. 1.05.033     Qualifications of members 

The appointed members of the planning and zoning commission shall be resident 
citizens and qualified voters of the city. (1995 Code, sec. 2-42) 

Sec. 1.05.034     Filling of vacancies 

All vacancies on the planning and zoning commission shall be filled for the unexpired 
term in the same manner as provided for the original appointments. All expired terms 
shall be filled for terms as provided for the original appointments and in the same 
manner. (1995 Code, sec. 2-43) 

Sec. 1.05.035     Election of officers 

The members of the planning and zoning commission shall elect a chairman and vice-
chairman from its membership. (1995 Code, sec. 2-44) 

Sec. 1.05.036     Powers and duties 

The planning and zoning commission shall have the power and it shall be its duty to 
make, and recommend for adoption, a master plan, as a whole or in parts, for the 



future development and redevelopment of the municipality and its environs, including 
its extraterritorial jurisdiction, and shall have power and it shall be its duty to prepare 
a comprehensive plan and ordinance for zoning the city and its extraterritorial 
jurisdiction in accordance with chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code and 
amendments thereto. The commission shall perform such other duties as may be 
prescribed by ordinances or state law. (1995 Code, sec. 2-45) 

Sec. 1.05.037     Rules, regulations and bylaws 

The planning and zoning commission shall have the power to make rules, regulations 
and bylaws for its own government, which shall conform as nearly as possible with 
those governing the city council, and the same shall be subject to approval by the 
council. Such bylaws shall include, among other items, provisions for: 

(1)     Regular and special meetings open to the public. 

(2)     Records of its proceedings, to be open for inspection by the public. 

(3)     Reporting to the council and the public, from time to time and annually. 

(4)     The holding of public hearings as required by law. 

(1995 Code, sec. 2-46) 

Sec. 1.05.038     Removal of members 

Members of the planning and zoning commission may be removed by the city council 
at any time, with or without cause. (Ordinance 2004-11-00511, sec. 2, adopted 
11/15/04) 

 



Item No. 20 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Adjournment. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a Motion to adjourn the City Council meeting at     p.m. 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2014 


	00 cc-20140807 regular agenda
	00 Attendance sheet
	01 citizens input cs
	02 community interest cs
	03 Owens Tract annexation cs
	03 Owens Tract Annexation Exhibit A
	03 Owens Tract Annexation Exhibit B
	03 Owens Tract Annexation NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS
	04 pattessery annexation cs
	04 Exhibit A Pattassery Parcel
	04 Exhibit B Pattassery Parcel
	04 Pattessery Public notice annexation
	05 bullard annexation cs
	05 Bullard Annexation NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS
	05 Exhibit A Bullard Annexation
	05 Exhibit B Bullard Annexation
	06 Starbucks SUP cs
	06 2014-08-00782 SUP Starbucks Drive-Thru (ZORD)66763
	06 Starbucks Elevations (2)
	07 Wendys SUP cs
	07 2014-08-00783 SUP Wendy's Lot 3 Wal-Mart Addition 1.478 Acres67017
	07 Wendy's Elevations
	08a 08d consent agenda cs
	08a cc-20140717 council minutes
	08a cc-20140722 joint budget workshop council & fire district minutes
	08b 2014-08-00784 Willow Springs Middle School Annexation (30.0 Acres)66451
	08c 2014-08-00785 Oak Brook Estates Annexation (25.950 Acre Tract)66827
	08d 2014-08-00786 Amending Chapter 14 by Adding 14.04.039 Required Parking for Development65275
	08e amendment to huffman contract 08072014 cs
	08e First Amendment to Agreement for Municipal Court Judge67195
	08f Baxter IT agreement cs
	08f Baxter IT Letter of Agreement
	08g Fire Station Signs RTR cs
	08g Lucas_HGAC_Fire_Station_Warning_System_with_IR_Opticom_Detect_&_Relay_Page1_of_2_05092014
	08g Lucas_HGAC_Fire_Station_Warning_System_with_IR_Opticom_Detect_&_Relay_Page2_of_2_05092014
	09 utility billing policy & procedure agenda cs
	09 Utility Billing Administrative Guidelines
	10 Proposed Property Tax Rate cs
	10 Property Tax Options 2014-2015
	11 Proposed Budget FY 14-15 cs
	11 Budget Memo City Manager
	11 City of Lucas Proposed Budget 8-7-14
	City of Lucas cover page
	FY 2014-2015 City of Lucas Budget

	12 site plan for wendys starbucks cs
	12 Revised Lucas Starbucks and Wendy's Site Plan
	13 1125 country club minor plat cs
	13 1125 Country Club Edwards Addition_6_16_2014 (2)
	14 CDAG Development Agreement cs
	14 CDAG Development Agreement
	59LUCAS Centurion Acquisitions LLP Development Agreement60754
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	14026 ZCP-EXHIBIT C
	14026 ZCP-EXHIBIT D

	14 CDAG Layout (2)
	15 Estates Pkwy construction funding cs
	16 Assessment cs
	16 Center for Public Safety
	17 Benchmark cs
	18 Former Patrol Vehicle cs
	18 IA Law Enforcement Services
	19 boards & commission appt process cs
	19 Board of Adjustments regulations
	19 Parks & Open Space Board regulations
	19 Planning & Zoning regulations
	20 adjournment cs



